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The Integration Effect

BUILDING MOMENTUM

In FY24, we completed a transformative journey,
establishing ourselves as a leading fully integrated global
Biosimilars company. We successfully integrated the
acquired Biosimilars business from Viatris, a year ahead
of plan and surpassed the USD 1 billion annual revenue
milestone.

This Integration Effect was the catalyst that propelled us
forward, helping us expand our footprint to 120+ countries
across Advanced and Emerging Markets, and enhance our
value proposition to all stakeholders.

This year, we witnessed the power of collaboration and
integration of diverse perspectives. Streamlined supply chains
enhanced efficiency, reduced costs, and ensured timely
delivery of our products to our patients. Collaboration with
partners and regulatory bodies fostered a robust ecosystem,
while integration of resources and expertise amplified output
and outcome.

As we celebrate our wins and align with new partners,
customers and colleagues on a shared vision, we are focused
on building on this momentum that the integration has
kickstarted.

At the heart of our success lies our strategy: Preserve,
Consolidate, Accelerate. In FY24, we focused on ensuring
business continuity and preserving value in the business
that we had acquired. Our focus in the coming year now
shifts to Consolidate the business and to Accelerate as we
look to make a meaningful difference to healthcare and
millions of patients’ lives across the world.
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About the Report

About the Report

Biocon Biologics is publishing its second independent
Integrated Annual Report this year. In this comprehensive FY24
report, we present a holistic view of our Company’s performance
over the past fiscal year, encompassing both financial and non-

financial aspects.

The report is designed to provide our stakeholders a clear
understanding of our strategic objectives, governance policies,
G and our commitment to sustainable value creation. Through

integrated thinking and reporting, we aim to demonstrate
how our activities interact with the broader social, economic,

and environmental context in which we operate, ensuring
transparency and accountability in all that we do.

Reporting Guidelines

The Integrated Annual Report for

Biocon Biologics has been developed in
accordance with the principles, guidelines
and requirements of the International
Integrated Reporting Council’s (IIRC)
Integrated Reporting <IR> Framework.
Furthermore, the report has been drafted
with reference to the principles and
requirements of the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) Standards. The report is also
aligned with the United Nations Global
Compact (UNGC) guidelines, United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs), Securities and Exchange Board of
India’s (SEBI) Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Reporting and S&P Global’s
Dow Jones Sustainability Indices (DJS).

Our financial and statutory information
complies with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013, Indian Accounting
Standards, the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Secretarial Standards and other
applicable laws.

As a part of our commitment to
sustainable business practices, our
operations are aligned with 14 of the 17
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

Our core focus, which is to manufacture
and deliver quality and affordable
biosimilars to patients, impacts SDG 3:
Good Health and Wellbeing. As we strive
to expand the reach of our biosimilars,
we also aim to mitigate our impact on
the environment, thus aligning with

SDG 6: Clean Water and Sanitation;

SDG 7: Affordable and Clean Energy,

SDG 12: Responsible Consumption and
Production, and SDG 13: Climate Action.
We have also aligned the organization

to the principles outlined in SDG 5:
Gender Equality, SDG 8: Decent Work and
Economic Growth, and SDG 9: Industry,
Innovation and Infrastructure. Moreover,
we are focusing out CSR activities on SDG
1: No Poverty; SDG 4: Quality Education;
SDG 10: Reduced Inequalities; SDG 11:
Sustainable Cities and Communities; SDG
15: Life on Land; and SDG 17: Partnerships
for the Goals.

Reporting Scope

The financial information included in
the report is for the period April 1, 2023
- March 31,2024 (FY24). It covers Biocon
Biologics' global operations.

Assurance Statement

We have received Limited Assurance
from Emergent Ventures India Private Ltd.
(Moderate Level Type 2 as per AATO00AS
Standard) dated July 11, 2024, for the
non-financial disclosures, ESG data and
BRSR (Core) indicators. The detailed
assurance statement is provided in the
Supplementary Data Book. Financial
statements have been independently
assured by BS R & Co. LLP as of May 16,
2024.

We value your feedback on the report.

Please write to us at:
Group.Communications@biocon.com
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Biocon Biologics Limited

FY24

at a Glance

Continuing our ESG Journey

Awards

= Qutstanding Achievements in
Environmental Excellence at 23"
Greentech Environment Award
2023

= Best Sustainability-Linked Loan
— Pharmaceuticals at The Asset
Triple A Sustainable Finance

Financial Highlights

(Rs Million)

Particulars

FY24

FY23

Growth

Revenue from Operations

38,242

55,838

+53% 4

EBITDA

21,896

13,381

+64% 4

Core EBITDA

24,581

22,160

+11% 4

R&D Investment

9,110

8,890

Debt*

115,281

128,027

-10% ¥

CapEx

8,437

6,305

Employee Benefit
Expense

12,702

8,488

* Excludes preference shares and debentures issued to Biocon Limited Group, optionally convertible debentures
issued to Goldman Sachs and compulsorily convertible debentures issued to Edelweiss.

Achievements

= Saved 1,419 KLD water through

recycling & reuse

= Increased share of green power to
46% of our total electricity needs

= Biocon Limited, including
Biocon Biologics, was included

Awards 2024

= Best Organization for Women
2024 & DEI Crusader Award

] $
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in the S&P Global Sustainability
Yearbook 2024, and our ESG score
improved to 63 from 52 last year

S&P Global

Outlook

= Kickstarting Global Volunteering

Program

= Aiming to align our near-term
emission target to Science Based
Targets initiative (SBTi)




FY24 Milestones

FY24 Milestones

Integration of the acquired Biosimilars business @@ New organizational capabilities — People,
one year ahead of plan - 120+ countries | 250+ 5 Processes, Policies, Digital Infrastructure,
% People | 14 Functions @@ Governance and Compliance

) o . . - :
© H Blusinss aemiuiay s ies) — Mo cusisnme: los: G ESG initiatives have yielded dividends — increase in

diversity , lower attrition and savings on loan

® f Negotiated IP settlement for Wave 1 launch -
ﬁ >USD 1B in revenues -- bUstekinumab in U.S. with J&J and bAflibercept in
U Canada with Regeneron

g Entered into a long-term strategic collaboration
@ hAAarkgt shEares gregv el our ?\;\Od;its NI :9 with Eris Lifesciences to enhance the footprint in
merica, EUrope, Emerging Viarkets 77 India. Deal value of USD 194 million
%@?j Builtan expgr\enced Leadership Team to lead a _g 23 launches and 40 approvals
global, fully integrated company =

Our Vision

To be a global leader in biologics,
delivering affordable access to
innovative and inclusive healthcare
solutions, transforming patients’ lives.

Our Values

= Value creation through innovation
and differentiation.

Quality through compliance and
best practices.

Collaboration, teamwork and mutual
respect.

Integrity and ethical behavior.

Performance-driven work culture.
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The Integration Effect
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The Integration Effect

“Biocon Biologics has always been
recognized for its science, large-scale
manufacturing, and high-quality products.
The acquisition and seamless transition

of Viatris'global Biosimilars business

now adds customer-facing commercial
capabilities and related infrastructure in
several markets worldwide, transforming
us into a fully integrated, ‘lab-to-market’
global enterprise.

This integration, achieved one year
ahead of schedule, is a testament to our
unwavering commitment to patients and
business continuity and the relentless
focus of our team.

Together, we have successfully preserved
value for all stakeholders and will now
focus on consolidating the business and
accelerating growth. Looking ahead, we
aspire to be a global biosimilars leader

and re-affirm our commitment to enable
affordable access to lifesaving therapies for
millions of patients worldwide”

Shreehas Tambe
CEO & Managing Director

Integrated Annual Report FY 2024 (o 007



Biocon Biologics Limited

Biocon Biologics is leading the way in the As a global Company, we are leveraging To effectively manage the transitioned
advancement of biosimilars, which are our established strengths in Research business, we also brought on board
follow-on biologics typically launched & Development (R&D) and operations a diverse, global leadership team
after originator molecules lose patent to bring our products to patients under and expanded our organizational
protection. Our investments in biosimilars the Biocon Biologics brand. Our newly capabilities across key areas, including
are driven by the singular purpose of acquired commercial and related in- policies, processes, digital infrastructure,
broadening access to biologic therapies market capabilities are helping us directly compliance, and governance.
for several life-threatening conditions. manage end-to-end business strategy. ) ' .
. . By closely engaging with our patients,
By developing, manufacturing, and ., . ,
o ) ) This ‘Integration Effect’ has led to customers, partners, and other

commercializing cost-effective and high- . . ) .

e : several advantages, including an stakeholders, we aim to significantly
quality biosimilars, we are easing the . )

! . expanded global footprint, a larger expand the geographic reach of our
financial burden for patients, governments . : . o
: portfolio, direct-to-market access, portfolio of commercialized biosimilars
and healthcare systems, and enabling L R o .
. strategic agility, and operational and pipeline assets. By addressing
global health equity. L2 o
efficiencies. healthcare affordability and access

challenges worldwide, we can seize the
growing global biosimilars opportunity
and achieve profitable growth.

Over the last 18 months, we have
undergone an extensive transformation
after acquiring the Biosimilars business
of our long-term partner Viatris. By

All this has been made possible by the
dedicated efforts of our employees,
both existing and new. Different teams,

) : ; spanning all functions, demonstrated We remain committed to delivering on
successfully integrating the acquired ) : : ! e
. X . exceptional professionalism and our promise of product accessibility,
business across multiple geographies, ) . R
. - . proactiveness as they came together to affordability, availability, and
Biocon Biologics has emerged as a fully,
take on the challenges of such a complex assurance.

vertically integrated ‘lab-to-market’
Biosimilars enterprise and a global
organization.

integration process, and to ensure a
seamless transition.

“Building a global company, fully
dedicated to biosimilars, is only
possible when you have a committed,
energetic team of professional
colleagues who help each other

and the business to succeed. | am
extremely proud of the Biocon
Biologics team, both the home team
and the newly integrated commercial
teams throughout the world, who
connected and collaborated to ensure
an uninterrupted supply of our critical
care medicines to patients. Their first

priority was, and is, to our patients,
which provided the focus and drive to
overcome all challenges with a‘can-do
approach and a willingness to work it
out together. The journey was super
inspiring, and the outcome has been a
resounding success.”

Rhonda Duffy,
Chief Operating Officer, Biocon
Biologics
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Flawless execution

Following the closing of the transaction

in November 2022, Biocon Biologics had a
two-year timeframe to transition business
operations. As a company that believes

in challenging the status quo, we put the
business integration on a fast track, as we
wanted to directly manage our operations
in order to meet our business goals. By
December 2023, we had successfully
completed the integration of the acquired
business, a full year ahead of schedule. This
achievement is particularly remarkable
given the inherent complexity and
diversity in market structures, regulations,
stakeholders, and languages across the
countries where we had to hit the ground
running.

Executing an integration of this magnitude
within a condensed timeframe demanded
that we learn quickly, work smartly,
leverage technology, and execute
flawlessly.

\We onboarded new talent, established
robust systems and processes, and built
new capabilities and infrastructure from
the ground up in several markets.

We have built a strong, global and

diverse leadership team to keep pace
with the rapid and significant expansion
in the scale of our business worldwide.
Additionally, we've adapted key leadership
roles and governance structures to ensure
agility and expedite decision-making,
while maintaining necessary process
controls. We have set up the Biocon
Biologics Executive Committee (EC) as the
apex executive leadership committee and
decision-making body of the Company
with the mandate to set the organization’s
vision, corporate strategy and governance
structure in consultation with the
Executive Chairperson and the Board.

We focused our energies on securing

vital regulatory approvals, enhancing
commercial capabilities, integrating
customer-facing aspects of distribution
and logistics, and establishing connections
with a diverse array of new stakeholders.

We extensively leveraged digital tools
across various functions and geographies
to meet the evolved needs of the business,
drive efficiency and aid decision-making.

The Integration Effect

Our 4A Model Enabling Health Equity

\ Accessibility

Maximizing patient

reach through country-
specific self and partner-

led commercial models.

Affordability
Rationalizing treatment
costs while improving
healthcare outcomes.

Assurance

Establishing a
trustworthy brand
that stands for the

Availability
highest global quality.

Ensuring reliable
product supplies
across Advanced and
Emerging Markets.

The Integration Effect in Numbers

120+ 250+ 14

Countries Employees Functions

- Busin o
e transitioned amalgamated
integrated

500+ pL{ 15+

Logistics
Customers Contracts 9

: providers
onboarded assigned N

500+ 480+ 30+

New software
applications
deployed or

upgraded

Marketing Packaging
authorizations artworks
transferred redesigned
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Biocon Biologics Limited

Robust Governance

Governance Council

Shreehas Tambe
CEO & Managing Director

Business Management
Committee

Akhilesh Nand
General Counsel -
Emerging Markets

Susheel Umesh

Chief Commercial Officer
- Emerging Markets

Matthew Erick

Chief Commercial Officer
- Advanced Markets

A robust governance structure played a pivotal role in
ensuring the successful integration. The Governance Council
provided strategic oversight and direction at the highest
level. The Business Management Committee facilitated the
alignment of commercial strategies across both Advanced
and Emerging Markets. The Transition Management
Committee oversaw the legal and regulatory aspects of the
integration process, ensuring compliance and risk mitigation.
The People Integration Management Committee focused on
harmonizing human resources practices to foster a unified
organizational culture. The Integration Management Office, in
conjunction with our external advisors, provided operational
support and coordination to drive seamless execution.

Leadership Perspective on the Integration
( R

“The journey from inception to a fully
operational organization across North
America, Europe, Japan, Australia, and New
Zealand, including building new functions
and processes from the ground up, has
been remarkable. | am not only proud but
humbled about what we have been able to
accomplish. | want to extend my deepest
gratitude to every employee and their families
whose relentless efforts have made this
possible. | am excited for increased impact
that we will continue to make in the years to
come through our high science, integrated
approach, scale, and global team who is
dedicated to making a difference’

Matthew Erick,
Chief Commercial Officer, Advanced Markets

| >
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Transition Management
Committee

Integration Management Office

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw
Executive Chairperson

People Integration Management
Committee

Naveen Narayanan
Global Head of HR

Stephen Manzano
General Counsel -
Advanced Markets

Our Partners’ Perspective on the
Integration

We have received positive feedback from our
partners on the seamless integration of the global
Biosimilars business acquired from Viatris. They
have commended the speed and efficiency of the
integration process, highlighting the professionalism
and proactiveness of the Biocon Biologics team.
They believe that their partnership with Biocon
Biologics will significantly benefit patients
worldwide by offering advanced, high-quality,
and affordable biosimilars. Our new partners have
expressed their commitment to work towards

the shared goal of enabling access to advanced
therapies and improving patients'lives.

( )

“The integration process has surpassed
my expectations in terms of speed
and efficiency. Despite uncertainties,
the Biocon Biologics team, spanning
commercial, regulatory, and technical
departments, showcased remarkable
professionalism and proactiveness.

It has been a pleasure to tackle the
challenges of this integration process
together as a team, combining Biocon
Biologics and PHARMARIS. | firmly
believe that our partnership will
significantly benefit patients in Latin
America by offering them advanced,
high-quality, and affordable products”

Rolando Andrade,
CEO, Pharmaris LATAM S.A.C

| e




The Integration Effect

November
Key Milestones .> 2023

Acquisition & Integration § Biocon Biologics takes over business
operations from Viatris in 31 European
countries.

2022 2023 2023

Biocon Biologics announces definitive Integration completed in 77 countries © Biocon Biologics concludes last phase
agreement to acquire its partner Viatris' ~: across LATAM, APAC and AFMET. : of Integration, including 10+ Emerging
Biosimilars business. : : Markets and JANZ.

22022  P2023 22023

Biocon Biologics completes © Biocon Biologics completes integration  :  Biocon Biologics concludes intergration
USD 3 + billion acquisition of Viatris’ : in North America (United States and : a year ahead of schedule with the
global Biosimilars business. : Canada). : transition of all Global Functions.

Facilitating Seamless Employee Transition

Biocon Biologics took a comprehensive and thoughtful approach to integrating the employees who transitioned from Viatris.
Our primary emphasis was on transparently communicating the Company’s purpose, vision, values and ways of working, to the
employees who joined from Viatris. They were informed about performance management systems, employee-centric processes,
employee incentives and benefits, and learning and development programs. We carried out extensive skill mapping of the
transitioning employees to determine their exact roles and responsibilities at Biocon Biologics. The outcome of this activity also
guided the assessment of their learning needs.

“The rapid integration in 12 months allowed us to preserve value and transformed us into an organization
with employees in 25+ countries representing 30+ nationalities or ethnicities. This coupled with legacy
strengths in Science, Talent & Culture and an innovation mindset make us a unique, diverse, and inclusive
company ready to catapult into the Top 3 Biosimilars players globally. We take our responsibility to serve
patients very seriously, with our People adhering to the highest ethical standards, high performing in every
way and working on betterment of policies, processes, practices, technology and more. Biocon Group
recently celebrated its 45" anniversary and we in Biologics are proud to say that we are building for the
next 45 years!

The integration also brought us new capabilities, new perspectives, and ideas and this helped us transform
to a whole new business model from a B2B to a B2C focused organization. We continue to stay committed
and focused in harmonizing our ways of working and building a refreshed culture which fuels our
ambitions, for patients and stakeholders!

Naveen Narayanan,
Global Head of HR

| >
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Biocon Biologics Limited

Executive Summary

FY24 has been a landmark year for

Biocon Biologics. We completed the full
transition of the acquired Biosimilars
business, delivered robust volume growth
evidenced by improvement in market
shares of our products, especially in the
U.S. We also expanded our geographical
reach and accessed new markets and
patients.

We maintained our strong revenue growth
momentum to cross the USD 1 billion
annual revenue threshold.

The completion of this integration has
given us direct commercial presence

and related infrastructure in several key
countries across Advanced and Emerging
Markets. Crucially, it has taken us closer
to our most important stakeholder - our
patients.

During this complex and accelerated
integration process, we effectively
maintained uninterrupted operations
and provided a seamless experience to

our patients, partners, and customers

worldwide.

We served ~5.5*

million patients
globally

Business Priorities - FY25

Focus On Delivery Excellence And Strengthening The Foundation For Growth

Drive Deliver on
busie operational levers
performance and targets to
as| TRl improve profitability

Key Challenge

and cashflows

Expedite
closure of key Prepare for
licensing deals in new product
line with portfolio launches

strategy

Increased pricing pressure and competition in select markets.

Outlook

Be ‘Audit
Ready’at all
times

Focus on leveraging new vertically integrated model to accelerate growth for existing products and markets while simultaneously
expanding geographical footprint and preparing for new product launches to drive sustainable and profitable growth.

Continue to invest in advancing and building a highly competitive product pipeline and expect R&D investments to be in the range

of 8-9% of revenues to drive mid- to long-term growth.

*12-month moving annual patient population (April 2023 to March 2024)
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Value Creation

Integrating Business, Enhancing

Value

Our Integrated Annual Report framework

is based on six capitals: Financial,
Manufacturing, Intellectual, Human,

A company’s available financial
resources, including revenue,
partnerships, and investments,
as well as financial risks and
obligations.

Information and expertise
developed by a company,
including intellectual property
developed through R&D.

Relationships with customers,
suppliers, regulators and NGOs,
which are important for creating
value beyond business.

Natural, and Social & Relationship, which
serve as inputs to operate our business
and generate outputs and outcome for
our stakeholders, the environment, and
the society.

Financial
Capital

Manufacturing

Capital

Intellectual
Capital

Q0
(=
)

Human
Capital

Social and
Relationship

Capital @)

Natural
Capital

The Integration Effect

The Biocon Biologics Integrated Annual
Report FY24, narrates how the Company
has efficiently and productively allocated
its investments in six key capitals to create
value for all stakeholders.

Physical assets such as
manufacturing sites, laboratories,
and distribution networks.

Employees'skills, expertise, and
experience critical to a company’s
development.

Natural resources used in
business operations , including
raw materials, energy usage,
emissions, waste, and water, and
the environmental impact.

Our business practices, focused on environmental conservation and enhancing the welfare of communities, employees, and stakeholders,
align with the broader objective of empowering the global community to achieve the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals.

Integrated Annual Report FY 2024 (o 013



Biocon Biologics Limited

Our Value Creation Model

Input
. . = R&D Investment: Rs 9,110 Million

Financial
Capital = Net Worth: Rs 176,062 Million

= [ntangible Assets: Rs 101,483 Million
Manufacturing = Manufacturing Locations: 3
Capital = CapEx: Rs 8437 Million
Intellectual = R&D Centers: 2
Capital = No. of R&D Employees: 451
Human = Employee Benefit Expenses:
Capital Rs 12,702 Million

= New Hires: 900+*
Social & = (SR Expenditure: Rs 120
Relationship Million
Capital = Supply Chain Partners: 2,400+
Natural = Share of Green Energy: 46%
Capital Globally and 85% in India

Alone

Water Audits and Risk
Assessment

*Across Senior and Middle Management

Impact on UN Sustainable Development Goals

No GOOD HEALTH
POVERTY

AND WELL-BEING

QUALITY
EDUCATION

GENDER
EQUALITY

GLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION 1 0 REDUCED 11 SUSTAINABLE CITIES
AND INFRASTRUCTURE INEQUALITIES AND COMMUNITIES

2 K ale

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o
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Core
Capabilities

Cutting-edge
scientific and
technological
capabilities

Global-scale
biologics
manufacturing
capacities

Worldwide
commercial
footprint

Robust
portfolio of
affordable
biosimilars

Values-Driven
Culture

'I RESPONSIBLE 1 CLIMATE
CONSUMPTION

Innovation &
differentiation

Quality
through
compliance &
best practices

Integrity
and ethical
behavior

Collaboration,
teamwork and
mutual respect

Performance-
driven culture

/AND PRODUCTION

Outputs

Revenue from Operations:
Rs 88,242 Million:

EBITDA: Rs 21,896 Million

SDGs

00

Our Value Creation Model

Outcomes

Operate with integrity,
transparency and
accountability ensuring
Stakeholder Equity

Manufacturing Capacity for Drug
Substances: 300+ KL

Manufacturing Capacity for Drug
Products: 100+ Million units

0000

Improve access

to high-quality
biotherapeutics to
drive Patient Equity

No. of Launches: 23 000 Improve access
; to high-quality

e 6 Aprererals 40 biotherapeutics to

Patients Benefited: ~5.5 million drive Patient Equity

Employees Across the Globe: 00000 Build an

5,467: 29% of whom are women empowering

Total Training Hours: 221,898 G LR .
workplace creating
People Equity

Beneficiaries Reached through 09000 Enable

CSR Activities: 79,338 00DDD underserved

Patients Served Through Patient g(())r::wi::tém:‘liets s

Support Programs in U.S.: ~31,000 quity

Reduction in GHG Emissions 0ODO0ODDD Adopt sustainable

(Scope 1 &2): 8,980 tCO,e (5 Y17 ) business practices

Water Recycled: 70%

to promote
Environmental
Equity

ACTION

1 PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

Integrated Annual Report FY 2024 (o 015



Biocon Biologics Limited

Financial
Capital

(Rs Million) Rs Million) Revenue for the year rose 58% to

Rs 88,242 million, driven by the
consolidation of the acquired business
and robust growth in the core business
across Advanced and Emerging Markets.

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortization) for the
year increased 64% to Rs 21,896 million,
reflecting healthy EBITDA margins of 25%.

Revenue EBITDA

The robust growth was driven by strong
performance across both Advanced

and Emerging Markets through our
strengthened vertically integrated model
and expanded global footprint. We
witnessed significant increase in market
shares of our key products in the US,
Europe, and Emerging Markets. This led us
to cross the USD 1 billion revenue mark for

R

D

R

A7

&

R
N
&

&

REER
FREGRBER

13,381
FAGR

o~ o 0 I o
585 3 3 3 g% &
S \ < s o5 < \ S the first time.
~ ™ \ y 0 i5e} ~N = \ 3
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY21 FY22 FY23
(Rs Million) (Rs Million) (Rs Million)

Cash Flow from
Operating Activities

R&D Investment Total Debt*

RIS

&

4 2

A

™~ —
o o0
o o ) o o 8 o% =3 \ N o ISa) o~ \'B
RO G = RO A B
) 8 > . Al - Z - ) =
DN T o SR Q) - K ) AR\ B o
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

* Excludes preference shares and debentures issued to Biocon Limited Group, optionally convertible debentures
issued to Goldman Sachs and compulsorily convertible debentures issued to Edelweiss.
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Advanced Markets

With Biocon Biologics now spearheading
commercial operations, the Company
witnessed a significant step-up in

the market shares of its biosimilars in

the U.S. The market share for Ogivri®
(bTrastuzumab) increased to 18% from
10% a year ago. The share of Fulphila®
(bPegfilgrastim) increased to 21% from
14% a year ago. For Semglee®, and our
unbranded bGlargine, the market share
improved to 15% from 12% a year ago. In
addition, unbranded bGlargine holds a
strong market share with a closed-door
pharmacy network.

In Canada, Ogivri®, our bTrastuzumab,
increased its market share to 28%, Hulio®,
our bAdalimumab, increased its share

to 8%, and we onboarded several new
customers.

On the European front, we have put

in place a bespoke country-specific
operating model and strategy, taking into
account the nature of the market (e.g.
Tender vs. Retail), size of the opportunity
and other parameters, to ensure success.

As a result, we have seen our market
shares remain stable or increase,
depending on the product, with Germany
and France as the key value and growth
drivers. Our bAdalimumab franchise

Executive Summary

remains very strong with a market share
of 6% pan Europe and shares of 20%

in Belgium, 18% in Germany and 11%

in France. We have seen a significant
increase in market share for Abevmy®, our
bBevacizumab, from 1% to 6%, on the
back of several tender wins, growth in

the retail segment and new launches in
large markets such as France, Belgium and
Greece.

In Japan, Australia and New Zealand
(JANZ) markets, we successfully
transitioned the business and have
integrated partners across the region,
laying the groundwork for future market
opportunities and continued growth.

Market Shares for Key Biosimilars
Advanced Markets
NorAm

JANZ

A \
A5 A
+~
-,
Country Product Share Country Product Share Country Product Share
us. bPegfilgrastim 21% Belgium  bTrastuzumab IV 20% Australia  bTrastuzumab 16%
= bTrastuzumab IV 18% e bAdalimumab 20% ol
Glargine U100 15%* France bPegfilgrastim 14%
Canada  bTrastuzumab 28% e bAdalimumab 11%
i+l bAdalimumab 8% bBevacizumab 8%
Germany  bAdalimumab 18%
- bPegfilgrastim 7%
bEtanercept 6%

United States: Market shares based on IQVIA March 2024 data.
Europe, Canada & JANZ: Market shares based on IQVIA Q4 CY2023 data.
*Including market share for unbranded Glargine we supply to a closed-door pharmacy network in U.S,, the market share stands at 18%
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Emerging Markets our biosimilars portfolio across the wins. Both the insulins and monoclonal

In FY24, the Emerging Markets business LATAM, AFMET and APAC regions. antibodies (mAbs) portfolios made good

reported strong year-on-year growth, This performance was driven by the progress with our key products holding a
consolidation of self-led and partner-led dominant market share in several markets.

led by the robust performance of
business, product launches and key tender

Market Shares for Key Biosimilars
Emerging Markets
LATAM APAC

+, j
3
v

Country Product Share Country Product Share Country Product Share
Brazil bTrastuzumab 43% Indonesia bTrastuzumab 57% Egypt bTrastuzumab 50%

— =
Mexico rh-Insulin 95% Malaysia Insulin Glargine 80% Morocco  bTrastuzumab 60%

i Insulin Glargine 95% = rh-Insulin 38% A
bTrastuzumab 34% iaukc)j'i bBevacizumab 50%

rabia :
Philippines  bTrastuzumab 61% = bPegfilgrastim 50%
P |

; South bBevacizumab 90%
Vietnam bTrastuzumab 38% Africa )
E3 = bTrastuzumab 88%
bPegfilgrastim 75%

Partnership with Eris Lifesciences — India

In November 2023, we divested our non-core Nephrology and Dermatology
Branded Formulations business units in India to Eris Lifesciences. Building

on this relationship, we entered into a long-term commercial collaboration
with Eris Lifesciences to expand patient access to our portfolio of
Metabolics, Oncology, and Critical Care products in India. We also signed a
10-year supply agreement with Eris Lifesciences for these products. These
collaborations are in line with Biocon Biologics'strategy to unlock value from
its legacy business of Branded Formulations built over the past two decades,
and deliver high-quality, lifesaving biosimilars to millions of patients in India.
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Executive Summary

Social & Relationship
Capital

We generated value that goes beyond

= Conducted 10,000+ screenings for Oral

commercial operations by regularly
engaging with our patients, customers,
suppliers, and regulatory bodies.

Key Highlights

= Patients benefited: ~5.5 million

= Patients served through Patient Services
and Support Program in U.S.: ~30,000

= ~12,500 Insulin Glargine pens and 1,000
Glargine vials donated to patients in
LMICs.

= Projects run by our CSR arm, Biocon
Foundation: 6

Potentially Malignant Disorders (OPMD).

Conducted a study in select LMICs on
benefits and challenges of biosimilars
uptake. The study suggests ways to
increase access to and adoption of
quality-assured biosimilars in LMICs,
including strengthening regulatory and
pharmacovigilance systems.

Developed a standalone ‘Business
Partner Code of Conduct, which reflects
the principles and aspirations of the
Company through ESG considerations.
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Manufacturing
Capital

We leveraged our physical and tangible
assets such as manufacturing sites,
laboratories, and distribution networks

to ensure delivery of the highest-quality
products to our patients across the globe.

Key Highlights
= Manufacturing capacity for Drug
Substance: 300+ KL.

= Manufacturing Capacity for Drug
Products: 100+ million units.

= Expanded international manufacturing
network by partnering with Contract
Manufacturing Organizations (CMOs).

= Optimal use of steel and single-use
plastic has resulted in reduction of plastic
waste generation by 7 Tons/annum.

= Digitalization of data for better
analytics and compliance, using
E-logbooks, across all our warehouses to
streamline operations and improve data
management practices.

= Optimization in supply chain to
streamline product shipments to U.S.

During the year, we received several
approvals for our new monoclonal
antibodies (mAbs) facility in India, which
significantly expands our capacity. We
have also made considerable progress

on the Phase Il expansion of our Malaysia
facility for insulin analogs, which will
double our capacity for both Drug
Substances and Drug Products, and make
it one of the largest facilities of its kind in

the world. The expanded facility will play a
key role in servicing the increase demand
we are seeing for our Insulins portfolio
globally.

We continue to build out a distributed,
global supply chain and an external
manufacturing network to expand our
capacity multi-fold, de-risk dependencies
on specific sites, and increase access to
our products for patients and customers in
key markets.

Leveraging both our internal and external
manufacturing networks, we were able to
execute 23 product launches in Advanced
and Emerging Markets.

Key Product Launches

Advanced Markets

Product Country

Emerging Markets

Product Country

bAdalimumab us. = bBevacizumab  Brazil E@H, Colombia s, EGypt memm
bBevacizumab Belgium WMl Greece 3=, Lithauania il bAdalimumab Brazil E@H, £I Salvador memm, Guatemala Il
Francell il bEtanercept Brazil E®3 Guatemala l-l
bAspart Germany == rh-Insulin Chile M
blrastuzumab Greece 2=, Hungary = bPegfilgrastim Guatemala l=“H Egypt e, Qatar Tl
bTrastuzumab Bahrain M Saudi Arabia IEHl
bAspart UAE IE=
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Intellectual Capital

We made optimum use of our intangible
assets, including knowledge and expertise
of employees, organizational processes,
and innovations generated via research
and development, to get lifesaving
therapies to patients faster and reduce
development costs.

Executive Summary

Key Highlights
= Regulatory approvals in FY24: 40

= Regulatory filings in FY24: 42

= The US. Food and Drug Administration
(US. FDA) accepted for review our
Biologics License Application (BLA)
for bUstekinumab under the 351(k)
pathway.

= |nitiated global Phase Ill clinical trials for
bPertuzumab.

= Received U.S. FDA approval, marketing
authorization in EU, UK, and provisional
approval in Canada for Yesafili™
(bAflibercept).

= 21 patents obtained in FY24.

We continued to invest in our pipeline to
drive future growth with R&D investments
at 10% of our revenue.

Our R&D pipeline has progressed as
planned, with several new launches

on the horizon. Having secured market
entry dates for two new products in U.S.
and Canada, these products will serve to
accelerate growth in the coming years.

Product Portfolio

Therapy Area Oncology Immunology Eye Health Bone Health

Approved/Commercialized  bPegfilgrastim

bTrastuzumab

bBevacizumab
Late Stage (Clinical to BLA bDenosumab
Review) bPertuzumab
Early Stage (Pre-Clinical) 2 Undisclosed

bAdalimumab  bGlargine bAflibercept

bEtanercept rh-Insulin
bAspart

bUstekinumab bDenosumab

3 Undisclosed  bGlargine U300 1 Undisclosed
1 Undisclosed
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Human Capital

022 (o The Integration Effect

We invested in developing the skills of our
workforce, and maintained a safe, diverse
and equitable workplace, which is vital for
the Company’s overall growth.

Key Highlights
= No. of employees at end of FY24: 5,467.
= Strengthened our Global Leadership

Team with several key appointments in
FY24.

Improved diversity with 29% women
employees.

Conducted multiple orientation sessions
for transitioning employees as part of
the integration process.

Launched BioAspire to nurture high-
potential individuals with specialized
skills and leadership capabilities.

Launched an easy-to-use, single-
window digital platform called'MyHub;
for performance management. It
includes learning modules, employee
policies and supporting systems.

Re-certified with ISO 45001:2018

for Occupational Safety and Health
Management System by TUV Rhineland
for EHS Management System Standard
requirements.

Launched John Shaw Excellence Awards
to achieve operational and quality
excellence at par with internationally
acclaimed awards.

Launched Bioleap, a development
journey program specifically designed
for women.



Natural Capital

We invested in responsible business
practices to ensure sustainable use of
natural resources in our operations and to
minimize our environmental impact.

Key Highlights

= Increased share of green power to 46%
of our total electricity needs across
global operations.

= |nstalled solar panels at the Malaysia
facility, which are expected to generate
more than 1,000 kWp of renewable
energy.

= Achieved energy offset of 76,362 MWh

Executive Summary

= Reduction in freshwater consumption
achieved: 1,419 m*/day vs target of
1,000 m*/day

= Increased recycle rate to almost 500 m?
(0.5 million liters) of water per day in
Malaysia by using Scaleban® technology.

= Waste handed over to authorized
recyclers: 65 MT
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Our extended Global Reach

120+ Countries

Toronto, Canada

Cambridge, U.S.
mne
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Developement

Sao Paulo, Brazil

Manufacturing @ Biocon
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Commercial
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Our Extended Global Reach
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Chairperson’s
Message

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw,

Executive Chairperson

Chairperson’s Message

Dear Shareholders,

As the global population ages and expands, the disease
burden is transitioning from acute and infectious to
primarily non-communicable and chronic. About ‘1 in 3’
adults globally suffer from multiple chronic conditions
like inflammatory diseases, diabetes, and various cancers.
This is exerting an ever-growing financial burden on
healthcare systems worldwide, with global spending and
demand for medicines projected to increase to ~USD 2.3

trillion by 2028.

Biosimilars are affordable, safe, and
effective alternatives to innovative
biologics for treating these chronic
diseases. Increasing biosimilars adoption
can expand affordable access to advanced
bio-therapeutics, and improve the quality
of care, thus ensuring health equity
worldwide.

Building Leadership on an
‘Integrated’ Platform

As an industry pioneer, Biocon was
amongst the first wave of companies
to address the global opportunity for
biosimilars. We applied strong science,

global-scale manufacturing and our deep
experience in biotechnology to develop
a differentiated portfolio of biosimilars
spanning antibodies and Insulins.

We concluded the acquisition of our
partnered Biosimilars business from
Viatris in November 2022, thereby
adding commercial capabilities to our
longstanding expertise in R&D and
manufacturing. This created a fully
integrated, global Biosimilars enterprise.

We completed the integration of the
acquired business across 120+ countries in
December 2023, a year ahead of schedule,
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Biocon Biologics Limited

Chairperson’s
Message

Our vision is

to become the

most trusted and
valued Biosimilars
enterprise in the
world. An enterprise
that is valued not
only for our business
performance,

but also for the
difference we are
making for patients
and society.
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thus accelerating our efforts to seek global
leadership.

We ensured business continuity, retained
customer confidence, capitalized on our
direct commercial reach and delivered

a significant revenue milestone of USD

1 billion this fiscal. More importantly, we
served over 5.5 million patients through
our eight commercialized biosimilars
across the world.

Biocon Biologics' ability to unlock growth
and create value, amidst managing the
complexity of integration, is an outcome
of its commitment to patients, people,
partners, prescribers and payors.

Going Beyond Business

In line with our purpose of enabling
equitable access, we executed multiple
patient-centric programs this year.

In the U.S., we supported ~30,000
patients through our Patient Services and
Support Programs (PSSPs) for our four
commercialized biosimilars. The number
of patients reached through our Patient
Assistance Programs (PAPs) increased by
1.6-fold.

In keeping with our commitment to serve
the underserved communities in low- and
middle-income countries (LMICs), we
collaborated with non-profit organizations
like Insulin for Life and Action4Diabetes.
We donated ~12,500 Insulin Glargine pens
and 1,000 bGlargine vials, thus making a
difference to a large number of patients in
these regions.

Championing a Culture of Ethics
& Equity

Through our ongoing efforts aimed at
improving diversity at Biocon Biologics, we
now have 29% women in our workforce.

As a part of our long-term commitment
to sustainable development, we increased
the use of renewable energy and this year,
our Bengaluru facilities used 85% green
energy.

We are building resilient solutions that
enable and empower disadvantaged
communities to live better, every

day. Through our Corporate Social
Responsibility arm, Biocon Foundation, we

invested Rs 120 million in many projects
across healthcare, innovation, green-urban
mobility, lake rejuvenation, and grant-in-
relief efforts in FY24.

A progressive ESG strategy, aligned with
stakeholder expectations and business
objectives, led us to improve our Global
ESG Score to 63 in the 2023 S&P Corporate
Sustainability Assessment, from 52 in the
previous year. Based on our ESG score,
we earned a position on the Dow Jones
Sustainability Emerging Markets Index
for the third consecutive year. We also
featured in the S&P Global Sustainability
Yearbook 2024 for the second year in a
row. We further improved our EcoVadis
Sustainable Rating, scoring 70 against 66
last year.

Well Poised for the Future

This has been a transformative year

for Biocon Biologics and we expect to
leverage our vertically integrated model to
accelerate growth, expand patient reach
and prepare for new product launches.

Our vision is to become the most trusted
and valued Biosimilars enterprise in the
world. An enterprise that is valued not
only for our business performance, but
also for the difference we are making for
patients and society.

| extend my heartfelt gratitude to

the entire Biocon Biologics team,
including colleagues, partners, and

other key stakeholders. Their relentless
focus, persistent efforts, and steadfast
commitment to patients and business
continuity have resulted in a seamless
transition of the acquired business. This
achievement, accomplished a year ahead
of schedule, reflects their collaborative
spirit and true dedication. It helps

us transform more lives and shape a
healthier future for our Company and our
community.

Yours sincerely,

Sd/-

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw

Executive Chairperson,
Biocon Biologics

June 28, 2024



CEO & MD’s Message

CEO & MD’s
Message

Shreehas Tambe
CEO & Managing Director
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Building a Global

Biosimilars Leader

Dear Shareholders,

The fiscal year 2024 (FY24) was a landmark year for Biocon Biologics. We crossed
the USD 1 billion revenue mark as we successfully integrated the acquired
Biosimilars business to become a fully integrated, leading global Biosimilars
company with a presence in 120+ countries. That we were able to complete this
integration exercise one year ahead of schedule underscores the strong focus
on business continuity, an unwavering commitment to patients'needs and is a
testament to the tireless efforts of our team.

Early in the transition process, we
developed a three-stage strategy to
enable Business Transformation — Preserve,
Consolidate, Accelerate. As we accelerated
the integration program in FY24, our
focus was to Preserve value in the acquired
business and Strengthen the Core, the
Second stage is underway in FY25 as

we Consolidate the business and drive
Operational Efficiency leading us to the
third stage of our Business Transformation
- Accelerate.

Expanding Opportunity and
Evolving Dynamics

Today, non-communicable diseases

such as cancer and diabetes present the
greatest health challenge and account for
over 75% of all mortalities. Biologics are
increasingly becoming the standard of
care in these indications and are projected
to be almost 40% of all pharmaceutical
spends by 2028. High-quality affordable
biosimilars are making these advanced
treatments more accessible to patients
globally and can potentially deliver billions
of dollars in savings to health systems
annually. Consequently, the global
biosimilars market that was USD 21 billion
in 2023 is projected to increase by 2.5x to
reach USD 56 billion by 2030. This rapid
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growth is driven by strong adoption of
biosimilars by patients and prescribers,
an abundance of biologics reaching Loss
of Exclusivity (LoE), and a supportive
regulatory environment.

Amidst this backdrop, Biocon Biologics'
fully integrated model is unique and

a key strategic differentiator. Our rich
research pipeline, proven track record of
scientific and operational excellence and
strong commercial capabilities position us
favorably to succeed in the market.

The complex, large-scale integration of
the acquired business was completed

in phases, by geography. The first phase
of countries in the Emerging Markets
transitioned in July 2023 followed by
North America in September 2023,
Europe in November 2023, as we
completed the integration process in
December 2023. Business continuity was
the central theme to ensure a seamless
experience for all stakeholders, patients,
partners, people. As we transitioned

the business globally, we on-boarded

an experienced global leadership team
and built new organizational capabilities
across several important pillars such as
policies, processes, digital infrastructure,
compliance and governance.

Biocon Biologics delivered strong growth
with revenues increasing by 58% year-
on-year to Rs 88,242 million in FY24. This
growth was driven by a significant increase
in market shares across regions, strategic
deals, several key tender wins and 23 new
launches. Fueled by several formulary

and customer wins, our key commercial
products in the U.S,, bPegflgrastim,
bTrastuzumab and bGlargine, today have
about 20% market share*. In Europe,

we continue to see strong uptake for

our products, with bAdalimumab and
bTrastuzumab capturing double-digit
shares in several key countries. On

the Emerging Markets front, we hold
dominant shares in several geographies
and have significantly expanded our reach.

During the year, we entered into a
long-term commercial collaboration

with Eris Lifesciences in March 2024 to
expand patient access to our portfolio of
Metabolics, Oncology and Critical Care
products in India with exclusive supply
rights to these products. This strategic deal
has allowed Biocon Biologics to monetize
our commercial product brands in India
even as we continue to remain committed
to serving patients in India.

*Includes market share for unbranded Glargine we supply to a closed-door pharmacy network in U.S.



In keeping with our commitment to
profitable, sustainable growth, revenue
performance has translated to an
equivalent increase in profitability with
our EBITDA increasing 64% year-on-year
to Rs 21,896 million. This represents a
healthy margin of 25% and is in line
with our previous guidance. During the
year, we also strengthened our balance
sheet by paring down USD 250 million in
acquisition debt.

During the year, we saw our pipeline
progress and were the first company in
the world to receive approval for YESAFILI®,
our bAflibercept in the U.S. and EU.

We received provisional approval from
Health Canada and signed a settlement
agreement with Bayer Inc. and Regeneron
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. to bring our product
to Canadian patients in July 2025. Our
bUstekinumab filing was accepted by the
U.S. FDA for review and we have signed

a settlement agreement with Janssen
Biotech Inc,, and Johnson & Johnson

that clears the way to commercialize

the product in the U.S. in February 2025,
subject to regulatory approval, putting
Biocon Biologics among the first wave of
entrants to launch this product in the U.S.

Our new mAbs Drug Substance facility

in Bengaluruy, the largest of its kind in
India, was approved by the European
Medicines Agency (EMA) and other
regulatory agencies. These regulatory
approvals unlock significant additional
manufacturing capacity for our Oncology
portfolio to serve more patients globally.
We continue to engage with the U.S. FDA
to schedule inspections at our Bengaluru,
India, and Johor, Malaysia, facilities to
facilitate the approvals for our bAspart,
bBevacizumab products. The capacity
expansion at our Insulins facility is pro-

CEO & MD’s Message

Our focus in the coming year now shifts to the
Consolidate stage, setting up the business well
to Accelerate as we look to make a meaningful
difference to healthcare and millions of patients’
lives across the world.

gressing as planned and will enable us
to meet the increasing demand for our
Diabetes portfolio across geographies.
We continue to make good progress in
expanding our global, distributed supply
network.

These investments in our product portfolio
and manufacturing footprint coupled with
the digital technology initiatives across
the value chain is the foundation that will
enable growth in the years ahead.

ESG - Core of What We Do

As a purpose-driven organization, ESG is at
the foundation of what we do and guides
our business practices. We are actively
working to minimize the environmental
impact of our business by lowering carbon
emissions, optimizing water usage, and
reducing waste generation. The core of
our business is to provide patients with
access to lifesaving medicines and we are
committed to expanding our reach in LIC/
LMIC countries through partnerships with
organizations like Insulin for Life.

In FY24, we have made significant strides
on the human capital front by enhancing
employee engagement, increasing
diversity, and lowering attrition. We are
also building a long-term ESG ‘Strategic
Plan’in line with the evolved business
scale and reach.

I am delighted to share that our efforts and
progress have been recognized externally
and are yielding dividends. Having met the
KPIs of our Sustainability Linked Loan, one
of the largest of its kind, we have received
related rebates from banks. Biocon Group's
ESG score has increased from 52 to 63 in
the Dow Jones Sustainability Index and
was once again included in the S&P DJSI's
prestigious annual Sustainability Yearbook
2024.

Looking Ahead

In FY24, we were able to successfully
Preserve value for all our stakeholders

by ensuring a seamless transition and
building a strong foundation for the
future. Our focus in the coming year now
shifts to the Consolidate stage, setting
up the business well to Accelerate as we
look to make a meaningful difference to
healthcare and millions of patients'lives
across the world.

I would like to thank our stakeholders
for the trust they have placed in Biocon
Biologics and re-affirm our commitment
to unlock value for all - shareholders,
patients, customers.

Yours sincerely,

Shreehas Tambe
CEO & Managing Director,
Biocon Biologics

June 28, 2024

Integrated Annual Report FY 2024 (o 031



Biocon Biologics Limited

with the
Chief Financial Officer
Kedar Upadhye
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Finances in
Perspective

1. What were our Company'’s

key revenue streams this fiscal?
Can you share some insights into
FY24 financials?

The Company reported total revenues

of USD 1.06 billion during FY24, in line
with our stated guidance. There were
multiple growth drivers underpinning
this achievement, with Advanced Markets
being a key contributor at ~70%. This
diversified footprint allows the Company
to benefit from opportunities in each

of the regions and countries, while
optimizing the risks.



The revenue
growth and
increased volumes,
coupled with
Biocon Biologics’
transformation into
a fully integrated
Biosimilars
organization, has
changed the DNA
of the Company in
various ways.

Our vertically integrated model, global-
scale capabilities, R&D and manufacturing
allow us to cater to the aspirations of our
customers and patients. The acquisition
of Viatris'Biosimilars business allowed

us to grow the business by 58% on a
year-on-year basis. We also had continued
contribution from out-licensing deals,
sale of brands and service income in

total amounting to Rs 6,255 million. The
business delivered Rs 21,896 million in
EBITDA, representing a healthy margin of
25%. We also continued to invest in our
pipeline to drive future growth with our
R&D investments at 10% of revenue.

Profit before tax and exceptional items
was Rs 2,957 million. There were few items
during FY24, which were non-recurring
and, hence, classified as exceptional
income / expense. Net exceptional gain
for the year was Rs 166 million. Profit after
tax post exceptional items was Rs 2,182
million.

2.What do you see as near-
term benefits and synergies
post integration of the acquired
business?

Biocon Biologics aspires to enhance

the access to and affordability of critical
biosimilar products throughout global
markets. We completed the integration
of this acquisition one year ahead of
time. The integration allows us to grow
laterally across the countries in both the
private retail market and tender markets.
Our global commercial capabilities and
recently on-boarded associated strengths
in customer engagement allow us to
magnify our presence across markets.
And that has been demonstrated in
terms of robust increase in market shares
and continued servicing of all customer

Q&A with the CFO

orders despite a very involved integration
process.

The revenue growth and increased
volumes, coupled with Biocon Biologics’
transformation into a fully integrated
Biosimilars organization, has changed the
DNA of the Company in various ways.

We now have the opportunity to focus
on hiring talent with global skills and
building internal processes to collaborate
seamlessly in meeting the global demand.
Our engagements with key stakeholders,
such as our business partners and
suppliers, now revolve around long-term
strategic footprint of the business.

3. What is the current debt?
Deleveraging our balance sheet is a
continued focus at Biocon Biologics.
During FY24, we prepaid USD 250 million
out of the acquisition consortium debt of
USD 1.2 billion. Because of this, the Debt /
Equity ratio improved to 0.5:1 as of March
2024, as compared to 0.6:1 in the last
financial year.

We continue to examine our business
model and the working capital efficiencies
apart from capital investment plans to
enhance cash generation potential, that
will lead to lower debt in the coming
period.

4.What was the rationale for the
partnership with Eris Lifesciences
for the India business?

During the year, we entered into a
strategic commercial collaboration with
Eris Lifesciences to expand our patient
funnel across India. We have built a strong
portfolio for diabetes, oncology and
immunology for the Indian market. We
realized that our presence and footprint
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Q&A with the
Chief Financial Officer

We will make
deliberate

choices about our
investments and
focus our resources
on activities that will
truly differentiate

us from our
competitors.

By aligning cost
reduction efforts
with the overall
strategic vision, we
will create a leaner,
more agile, and
more aspirational
enterprise.
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in India need to be much larger given
the needs of the patients. After careful
examination, we realized that we would
need a strong strategic commercial
partner to do this. We will continue

to manufacture and supply the drug
substance for portfolio transferred to Eris
Lifesciences for commercialization in the
Indian market. This allows us to enhance
the access of our products to a much
larger set of patients, given the strength
demonstrated by Eris Lifesciences over
several years as an emerging domestic
marketer.

The two deals with Eris Lifesciences
translated to ~USD 194 million in value,
representing a revenue multiple of 3.5x.

5. What is your financial outlook
in the near term, and what are
our goals for the future?

As mentioned above, the integration of
the global Biosimilars business acquired
from Viatris is progressing well. We
continue to see higher market shares for
our products. Going forward, investment
in R&D will be sharply focused on
therapies of interest. Additionally, we
will explore partnering opportunities

to achieve risk management objectives
while retaining the value for ourselves.
The Capital Expenditure (CapEx) at the
Malaysia site, aimed at increasing insulin
capacities, will enable us to meet the
growing demand for insulins worldwide.
Over time, we look forward to multiple
launches in global markets of products
such as Insulin Aspart and bBevacizumab,
as well as capitalizing on interesting

opportunities for bUstekinumab,
bDenosumab and bAflibercept. All this
will demonstrate a meaningful presence
worldwide and place us among the top
three global Biosimilars players.

We will continue to invest in advancing
and building a highly globally competitive
pipeline and expect R&D investments to
be in the range of 8-9% of revenues.

Our main CapEx outlay currently relates to
Phase Il of our investment in Insulins Drug
Substance and Drug Product capacities in
Malaysia, in order to meet the increased
demand for our products. Considering this
plan, we expect CapEx to be in the range
of USD 100 million run rate.

We will make conscious choices about
our investments and focus our resources
on activities that will truly differentiate us
from our competitors. By aligning cost
reduction efforts with the overall strategic
vision, we will create a leaner, more agile,
and more aspirational enterprise.

Biocon Biologics' strategic focus on
biosimilars and its commitment to
innovation are key drivers of its success

in the global healthcare landscape.

By delivering high-quality, affordable
biosimilar products, the Company
continues to make a significant impact on
patient care worldwide.



Key Financials - FY24

Revenue

88,242

Rs Million in FY24

R&D Investments

9,110

Rs Million in FY24

EBITDA

21,896

Rs Million in FY24

Key Financials - FY24

Debt

115,281

Rs Million in FY24

55,838

Rs Million in FY23

8,890

Rs Million in FY23

13,381

Rs Million in FY23

128,027

Rs Million in FY23
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Meet the Board
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Rear Row (left to right)

Thomas Roberts, Nicholas Robbert Haggar,
Bobby Parikh, Arun S. Chandavarkar, Daniel Bradbury,
Rajiv Malik, Nivruti Rai, Peter Piot

Front Row (left to right)
Russell Walls, Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw, Shreehas Tambe



Introduction to the Board

The Biocon Biologics Board of Directors
embodies effective leadership

through active engagement with and
empowerment of the management
team. This diverse and multidisciplinary
group of professionals brings a wealth
of knowledge and experience, providing
invaluable advice and mentorship. They
are instrumental in steering the Company
towards its vision and values, while

maintaining a steadfast commitment
to the highest standards of corporate
governance, risk control, and regulatory
compliance. The directors are pivotal

in providing strategic direction and
oversight, championing the Company’s
commitment to ethical practices and
continuous value generation.

Board Skills and Competence
The following skills, expertise, and
competencies, as identified by the
Board, are fundamental to the effective
functioning of the Company. These

are taken into consideration by the

Key Expertise of the Board

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
(NRC) while recommending the
appointment of any candidate to the
Board.

Meet the Board

Board members Research & General Finance Compliance & Global Technology | Scientific

Innovation | Management & Risk Governance | Healthcare | & Digital Knowledge
& Leadership | Management Perspective

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw L] [ o ° ® ° °

Shreehas Tambe ° ° ° ° ) ) )

Dr Arun Chandavarkar L] ® ° ° ® ° °

Bobby Parikh [ ) )

Daniel Bradbury ] ) o ° ) )

Russell Walls ® ° o )

Prof. Peter Piot ° ° ° ° °

DrThomas Roberts L] ° ° ) )

Nivruti Rai (] ® ® [

Rajiv Malik ° ® o [ ) ° )

Nicholas Robert Haggar ° ° ° ° ® [ )
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Board Member Profiles

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw
Executive Chairperson

Chairperson of the Board of Directors since
inception

Nationality: India

Professional Experience
First-generation entrepreneur

Founded Biocon in 1978

45+ years of experience in Biotechnology
Executive Chairperson, Biocon Limited
Non-Executive Chairperson, Syngene

Board Memberships

Non-Executive Director, Narayana
Hrudayalaya, India

Independent Director, Trent, India

Board Member, The Centre for Social and
Economic Progress (CSEP)

Full-term Member, Massachusetts Institute
of Technology (MIT), US.

Board of Trustees, Memorial Sloan
Kettering Cancer Center, U.S.

Independent Non-Executive Director,
PureTech Health, US.

Director, Lincoln Center for the Performing
Arts, US.

Honorary Consulate General of Ireland in
Bengaluru

Recognitions
Padma Shri (1989)

Padma Bhushan (2005)

Othmer Gold Medal (2014)

Kiel Institute’s Global Economy Prize for
Business (2014)

Knight of the National Order of the French
Legion of Honour (2016)
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EY World Entrepreneur of the Year (2020)

Order of Australia (2020)

G20 Healthcare Commitment Awards
(2023)

Outstanding Business Leader of the Year,
CNBC-TV18 India Business Leader Awards
(2023)

BRICS-CCI Lifetime Achievement Award -
Entrepreneur of the Year (2023)

Philanthropy

Featured among the Most Generous
Women Philanthropists - EdelGive Hurun
India Philanthropy List (2023)

Signatory, The Giving Pledge (2016)
Education
B.Sc. (Zoology Hons.), Bangalore University

Post-Graduate Diploma, Malting and
Brewing, Ballarat Institute of Advanced
Education, Melbourne, Australia

Shreehas Tambe

Chief Executive Officer and Managing
Director

Member of the Board of Directors since
2022

Nationality: India

Professional Experience

Over 25 years of biopharmaceutical
experience

Expertise across all aspects of the business,
including R&D, Operations, Capital Projects
and General Management

Played an integral role in building Biocon's
Biologics business

Joined Biocon in 1997 as a Management
Trainee and has held diverse leadership
roles, including:

ANy

= Deputy CEO, Biocon Biologics

= Chief Operating Officer, Biocon Biologics

= Global Head of Insulins Business Unit &
Group Capital Projects, Biocon Limited

Recognition
Distinguished Alumnus Award by his alma
mater, the prestigious ICT, Mumbai

Education

Masters’ degree in Bioprocess Technology
from ICT, Mumbai

Bachelor’s degree in Pharmaceutical
Sciences & Technology, University of Pune

© eevcoce
Dr Arun S. Chandavarkar

Non-Executive and Non-Independent
Director

Member of the Board of Directors since
2016

Nationality: India

Professional Experience

Managing Director of Biocon Biologics
Limited from January 2021 to December
2022

CEO and Joint Managing Director of
Biocon Limited from April 2014 to
November 2019

Chief Operating Officer of Biocon Limited
from April 2006 to April 2014

Served as a part of the core team that
led Biocon’s growth and strategy focused
on improving access to high-quality,
affordable biopharmaceuticals and
specialty medicines in chronic therapies
since 1990

Under his leadership, Biocon has made
significant investments in cutting-edge
R&D and efficient, compliant operations
that translated into a unique and
differentiated product portfolio straddling



fermentation-derived complex generics,
biosimilars and novel biologics, all aimed
at a worldwide patient population

Served as Chairperson of the National
Committee on Biotechnology of the
Confederation of Indian Industry (Cll) for
2016-17

Education

B.Tech in Chemical Engineering from the
Indian Institute of Technology, Bombay

PhD in Biochemical Engineering from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology,
Cambridge, US.

Bobby Parikh

Lead Independent Director

Chairperson, Audit Committee & Risk
Management Committee

Member of the Board of Directors since
2019

Nationality: India

Professional Experience
Founder, Bobby Parikh Associates

Co-founder, BMR Advisors

Has been a member of several trade and
business associations

Member of the advisory or executive
boards of private as well as listed Indian
companies, including Biocon Limited

CEQ, EY in India

Country Managing Partner, Arthur
Andersen

Works closely with regulators and policy
formulators

Over 30 years of experience in advising
private equity investors, banking groups,
investment banks, brokerage houses, fund
managers and other financial services
intermediaries

Education

Chartered Accountant, Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India

B.Com, University of Mumbai

Daniel Bradbury

Independent Director

Member of the Board of Directors since
2019

Nationality: U.S.

Professional Experience

Executive Chairman, former CEO and
Co-Founder of Equillium Inc.,, a company
developing products to treat severe
autoimmune and inflammatory disorders

Managing Member, BioBrit LLC

Member, Board of Trustees, Keck Graduate
Institute, US.

Director, Vivani Medical, Inc, and several
private companies and philanthropic
organizations

Board Chairman, Castle Biosciences Inc &
Bioling, Inc, Sensulin LLC, Del Nova, Inc,,
Persephone Biosciences

Member, Advisory Council, Rady School of
Management, San Diego, U.S.

Life sciences executive with over 38

years of experience in creating and
implementing strategies and transforming
businesses

Former CEO, Amylin Pharmaceuticals,
a leading metabolic disease company,
acquired by Bristol Myers Squibb in 2012

Recognitions

Recipient of Director of the Year Lifetime
Achievement Award from Corporate
Directors Forum (2023)

Recipient of Director of the Year Award
from Corporate Directors Forum (2012)

Meet the Board
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EY's Entrepreneur of the Year Finalist (2012)

Education:

International Executive Program, INSEAD,
France

Diploma in Management Studies,
University of West London, UK

Bachelor of Pharmacy, Nottingham
University, UK

Russell Walls

Independent Director

Member of the Board of Directors since
2016

Nationality: UK

Professional Experience
50+ years of experience in the field of
finance

Director of several companies in
pharmaceuticals, insurance, textiles,
transport and leisure sectors

Ex-Treasurer and Trustee, British Red Cross
Education

Fellow Member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, UK

B.Sc. (Pure Science), University of Glasgow,
UK

Diploma in Management Studies,
University of Glasgow

Prof. Peter Piot
Independent Director

Chairperson, CSR and ESG Committee

Member of the Board of Directors since
2021

Nationality: Belgium
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Professional Experience

Director, London School of Hygiene &
Tropical Medicine (2010-2021), and Handa
Professor of Global Health

Founding Executive Director, UNAIDS

Under Secretary-General, United Nations
(1995-2008)

Part of the team that isolated the Ebola
virus in Zaire in 1976

Visiting Professor, National University of
Singapore

Led pioneering research on HIV/AIDS,
women'’s health and infectious diseases,
mostly in Africa

Helped bring AIDS to the forefront of the
world's agenda, and ensured access to
lifesaving antiretroviral medicines

Long experience in leading both a large
inter-governmental organization and
academic institutions

Senior advisor to governments,
foundations and corporations

Authored over 600 scientific publications
and 16 books

Recognitions

World Health Organization Lifetime
Achievement Award (2023)

Canada Gairdner Global Health Award
(2015)

Robert Koch Gold Medal (2015)

Time Person of the Year as one of “The
Ebola Fighters” (2014)

Prince Mahidol Award for Public Health
(2014)

Hideyo Noguchi Africa Prize for Medical
Research (2013)

Frank A. Calderone Prize in Public Health
(2003)
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Education
M.D., University of Ghent, Belgium

PhD. (Microbiology), University of Antwerp,
Belgium

Diploma of Tropical Medicine, Institute of
Tropical Medicine, Antwerp

Clinical Virology, Postgraduate Medical
School, Manchester, UK

Biostatistics and Epidemiology, Epidemic
Intelligence Service, Centers for Disease
Control, Atlanta, US.

Advanced Training in Biomedical Research
Management, Harvard University, U.S.

Senior Fellow in Infectious Diseases,
University of Washington, U.S.

o.....

Thomas Roberts
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of the Board of Directors since
2021

Nationality: U.S.

Professional Experience
Head and Neck Oncologist, Massachusetts
General Hospital Cancer Center

Clinical Director of Oncology Services,
Massachusetts General Brigham
Healthcare at Home

Associate Director of Quality and Safety,
Massachusetts General Hospital Cancer
Center

Instructor of Medicine, Harvard Medical
School

Recognitions

American Society of Clinical Oncology
Merit Award

Member of Gold Humanism Honor Society

University of Virginia's Raven Society

ind

Education

M.D., Medicine Stanford University School
of Medicine

MBA, Business Administration, Stanford
Graduate School of Business

B.A. with High Distinction, University of
Virginia 2009

Oncology Fellowship at Dana-Farber
Cancer Institute/Massachusetts General
Hospital

Internal Medicine/Primary Care Residency
at Massachusetts General Hospital

Nivruti Rai
Independent Director

Chairperson, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Member of Board of Directors since 2019

Nationality: U.S.

Professional Experience

Managing Director & CEO, Invest India, the
National Investment facilitation agency of
the Government of India

Country Head, Intel India, from 2016-2023

Head, worldwide Automotive Foundry
business for Intel Foundry Services

Speaker at global forums, including the
World Economic Forum (WEF) and the
Rekjavik Global Forum

Speaker at academic institutions such as
Tel Aviv University, Duke University and
New York University



Recognitions

Recipient of the prestigious Nari Shakti
Puraskar (Woman Power Award), the
highest civilian award for women in India

Listed among Most Powerful Women list
by Fortune India from 2018-2023.

Education
Global Board of Director Certification
Program, Harvard Business School, U.S.

Executive MBA, Stanford Business School,
us.

Master’s (Industrial Engineering), Oregon
State University, US.

M.Sc. (Applied Mathematics), University of
Lucknow, India

B.Sc. (Statistics), University of Lucknow,
India.

@.......

Rajiv Malik

Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director
and Nominee of Mylan Inc. (Viatris)

Member of the Board of Directors since
2022

Nationality: U.S.

Professional Experience
Over 36 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry

Serves on the Viatris Board of Directors

Served as President of Viatris from
November 2020 until his retirement in
April 2024

Served as President and Director of Mylan,
where he led the company’s global
commercial, scientific, operational and
business development activities

Played a key role in integrating Mylan and
Upjohn, formerly a division of Pfizer, to
form Viatris

He has previously served as:

Chief Executive Officer of Matrix
Laboratories Limited (now Mylan
Laboratories Limited)

Head of Global Development and
Registrations for Sandoz GmbH

Head of Global Regulatory Affairs and
Head of Pharma Research for Ranbaxy

Education

Master’s degree in pharmaceutical
technology from Panjab University, India

m...‘...

Nicholas Robert Haggar

Independent Director

Member of the Board of Directors since
2024

Nationality: UK

Professional Experience

CEO and Founder - HealthQube Ltd
CEO and Board Member — Zentiva K.S

Advisor — Insud, Formycon, Medicines for
Europe, Advent International

Meet the Board
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CEO Insud Pharma - Chemo, MabXience,
Exeltis

Managing Director — Sandoz International
GmbH

Co-Chair, Novartis Access to Medicines
Head Europe, — Ranbaxy International

VP, Hospital & Vaccines, Italy —
GlaxoSmithKline

Education

MBA, Cranfield Institute, UK

B.Sc, Industrial & Manufacturing Systems
Engineering, University of Hertfordshire
Further Executive Education — Leading a
Global Enterprise, Harvard Business School
Further Executive Education — Healthcare
System Design, Harvard Public Health
Further Executive Education — Novartis
Leadership Program, Harvard Business
School

Further Executive Education — Achieving
Strategic Agility — London Business School
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Our Executive Committee

Shreehas Tambe Kedar Upadhye Rhonda Duffy

Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer Chief Operating Officer
Managing Director

Matthew Erick Susheel Umesh Sandeep Athalye
Chief Commercial Officer, Chief Commercial Officer, Chief Development Officer
Advanced Markets Emerging Markets

Naveen Narayanan
Global Head of HR
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Strengthening the Global Leadership Team

Strengthening the Global Leadership Team

Biocon Biologics made several key leadership appointments in FY24 in keeping with its vision of transforming
into a global biosimilars leader and integrating the recently acquired Biosimilars business from Viatris
seamlessly. These strategic appointments bring a wealth of global experience and expertise to the
organization, positioning it for future growth and success.

Kedar Upadhye has joined as
Chief Financial Officer. He will steer
the Company’s sustainable and
profitable growth, accelerating
fundraising initiatives and ensuring
fiscal prudence, as we rapidly
expand our global footprint.

Rhonda Duffy has taken over as
Chief Operating Officer driving
improvement of operational
output and performance,
adoption of technology,
enhancement of quality standards
and development and launch of
new products.

David Gibson, as Global Head of
Business Development, is leading
the Company’efforts in partnering,
in/out-licensing assets and
identifying regional commercial
partners in collaboration with the
Portfolio Strategy and Commercial
Teams.

Dr Uwe Gudat, who has joined
as the Chief Medical Officer, is
instrumental in driving our clinical
strategies, ensuring efficient
progress of our products through
clinical trials and regulatory
approvals across geographies.

Dr Arlene Wolny is the Global
Head of Regulatory Affairs, and her
expertise in developing regulatory
strategies is instrumental in
advancing our pipeline products
through their ‘lab-to-market’
journey, ensuring their delivery to
patients worldwide.

Stephen Fecho, who heads
Supply Chain Management,

has overseen the integration

of logistics providers across
geographies to ensure a seamless

transition of the acquired business.

He is leading the optimization of
supply chain performance, which
is boosting the Company's global
business performance.

Dwight D. Hanshew, Jr. has
joined as the Chief Quality Officer
of Biocon Biologics, and his rich
experience and leadership in
quality assurance are vital to
maintaining the high standards
of our products and services,
underlining our unwavering
commitment to the safety of our
patients.

Kiran Kumar Gandhirajan

has taken charge as the Global
Head of Procurement & External
Manufacturing. He is a Biocon
veteran, and has played an
important role in building the
Finance function in India and
Malaysia. He held the role of

Site Head at Biocon Sdn. Bhd.,
Malaysia, between 2019 and
2024, leading the operations at
our state-of-the-art integrated
insulins facility. In his current role,
he will oversee procurement and
external manufacturing across
the Company’s global locations,
spearheading critical initiatives for
long-term sustainable growth.

The commercial organization has
been further strengthened with
the appointment of:

Rinat Livne, Vice President &
Head of APAC, brings extensive
experience in leading strategic
initiatives, driving market
expansion, and fostering strong
partnerships. She brings a wealth
of knowledge and a proven track
record of success in the pharma
sector.

Joshua Salsi, Head of North
America, has transitioned from
Viatris to Biocon Biologics and
has steered the integration of
the Biosimilars business in North
America. He is now leading the
expansion of the business in this
region.

Jozef Belcik, Head of Europe &
JANZ, has played a pivotal role in
the successful integration of Viatris
Biosimilars business across 31
countries in Europe. He is driving
business growth with strategic
initiatives and transformative
operations in the region.

Souhail Tebib, Head of AFMET &
CIS, is instrumental in navigating
the complexities of the regional
markets and ensuring that Biocon
Biologics' high-quality biosimilars
are accessible to patients,
contributing to the Company’s
mission of transforming healthcare
globally.

’
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Scientific Advisory Board

Dr. Sanjiv Agarwala

Sanjiv Agarwala is the Chief of Medical
Oncology and Haematology at St.

Luke's Cancer Center and Professor of
Medicine at Temple University School of
Medicine, in Philadelphia, U.S. He is an
expert in the research and treatment of
melanoma and immunotherapy of cancer
and has presented and led numerous
conferences and meetings across the
globe. Dr. Agarwala has written and
contributed to over 200 publications and
book chapters on melanoma, immune-
oncology and other research areas. He is
an active member of several professional
and scientific societies, such as the
American Association for Cancer Research
(AACR), the American Society of Clinical
Oncology (ASCO), the European Society of
Medical Oncology (ESMO), and the Society
for Melanoma Research (SMR).

Dr. Mario Mandala

Mario Mandala is an Associate Professor
of Medical Oncology at the University
of Perugia, Italy. Dr. Mandala is a
member of the European Society for
Medical Oncology (ESMO) Committee
of Melanoma Guidelines. He is on the
editorial board of several international
journals. He has authored more than
190 publications and his major scientific
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interests are clinical and translational
research on melanoma, gastrointestinal
cancer and thromboembolic
complications in cancer patients.

Dr. Mandala has made significant
contributions to organizations such as
ESMO and the European Organisation for
Research and Treatment of Cancer (EORTC)
in the management of melanoma and
thromboembolic complications in cancer
patients.

Hans-Friedrich Koch

Hans-Friedrich Koch is an expert in
biostatistics and data management

with over 40 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. He specializes in
biosimilar drug development and offers
guidance for global clinical development
programs.

Dr. Steven R. Feldman

Steven R. Feldman is a board-certified
dermatologist and dermatopathologist.
He is Professor of Dermatology, Pathology
and Public Health Sciences at the Wake
Forest University School of Medicine in
North Carolina, U.S. He earned his M.D.
and PhD degrees from Duke University

in Durham, North Carolina, and then
completed a dermatology residency at the
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill

and his dermatopathology residency at
the Medical University of South Carolina,
in Charleston. He has authored over 750
publications in his 35-year career.

Dr. Alan Menter

Alan Menter is a dermatologist and
former Chairperson of the Division of
Dermatology at Baylor University Medical
Center in Dallas, U.S., and program director
at Baylor Texas for the Dermatology
Residency Program. In addition to his
medical work, Dr. Menter also served

as a Clinical Professor of Dermatology

at the University of Texas Southwestern

in Dallas and is a frequent speaker in

his field. He notably spent six years as a
Clinical Director of the National Psoriasis
Foundation Gene Bank, between 1996
and 2002. Dr. Menter is a past president
of the Texas Dermatology Society and a
former board member of the American
Academy of Dermatology. He received
the Giants of Dermatology Award from
Dermatology Times in 2020. He was
previously acknowledged by the American
Academy of Dermatology with the Clark
W. Finnerud Award in 2015 and a Lifetime
Achievement Award from the National
Psoriasis Foundation in 2013. Dr. Menter
has consistently been highlighted in Best
Doctors in America since 1994. He has
published ~300 articles, four books, 19
book chapters and numerous reviews for
medical journals such as the New England
Journal of Medicine and Lancet.

Dr. Chirag Desai

Chirag Desai, a medical oncologist, is
affiliated to the Hemato-Oncology Clinic,
Vedanta Ahmedabad, as one of the
Founder Directors. He has published his
research work extensively in national and
international journals and is currently
serving as a member of the editorial
board of four journals. He is a member
of the Tongue Cancer and Lung Cancer
Practice Guidelines Sub-Committee for
the Indian Council of Medical Research
(ICMR) and Head and Neck Committee for
National Cancer Grid. He has also served



as a member of several professional
organizations such as ASCO, ESMO, etc.

Dr. Shirish Gadgeel

Shirish Gadgeel, MD (Fellowship in
Medical Oncology), is a renowned medical
oncologist affiliated with the Henry Ford
Cancer Institute in Detroit, U.S., where he
serves as Division Head for Hematology/
Oncology and as an Associate Director

of Patient Experience and Clinical Care.

His clinical research experience spans

20 years. He is also a member of the
steering committee of the Lung Cancer
Committee of Southwest Oncology Group.
He is the Associate Editor of Clinical Lung
Cancer and a reviewer for many journals,
including Clinical Cancer Research, Journal
of Clinical Oncology, Lancet Oncology,
and Journal of Thoracic Oncology. He has
served as faculty for the annual meeting of
the American Society of Clinical Oncology
(ASCO) and as a member of the education
committee of ASCO. He is a member

of the Communications Committee of

the International Association of Study of
Lung Cancer (IASLC). He was awarded

the Cancer Clinical Investigator Team
Leadership Award by the National Cancer
Institute in 2012.

Dr. Susan B. Bressler

Susan B. Bressler is the Julia G. Levy,

Ph.D. Professor of Ophthalmology at

the Wilmer Eye Institute at the Johns
Hopkins University School of Medicine,
Baltimore, US. She is a board-certified
ophthalmologist and has subspecialty
training in medical retinal disorders,
vitreoretinal disease, and retinal surgery.
Her main research interest has been
collaborative efforts in clinical trials. She
has served as principal investigator of

an image reading center that has served
as a central unit for many clinical trials
and epidemiologic investigations, as

Vice Chair of the Diabetic Retinopathy
Clinical Research Network, and as principal
investigator of a participating clinical
center in several major clinical trials. Most
of her studies have specific emphasis on
the treatment of both non-neovascular
and neovascular age-related macular
degeneration and all aspects of diabetic
retinopathy. Dr. Bressler has a large
national and international referral practice.

In addition, she has published 223 peer-
reviewed articles and 55 book chapters.
Her editorial board positions include
American Journal of Ophthalmology,
Survey of Ophthalmology, Retina, EyeNet
Magazine, Health After 50: The Johns
Hopkins Medical Letter, and the Wilmer
Retina Update.

Professor Richard Eastell

Richard Eastell is currently Director of the
Mellanby Centre based at the University
of Sheffield, UK. Some of his recent
contributions have been authorship on
key papers describing new treatments for
osteoporosis, such as tibolone, zoledronic
acid, denosumab and lasofoxifene as

well as addressing issues about safety of
medications and provide guidelines to
diagnose primary hyperparathyroidism, a
common disorder resulting in high levels
of blood calcium.

His work as a clinical investigator was
recognized in 2014 by the Frederick C
Bartter Award from the American Society
for Bone and Mineral Research.

Professor Felicia Cosman

Felicia Cosman is the Professor of Clinical
Medicine at Columbia University College
of Physicians and Surgeons in New

York City, NY, US. She is an osteoporosis
specialist and was a clinical scientist at
Helen Hayes Hospital in West Haverstraw,
New York. Dr. Cosman is the recipient of
multiple research grants from the National
Institutes of Health (NIH), the Department
of Defense, the National Multiple Sclerosis
Society, and multiple pharmaceutical
companies. She has published 155 peer-
reviewed papers and 50 book chapters,
and acted as an NIH grant reviewer,
associate editor for several journals, and
the co-editor-in- chief of Osteoporosis
International. Her major research focus
over the last decade is the use of
teriparatide, a bone building medication,
in combination with antiresorptive agents,
and in novel cyclic regimens, in the
treatment of severe osteoporosis.

Dr. Eric Orwoll

Eric Orwoll is Professor of Medicine
and attending physician in the bone
and mineral section of the Division of

Scientific Advisory Board

Endocrinology, Diabetes, and Clinical
Nutrition at the Bone and Mineral Clinic,
Oregon Health & Science University
(OHSU), Oregon, Portland, U.S. He has been
the director of the Bone and Mineral Clinic,
and of the Bone Density Lab at OHSU.

Dr. Orwoll specializes in the evaluation and
care of patients with osteoporosis, other
forms of metabolic bone disorders, and
abnormalities of calcium metabolism. He is
an internationally recognized expert in the
area of bone biology and metabolic bone
disease, and has considerable experience
in basic, clinical, and epidemiological
investigation. His areas of research interest
include the epidemiology, etiology

and therapy of osteoporosis in men,

the evaluation of new diagnostics and
therapeutics, osteogenesis imperfecta,
effects of sex steroids on skeletal biology,
and skeletal genetics/proteomics.

Dr. Roland Chapurlat

Roland Chapurlat has been a Professor

of Rheumatology at the University
Claude Bernard-Lyon 1, France, since
2005. He is the Chief of the Division of
Rheumatology and Bone Diseases and
the head of the Department of Medicine
at Edouard Herriot Hospital in Lyon. Dr
Chapurlat is also leading the team, “Bone
and chronic diseases’, at the Université de
Lyon’'s INSERM UMR 1033, a research unit
affiliated with the French National Institute
of Health and Medical Research, and a
reference center for rare bone diseases

in Lyon. His main research interests are
osteoporosis, osteoarthritis and rare bone
diseases such as fibrous dysplasia of bone
and osteogenesis imperfecta. He has
published more than 250 articles in peer-
reviewed journals.

Professor Toshio Matsumoto

Toshio Matsumoto is Professor Emeritus
at Department of Medicine and
Bioregulatory Sciences, University of
Tokushima Graduate School of Medical
Sciences, Tokushima, Japan. His main
areas of research include metabolic
pathology, bone and calcium metabolism
and endocrinology. He has over 600
publications to his credit in peer-reviewed
national and international journals.
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Value Creation through
Six Capitals

Financial
Capital

Natural |
Capital
A
The Biocon Biologics
Integrated Annual Report
FY24 seeks to provide a deeper
understanding of the resources
and relationships that we use,
‘ collectively known as capitals
within the <IR> Framework.
Social And e
Relationship
Capital

Human
Capital
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Financial Capital

We are strategically investing for the long-
term business sustainability and growth
of our business while maximizing returns
for our providers of financial capital. At Rs
88,242 million, our revenues recorded a
strong 58% year-on-year growth driven by
the consolidation of the acquired business
and robust growth in the core business
across Advanced and Emerging Markets.

FY24 has been a truly transformative year
for Biocon Biologics, as we crossed the

USD 1 billion revenue threshold, driven
both by the step-up from the integration
of the Viatris Biosimilars business

and growth in the core business. We
maintained healthy EBITDA margins even
as we continued to invest in our pipeline
to support future growth with our R&D
spend at 10% of revenues.

We delivered a robust revenue growth
year-on-year, while simultaneously
maintaining business continuity

Financial Capital

Aligned to SDGs '

and integrating a highly complex
geographically diverse business across
120+ countries, one year ahead of
schedule. We saw a strong momentum in
market performance with our products
across all our regions.

During the year, we also prepaid USD 250
million of acquisition-related debt.
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Financial Performance - FY24

88,242

Revenue

N

FY21  FY22  FY23  FY24
Biocon Biologics'total revenue
grew to Rs 88,242 million

in FY24, as compared to

Rs 55,838 million in FY23.

This increase is primarily on
account of consolidation of
the acquired business and
robust growth in core business
across both Advanced and
Emerging Markets.
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9,110

R&D Investment

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

We invested Rs 9,110 million
in R&D in FY24. This comprises
10% of our revenues for the
year. A healthy year-on-year
investment in R&D reflects

in our pipeline’s progress

and product launches. As a
leading global biosimilars
manufacturer, we will continue
to focus on R&D in the years
to come.

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

In FY24, we spent Rs 12,702

million on employee benefits.

This is a 50% increase from
FY23, primarily driven by

the transition of employees
from Viatris. We offered a
range of benefits to our
employees such as health
insurance, retirement plans,
wellness initiatives, childcare
and education services. Our
Restricted Stock Units (RSUs)
program, aimed at rewarding
our people and instilling a
sense of ownership, covered
~70% of employees who
have completed a year in the
organization.

(Rs Million)

120.3

CSR Contributions

43
50

31

R
GRURBRAR

R

N

FY21  FY22 FY23  Fv24
Through our CSR efforts, we
strive to develop and sustain
healthy and empowered
communities by promoting
social and economic
inclusion and improving
overall quality of life. We
always strive to go beyond
this statutory requirement,
as we believe in doing good
for the community and the
environment in which we
operate. We spent Rs 120.3
million on CSR activities in
FY24.To know more about
our CSR initiatives, please refer
to the chapter, Social and
Relationship Capital, in this
report.



21,896

77,030

115,281

Financial Capital

Profitability (EBITDA)

N [

FY21 FY22 FY.

3 FY24

Our focus on delivering
profitable, sustainable growth
led us to deliver a 64% growth
in EBITDA at Rs 21,896 million,
representing a healthy margin
of 25%. Despite several
one-time integration-related
costs and investments to
build out new capabilities
and infrastructure to meet
the needs of the evolved
organization, the business

has delivered a healthy
profitability.

Capital Investment

18,891

14,952

54,163
CEACEATEAN A
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FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

%y Capital work-in progress

% Property plant and equipments
We have made significant
investments in building up
our manufacturing capacities
over the last decade. These
investments have been made
bearing in mind the long-term
potential of the biosimilars
market and our capabilities.

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

During FY24, our debt stood
at Rs 115,281 million. As
compared to the previous
year, we were able to reduce
the debt by 10%. Pre-paying ~
USD 250 million of acquisition
related debt has contributed
towards this reduction.
Reducing this debt further
continues to be a business
priority.

*Excludes preference shares and
debentures issued to Biocon Limited
Group, optionally convertible
debentures issued to Goldman

Sachs and compulsorily convertible
debentures issued to Edelweiss.

Cash Flow from Operating
Activities

8,542

5443

R

GRUGRBRA

N

FY21 FY22 FY

3 FY24

During FY24, our operating
cashflows amounted to Rs
21,867 million, including
receipt of Rs 18,214 million
(USD 220 million) towards
working capital under
definitive agreement [refer to
note 40(b) in the consolidated
financial statements]. A
healthy cashflow allows us

to provide returns to our
shareholders and invest in
future growth.
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Tax Strategy

Responsibility for tax governance at
Biocon Biologics rests with the tax
function, and related activities are
conducted in consultation with the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO). While the
Audit Committee provides oversight
and guidance on tax governance, the
Risk Management Committee provides
oversight and guidance on effective tax
risk management.

Accordingly, this Tax Policy is approved

by the Audit Committee and the Board

of Directors, and is implemented by the
tax team, under the guidance of the CFO,
within the overall control and governance
framework of the Group. We have a tax
policy in place that includes Group-

wide tax commitments, and drives the
provisioning, payments and reporting
related to tax matters at Biocon Biologjics.

The policy is approved by the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors.

Biocon Biologics complies with the
statutory obligations and tax laws in

the countries where it operates. This
includes all matters relating to tax filing,
tax reporting, tax payment and audit
obligations for all taxes. Accordingly, all
necessary compliances are undertaken
in a timely manner within applicable due
dates.

Key Financial Ratios

FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

Revenue growth 21% 24% 61% 58%
Core EBITDA margin 37% 39% 41% 30%
R&D as % of sales 10% 9% 16% 10%
EBITDA margin 27% 29% 24% 25%
Effective tax rate* 21% 19% 4% 31%
Debtors'turnover 6.14 474 347 247
Current ratio* 1.31 1.74 1.34 0.84
Debt equity ratio” 1.15 1.08 0.80 0.74

* Excludes tax impact on exceptional items

*Current liabilities exclude Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("NCRPS”) and Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("OCRPS”) issued to Biocon Limited

AEquity includes NCRPS and OCRPS issued to Biocon Limited

S B
B

—

050 <o The Integration Effect

D, e




Manufacturing Capital

At Biocon Biologics, our competitive edge
is deeply rooted in the transformative
power of ‘The Integration Effect’Early in
our journey, we chose to significantly
invest in commercial scale, globally
compliant manufacturing facilities with
integrated capabilities across Drug
Substance, Drug Product and devices.

We also built expertise in an array of

technology platforms that include both
microbial & mammalian systems to
produce insulins, monoclonal antibodies
(mAbs) and conjugated recombinant
proteins. These investments have
positioned us among the world's Top 15
biopharmaceutical companies in terms of
bio-manufacturing capacity*.

Manufacturing Capital

Aligned to SDGs

61 iei0idxa

To better utilize our Manufacturing
Capital, we focused on further increasing
efficiency across our manufacturing

sites while also expanding capacity,
maintaining a robust quality management
system for our products, investing in
digital manufacturing and automation,
and reducing our environmental footprint
inFY24.

*Bioplan Associates Annual Report 2022

Integrated Annual Report FY 2024 (0 051



Biocon Biologics Limited

Key Highlights

80+

cGMP Approvals Obtained
from Regulatory Agencies

Bengaluru, India

In FY24, we started realizing the benefits
of past investments to meet an increased
global demand for mAbs.

Our mAbs Drug Substance manufacturing
facility in Bengaluru has GMP approvals
from international regulatory agencies
such as the European Medicines Agency
(EMA) for global supplies of bTrastuzumab
and bBevacizumab. This is the largest
facility in India for manufacturing mAbs
and will allow us to meet the significant
increase in demand we are seeing for our
robust portfolio of mAbs.

The US. FDA was unable to undertake a
pre-approval inspection of our Bengaluru
facility that manufactures bBevacizumab
within the proposed goal date timeline
and, therefore, issued a supplementary
CRL. The CRL did not identify any
outstanding scientific issues and we have
submitted all required documentation to
the Agency. We are awaiting a visit by the
U.S. FDA to inspect the India facility, which,
subject to outcome, would pave the way
for approval of our bBevacizumab in the
us.

Johor, Malaysia

The EMA renewed its GMP certification for
our Malaysia facility, which is one of the
largest integrated insulins manufacturing
facilities in Asia. The facility has been

GMP certified by several other leading
regulators, e.g., Health Canada; TGA,
Australia; ANVISA, Brazil etc,, certified for
meeting ISO 13485:2016 requirements for
manufacture, assembly and distribution of
insulin pen injections.

During the year, we implemented

several process improvements relating

to the manufacturing of rh-Insulin Drug
Substance and invested in enhancing our
infrastructure, specifically utilities related
to solvents and water systems. These
actions led to an over 70% increase in our

052 (o The Integration Effect

300+

KL, Drug Substance
Manufacturing Capacity

100+

capacity for manufacturing rh-Insulin Drug
Substance.

We also made considerable progress on
the Phase Il expansion of our Malaysia
facility for Insulins and Analogs, which
will double our capacity for both Drug
Substance and Drug Product, and we
will become one of the largest facilities
of its kind in the world. The expanded
facility will play a key role in servicing the
increased demand we are seeing for our
Insulins portfolio globally.

We completed the implementation of all
Corrective and Preventive Actions (CAPAs)
at the Malaysia facility related to a cGMP
inspection by the U.S. FDA. This was done
within the committed timelines, and we
have provided a comprehensive update
to the regulator. We are awaiting a visit by
the Agency to inspect the facility, which,
subject to outcome, would pave the way
for approval of our bAspart in the country.

Mn Units, Drug Product
Manufacturing Capacity

23

Product Launches in FY24
Across AMs and EMs

Implementing Process
Improvements

Biocon Biologics' cost-competitive
manufacturing capabilities, coupled with a
relentless focus on process improvement
throughout the value chain, have enabled
us to make our products affordable for

a larger patient population. Our key
improvement initiatives during FY24
include:

1) Implementation of process
intensification technologies.

2) Introduction of process analytical tools
(PAT) for better process controls.

We also continued to leverage digital
systems to enhance efficiency across
processes. Our data-based models have
proven to be useful for finetuning yields.




Key Digital Transformation
Initiatives

= E-logbooks: Digitalization of data for
better analytics and compliance, using
E-logbooks, across all our warehouses
ensures streamlined operations and
improved data management practices,
aligned to our sustainability goals and
commitment to operational excellence.
We are expanding E-logbooks to other
areas and expect to cover all operations
in FY25.

= Our Laboratory Information
Management System (LIMS) underwent
Enhancement lll, incorporating analyst
qualification and validation modules,
alongside email notifications for key
processes.

= A Quality Dashboard with site-wise
heat maps empowered our Quality
teams to efficiently manage health
check parameters from various Quality
Management System (QMS) elements.

Expanding External Manufacturing Network
In FY24, Biocon Biologics continued building its global external manufacturing network using Contract Manufacturing Organizations
(CMOs) to add capacity, reduce dependency on single sites, cut ‘time to market; as well as‘get closer to patients’in key markets.

Global Manufacturing Network*

External Manufacturing: US. (2 sites), UK & Ireland, Poland, Italy, Bengaluru (3 sites), Japan

In-house Manufacturing: Bengaluru, Malaysia

u.s.

*Current for DP sites

Minimizing Plastic Waste in
Manufacturing

As a part of our efforts to reduce plastic
waste, we assessed our manufacturing
processes and rebalanced plastic

UK &Ireland @ @ Poland

o Italy

Q
070

Manufacturing Capital

= Serialization (SAP ICH) has been
implemented for business use in several
countries, ensuring enhanced traceability
and compliance.

= SAP system enhancements have
resulted in optimization in supply chain
to streamline product shipments to the
us.

Japan

Bengaluru @

Q In-house manufacturing

usage with the use of stainless steel,
segregation and recycle projects.
Optimal use of steel and single-use
plastic has resulted in reduction of plastic
waste generation by 7 Tons/annum.

Malaysia

@ External manufacturing

We have also introduced innovations
in packaging in our downstream
operations to further reduce plastic
waste. More details on these initiatives
are given in the Natural Capital chapter.
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A Culture of Quality
Biocon Biologics' Quality Management Maturity (QMM) initiative is a strategic approach to uphold the highest standards of product

safety and efficacy. The QMM framework is built on four foundational pillars: Quality Strategy, Quality Processes, People, and Organization,
ensuring a holistic integration of quality into every aspect of the business.

Pillar 1: Quality Strategy

This pillar focuses on the development of a
long-term vision for quality management,
aligning with our overall business strategy
of emphasizing patient-centricity, and
having a proactive stance on quality with
a strong commitment to continuous
improvement.

Under this pillar, we have re-envisioned
our Quality Policy to align with

our business strategy. This vision is
operationalized through clearly defined

quality objectives and metrics and
encapsulated in a comprehensive Global
Quality Manual. The manual serves as a
guiding document, placing the patient at
the core of organizational decision-making
and fostering a robust culture of quality.

To reinforce this vision, our ongoing
communication initiatives, such as
Townhalls and leadership roadshows,
disseminate the quality ethos and
articulate pathways to achieve quality
strategy objectives. These initiatives
are part of a broader corporate

QUALITY
MANAGEMENT MATURITY
FRAMEWORK
L6 e
N - Bl B

|

communication strategy designed to
actively engage employees and integrate
them into the quality narrative.

In addition, we use staff surveys,
‘temperature checks'and leadership
Gemba Walks as tools to gauge the
effectiveness of our engagement in quality
practices and the Quality Management
System (QMS). These tools also serve

to assess employees’ perceptions of
leadership’s oversight and dedication to
maintaining quality standards.

Pillar 2: Quality Processes

The second pillar, Quality Process
Improvements, looks at data governance,
escalation management and risk
management.

By establishing a dedicated data
governance function, we ensure that data
integrity is maintained throughout the
lifecycle of our products. This function’s
responsibility extends to managing data,
defining clear processes, and assigning
specific roles to stakeholders, including
promoting data integrity culture through

054 (o The Integration Effect

awareness sessions, and building a
network of data integrity champions for
maintaining the quality and reliability of
our pharmaceutical products.

We have implemented a three-tier
escalation process as a strategic approach
to enhance quality management within
Biocon Biologics. This structured process
ensures that quality issues are not only
reported and addressed at the appropriate
management levels but also that the
insights gained from these incidents are
disseminated across various network sites.

Furthermore, our re-visioning of the
quality risk management processes
signifies a proactive stance towards
detecting potential risks, aiming to
identify and mitigate them before they
impact the process, product, or patient.
The development of specialized tools
and templates serves to improve the
communication and tracking of risks
across our network sites and fosters a
culture that is conscious of and prepared
for quality-related challenges.



Pillar 3: People

We recognize the importance of human
resources. Therefore, we have put in place
career advancement opportunities and

retention strategies for essential personnel.

We have crafted specialized and
structured training to foster both personal
and professional growth of our people.

These training programs are implemented
across our network of sites to ensure

Manufacturing Capital

o

uniform dissemination of knowledge.
Competency maps have been created

to identify skill requirements and gaps at
every level, thereby enhancing the overall
training ecosystem.

Pillar 4: Organization

The final pillar addresses our
organizational structure and its impact
on the processes, products, and patients.
We have minimized silos and harmonized
overlapping roles and responsibilities.
Our goal is to create a more cohesive,
streamlined, and efficient operation that

can respond swiftly to quality-related
issues, drive continuous improvement and
provide tangible benefits to patients.

We are committed to continually
improving our Quality Maturity Model
by demonstrating dedication and
commitment to delivering products of
the highest quality to patients around

the globe. This strategic approach not
only ensures compliance with regulatory
standards but also fosters trust and
reliability between us, healthcare providers
and patients.

The pillars described above align with our
Quality Culture Statement.
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Our Quality Culture Statement

At Biocon Biologics, we are committed to delivering superior quality products that meet the needs of our patients and expectations of
regulators. Our Quality Culture reflects our Quality Policy, shapes our pharmaceutical quality system, and drives our success. It is a shared
mindset and behavior, which reflects our commitment to quality excellence.

Our quality is measured by various

We foster a quality culture by: = Empowering our employees with indicators, such as quality metrics, audits,
N : resources, training, and tools required i

® Listening to our patients, customers, to take ownershig and accountgbilit of e o feedback Actions are it

requlators and addressing their needs L P Yy !mplemented to address opportunities fpr

2iiie] OGRS, quality. improvement. We are proud of our Quality

Culture and the positive impact it has
on our products, processes, people and
importantly our patients.

= Promoting a learning organization
that encourages innovation, continual
improvement while ensuring

= Communicating candidly and
transparently about quality issues,
addressing them timely and rewarding

compliance with applicable laws, i
successes, performance, and best Ip . q ppd q We are conﬁderjt that our Quality Cultgre
practices reguiations, ana standaras. will help us realize the vision of becoming

a global leader in pharmaceutical
innovation.

Driving Quality Excellence

Quality is one of our strategic pillars, and we make relentless efforts to foster a culture of excellence when it comes to quality
management. In FY24, we instituted the John Shaw Excellence Awards, which demonstrates our commitment to continuous
improvement in quality control and management practices across our business.

Business Excellence

Digital Transformation

John Shaw Excellence Awards Quality, Cost, Innovation, Delivery, EHS & Productivity KPIs & KBls
The John Shaw Excellence Awards

wv
(JSEA) will evaluate, assess, calibrate, H\g 2 o
recognize and reward “Best in Class ] e S8 ¢ o "% -% §
SBUs (Strategic Business Units)’, within g 3 v £ E 2 @ e 3 5 &
the Biocon Group of Companies EJ g 3 3.y S é 2 o 3 g— o]
that demonstrate excellence across S 3 RS 5-? E § T § 3 é <@ % S
various criteria, including quality, S £ & § £ g% % 2053 &3 5
cost, innovation, delivery, EHS, and A S 23 9% B § §% 23
productivity. It is a holistic approach g 2 £ 25 § g © £ E’g k2
towards driving world-class processes = é € ‘§ a [ e A S
and is aimed at promoting a culture » S e E :_V:’ =

c

of quality and excellence across the
organgt!on JSEA Is de5|gneclj asa Compliance and Controls

prerequisite to qualify for the ‘Deming

Award’ This will be awarded to SBUs Cultural Enablers - Visionary Leadership & Strategic Planning

that demonstrate excellence in
quality management. The John Shaw Excellence Model
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The Integration Effect

THE INTEGRATION EFFECT

Collective effort, dedication, and a strategic approach
contributed to the successful transition and integration

in various regions.
Regional Heads’ Perspective

r

“The transition and integration of our commercial staff
occurred smoothly, despite the inherent challenges often
associated with human resources management operations.
Effective communication with government officials and
prompt product registrations were pivotal in ensuring a
seamless business transition, guaranteeing timely product
supply and minimizing any inconvenience to patients. With
the collective determination and dedication of our team, |
am confident that the future holds nothing but remarkable

Souhail Tebib,
Head - AFMET- CIS

opportunities for us!"
)

~

“Certainly, it was a significant challenge to carry out the
entire transition of clients and systems throughout the
year, but our purpose of providing the best care to patients
guided us to overcome all difficulties. The integration

with the new team brought us extra motivation to work
with a fresh team and enhance the diversity of our team.
Undoubtedly, a transformational year that proved Biocon
has a team with tremendous capacity for overcoming

Marcelo Dos Santos,
Head — LATAM — Commercial

obstacles”
)

~

“We achieved the successful integration of the Viatris
Biosimilars business for the APAC region and seamlessly
onboarded all active partners, ensuring no loss in demand
or revenue while continuing to serve the patients with care
and continuity. We have integrated the Viatris team in our
markets, which brought knowledge and experience from

Rinat Livne,
Head — APAC

both sides that refreshed the working styles”
—

“Achieving the seamless integration of the
acquired Biosimilar business in record time, while
ensuring uninterrupted business operations,
stands as a remarkable accomplishment. The

key to success has been our team’s commitment
to customers, patients and to one another. We
view our newly established organization in
Europe, spanning over 30 countries, as akin to

a startup venture. Virtually every process has
been meticulously developed from the ground
up: establishing legal entities, obtaining market
authorizations, negotiating contracts with both
existing and prospective clients, and securing
distribution partnerships. Crucially, we assembled
a leadership team comprised of talented and
driven individuals who have been instrumental
in shaping the commercial organization from its
inception”

Jozef Belcik,

Head of Commercial for Europe & JANZ
—

~

“This transition owes its success to our exceptional
team, comprising both longstanding Biocon
Biologics employees and those who joined us
from Viatris or recently came aboard. They worked
tirelessly to transfer 200+ contracts, switch our full
in-line distribution to Biocon Biologics, rebuild and
renegotiate all our distribution service agreements
and much more. Since the transition, we have
seen increased vertical integration and better
communication across the organization, which

is encouraging. These changes have empowered
us to become more agile and responsive to our
customers, enabling us to better fulfill the needs of
patients and the market for high-quality, affordable
biosimilar medicines.”

Joshua Salsi,

Head of Commercial
for North America

—
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Intellectual Capital

At Biocon Biologics, we embrace the
‘Integration Effect’ by nurturing strong
internal R&D capabilities across the entire
biosimilars development continuum.
This spans clone generation, process

and analytical development, as well as
pre-clinical and clinical development.
Judicious investments in scientific talent
and cutting-edge R&D infrastructure have
led to the development of a rich product
pipeline that will allow us to capitalize on
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the rapidly expanding global biosimilars
opportunity. By integrating the experience
gained from navigating a complex

and evolving regulatory landscape for
biosimilars, we have unlocked new
opportunities for growth and innovation.
Additionally, our incisive intellectual
property (IP) strategy has enhanced our
ability to create and protect value.

We continue to remain one of the highest
R&D spenders in the pharmaceutical

Aligned to SDGs

sector in India, investing an average of
10% of our revenues in R&D every year.
During the financial year, we invested Rs
9,110 million in R&D, which is 10% of our
revenues.



Key Highlights

9,110

Rs Million, (USD 110 Million)
Invested in R&D

40

Regulatory Approvals

Received in FY24

42

Regulatory Filings
Submitted in FY24

21

Intellectual Capital

Patents Obtained in FY24

Biosimilars Portfolio
Industry-leading investments have led us to build and advance a highly globally competitive biosimilars pipeline.

PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

Therapy Area Oncology Immunology Diabetes Eye Health Bone Health Others
Approved/ bPegfilgrastim | bAdalimumab bGlargine bAflibercept
Commercialized bTrastuzumab bEtanercept rh-Insulin
bBevacizumab bAspart
Late Stage bDenosumab | bUstekinumab bDenosumab
(Clinical to BLA Review) bPertuzumab
Early Stage 2 Undisclosed 3 Undisclosed | Glargine U300 1 Undisclosed
(Pre-Clinical) 1 Undisclosed

Global Regulatory Affairs

While the transition of Viatris'Biosimilars business was in progress,
our global regulatory team undertook the formidable task of filing
for Marketing Authorization Transfers of 500+ product registrations
across Advanced Markets (AMs) and Emerging Markets (EMs). Over
480 product packaging artworks were created across the markets
in the period to aid the transition process.

During the financial year, we secured 36 approvals in EMs and 4
approvals in AMs.

Key Product Approvals in Advanced Markets

Region Country Product

To handle this expanded volume of work, we increased the Us. bAflibercept

regulatory team'’s strength this year and made significant
investments in complete digitization of workflows. We have 7 new
digital platforms to support and enhance our day-to-day tasks
around registering products, labelling and artwork. Our focus was
on retaining a nil rejection rate from various health authorities

to ensure no patient need would be left unserved because of EU
procedural gaps. We successfully migrated all active Electronic

Common Technical Document (eCTD) sequences and related UK.
source documents from Viatris to Biocon Biologics'environment
without any negative business impact over the year.

NorAm

Canada bAflibercept

EU (28 member states) bAflibercept

bAflibercept

granted GMP approvals to our facilities
in Bengaluru and Malaysia.

which included engagement with

FDA for follow-up inspections for CAPA
verification. We remain committed

to global standards of Quality and
Compliance and look at this as an
opportunity to improve and strengthen
our systems.

Regulatory Inspections

International regulatory health
authorities conducted a total of 15
inspections of Biocon Biologics' facilities
between April 2023 and March 2024.
These were under the category of pre-
approval and surveillance inspections
related to Good Manufacturing Practices
(GMP), to confirm state of compliance.
Several agencies, including the EMA,

We, however, received Complete
Response Letters (CRLs) from the U.S.
FDA for two of our BLA filings (bAspart,
bBevacizumab) that were linked to
observations cited during the Pre-
Approval Inspections of our facilities.

We submitted Corrective and Preventive
Actions (CAPA) plans and took necessary
action within the stipulated timeline,
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Key Product Approvals in Emerging Markets

Key Product Approvals in Emerging Markets

Region Country Product Region Country Product
1 Argentina bAspart bPedfilgrastim
. 1 Algeria
, Chile bAdalimumab bAdalimumab
bEtanercept bAspart
3 Costa Rica bBevacizumab 2 Bahrain
- bPegfilgrastim
4 bominican bBevacizumab
Republic bBevacizumab
5 El Salvador bBevacizumab 3 Eqypt bPedfilgrastim
LATAM o agyp ghilg
spart bAdalimumab
bTrastuzumab ;
6 Equador 4 Israel bBevacizumab
bPegfilgrastim
. AFMET bEtanercept
rh-Insulin 5 Jordan .
bBevacizumab bAdalimumab
7 Panama
bTrastuzumab bAspart
- 6 | Mozambique
8 Peru rh-Insulin bEtanercept
1 Cambodia rh-insulin 7 | Saudi Arabia bAdalimumab
Insulin Glargi
reuin blargine 8 | South Africa bEtanercept
APAC 2 Nepal rh-Insulin :
3 Philippines bAspart 7 dyria bEtanercept
4 | Singapore bAspart 10 UAE bAspart
5 Thailand bAspart il Uganda bEtanercept

Key Regulatory and

Licensing Developments in

FY24

The US. FDA has accepted our
Biologics License Application
(BLA) for bUstekinumab

for review under the 351(k)
pathway. The Company has

signed a settlement and license
agreement with Janssen Biotech
Inc. and Johnson & Johnson that
clears the way to commercialize
bUstekinumab, Biocon Biologics'
proposed biosimilar to Stelara®,
in the USS,, subject to regulatory
approval, no later than February
22,2025.

This will position Biocon
Biologics among the first
wave of entrants in the U.S. for
bUstekinumab.
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Clinical Development and
Medical Affairs

Our multidisciplinary Clinical Development
and Medical Affairs (CDMA) team supports
early and late-phase clinical trials for
biosimilars, and post-approval safety
services, including development strategy
and advisory discussions with regulatory
authorities.

Integrating Sustainability in Clinical
Trials

The CDMA team’s sustainability mandate
for Biocon Biologics follows the Carbon
Reduction Guidelines of the United
Kingdom (UK) - National Institute for
Healthcare and Research (NIHR). These
guidelines outline strategies to reduce

carbon emissions in clinical research
phases. Some of these pathways include
efficient study design, streamlined
monitoring, avoidance of unnecessary
data collection and reducing trial-related
travel.

Ensuring Diversity and Inclusion
within our Clinical Trial Framework
We are working towards reversing

the under-representation of disease-
appropriate subgroups in clinical trials
tailored to the biosimilar setting in which
we operate. We are proposing more
inclusive study design protocols, the use

of multilingual study tools, and digitized
data collection systems, as the scientific
question under study advises.

Ethical Considerations in Clinical
Trials

We are committed to conducting our
clinical trials in an ethical manner and in
accordance with contemporary ethical
standards as set forth in the governing
legislations and regulations. We ensure
alignment with industry-leading practices
on ethical clinical trials. We have a Clinical
Trial Protocol Review Committee (CTPRC)
that outlines requirements and ensures

progress according to the set standards.
The CTPRC is headed by the Chief Medical
Officer, and the core committee members
include the Head of Clinical Development,
Head of Medical Sciences and Member
Secretaries to CTPRC. Members from
relevant functions are added to the
committee as per the study's requirement.

We may extend financial aid to
participants according to state-of-the-art
international guidelines, which enables
them to afford post-trial treatment.

Pharmacovigilance

Biocon Biologics has expanded the scope of
Pharmacovigilance after the successful completion of the
integration of the acquired Biosimilars business, which
led to our direct global presence in Advanced Markets.

Digital Transformation for Pharmacovigilance

What the newly established integrated system for efficient data
management and safety reporting does:

= Seamless integration of Medical Information Contact Center

To comply with regional and country-specific regulations,
additional on-ground staffing was completed and strategic
partnering was accomplished to ensure compliance with
reporting requirements and obligations. Qualified Person
Responsible for Pharmacovigilance (QPPV) positions were
set up and an organizational restructuring was carried out
for improved sponsor oversight on activities. Key activities
such as signal detection and risk management have been
retained in-house. Due to a four-fold increase in volume

of cases post-integration, we have engaged Eversana as a
strategic partner to manage Pharmacovigilance operations
globally. We have also invested in Oracle-Argus database to
fully digitize the progress flow and submissions to health
authorities to ensure compliance and efficiency.

(MICQ), Argus and Quality databases allows for minimal paper
tracking and leads to better compliance.

= Automates regulatory submissions of safety data on time.

= Allows scaling up for future increases in case of load volume and
provides better sponsor oversight.

= Dashboard and automated reports provide timely insights into
drug safety, product risk management and regulatory compliance.
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Scientific Publications
Biocon Biologics is committed to advancing scientific knowledge within the broader scientific and medical community. Our CDMA team
worked towards this goal through the following key publications during FY24.

Insulins Insulin September, | Insulin Tregopil: An Ultra-Fast Oral Drugs https://link.
Tregopil (novel | 2023 Recombinant Human Insulin Analog: springer.com/
molecule) Preclinical and Clinical Development in article/10.1007/

Diabetes Mellitus. s40265-023-01925-1
- Joshi S; Jayanth V; Loganathan S; Sambandamurthy
VK; Athalye S.N.
Insulin June, 2023 Comparative clinical efficacy and safety of | Diabetes, Obesity | https://
Glargine insulin glargine 300 U/ml (Toujeo) versus & Metabolism doi.org/10.1111/
insulin glargine 100 U/ml in type 2 diabetes dom.15007
and type 1 diabetes: A systematic literature
review and meta-analysis.
- Joshi S.R; Singh G; Marwah A; Mittra S; Suvarna V.R. &
Athalye S.N.
rh-Insulin June, 2023 Pharmacokinetic and pharmacodynamic Diabetes, Obesity | https://dom-pubs.
equivalence of Biocon's biosimilar insulin & Metabolism pericles-prod.
N with U.S-licensed Humulin® N for- literatumonline.
mulation in healthy subjects: Results from com/doi/10.1111/
the RHINE-2 (Recombinant Human INsulin dom.14994
Equivalence-2) study.
- Andersen G; Singh G; Murugesan S.M.N.; Gogineni, R;
Sharma N; Panda J; Marwah A; Loganathan S; & Athalye,
SN.
rh-Insulin November, Role of recombinant human premix insulin | Indian Journal of | http://mdrf-eprints.
50/50 2023 (rhi 50/50) in the management of type 2 Applied Research | in/1424/
diabetes mellitus in Asian population: an
expert review
- Mohan V. and Bhansali A; and Kumar P and Patil A
and Raj P

mADbs [tolizumab April, 2023 Recovery and Survival of patients with Expert Opinion https://doi.org/10.10
(novel moderate to severe Acute Respiratory on Biological 80/14712598.2023.2
molecule) Distress Syndrome (ARDS) due to Therapy 204186

COVID-19: a multicenter, single-arm, Phase
IV Itolizumab Trial: RESURRECT.
- Raveendra K.R; Rathod C; Darnule R; Loganathan
S; Deodhar S; Radhika A; Marwah A; Chaudhari N.M,;
Thakur BK,; Vaidyanathan S; Athalye S.N.
General July, 2023 Ethnic sensitivity assessments in GaBi https://gabi-
: biosimilar monoclonal antibodies clinical journal.net/ethnic-
(Perspective/ ) L
S development programmes: necessary or sensitivity-
Opinion )
) not? assessments-in-
Review) biosimil
- Sandeep N Athalye, Dev D Baruah, Shivani Mittra, losimilar-
Ankit Ranpura, Kuldeep Kumar, Elena Wolff-Holz. monoclonal-

antibodies-clinical-
development-
programmes-
necessary-or-
not.html
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Intellectual Capital

mADbs Bevacizumab | October, Population Pharmacokinetics of European https://link.

2023 MYL-14020, a Proposed Biosimilar to Journal of Drug springer.com/
Bevacizumab and Reference Product Metabolismand | article/10.1007/
(Avastin®) in Patients with Non-squamous | Pharmacokinetics | s13318-023-00855-3
Non-small Cell Lung Cancer. Eur J Drug
Metab Pharmacokinet 48, 675-689 (2023)
- Owen, J.S, Rackley, R.J., Hummel, M.A, Roepcke S,
Huang, H., Liu, M., Idris, TA, Murugesan, SMN., Marwah.,
Loga-nathan, L, Ranganna, G., Barve, A, Waller, CF,
Socinski, M.A.

Trastuzumab November, | Comparison of the Real-World Reporting JMIR Cancer https://cancer jmir.

2023 of Symptoms and Well-Being for the HER2- 0rg/2024/1/e54178
Directed Trastuzumab Biosimilar Ogjivri
With Registry Data for Herceptin in the http-s.//puk')med‘

! ncbi.nlm.nih.
Treatment of Breast Cancer: Prospective ov/38573759/
Observational Study (OGIPRO) of Electronic 9
Patient-Reported Outcomes https://www.
-Trojan A, Roth S, Atassi Z, Kiessling M, Zenhaeusern ani'nlm‘mthV/
R, Kadvany Y, Schumacher J, Kullak-Ublick GA, Aapro pmc/articles/
M, Eniu A PMC11027054/
Others Aflibercept October, A comparative Phase Il study of MYL- - -
202 1701P fli josimil
023 01P(ana Albercept.blosn"‘m ar o 93¢ EURETINA
reference aflibercept in patients with Dia-
: ) . congress,
betic macular edema: Subgroup analysis
: o Amsterdam

based on baseline characteristics
- Piotr Oleksy, Daniel Virgil Alfaro, Rajendra S. Apte,
Abhijit Barve, Kristine Baumane, Katrin Beckmann,
Susan B Bressler, Rozsa Degi, Jan Ernest, Vishali
Gupta, Motohiro Kamei,Genichiro Kishino, Katrin
Lorenz, Dennis M Marcus, Debdipta Bose, Prasanna C
Ganapathi for the INSIGHT study group.

Medical Affairs

The Medical Affairs team at Biocon
Biologics focuses on designing and
implementing patient-centric initiatives,
programs for continuing medical
education for healthcare professionals
(HCPs), generating real-world evidence
and consensus statement and
implementing disease awareness activities
for patients.

Patient-Centric Initiative

BRIDGE-1: Biocon Biologics, in partnership
with the Research Society for the Study of
Diabetes in India (RSSDI), had launched a
comprehensive care program, BRIDGE-1, in
2021 to assist diabetes knowledge in Type
1 patients. As part of the initiative, we have
provided free insulin to 1,675 people with
Type 1 diabetes through 183 physicians.

Real-World Evidence

SOLID Study: Presented at the
International Diabetes Federation (IDF)
conference, 2023. This real-world evidence
study demonstrated similar efficacy and
safety results when switching T2DM
patients from reference product Glargine
to biosimilar Glargine. The abstract

was published in the journal, Diabetes
Research and Clinical Practice, March
2024%.

SWITCH Study: The interim analysis (with
a sample size of 250) indicates a significant
improvement in Quality of Life (QOL)

and glycemic control among patients
included in assistance programs and using
biosimilar Insulin Glargine, compared to
the standard of care (biosimilar Glargine
alone). These findings suggest that the
patient support programs positively

influence overall well-being and glycemic
control in individuals with Type-2 Diabetes.

We supported the development of an
India-specific expert consensus on the
use of extracorporeal hemo-adsorption
in septic shock in World Journal of Critical
Care Medicine World J Crit Care Med. Mar
9,2024; 13(1): 89026.

Continuing Medical Education
Diabetes: Conducted educational
programs on the clinical benefits of
early insulin initiation and pragmatic
approaches to insulin titration to more
than 5,000 HCPs at ~400 medical
educational programs, including
Continuing Medical Education (CME)
programs and national conferences such
as the RSSDI Educational Symposia (ESI).

*Praveen R, Saboo B, Gadve S, Chopra V, Reddy S, Ramanathan B, Kumar S, Bhograj A, Kapur R. IDF23-0379 Switching from reference glargine (Lantus) to biosimilar glargine
(Basalog) in T2DM patients, uncontrolled on OAD's. Diabetes Research and Clinical Practice. 2024 Mar 1,209
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Nephrology and Critical Care: Conducted
38 medical meetings, disseminating
knowledge to 700 HCPs on various
therapies, such as anemia management,
renal transplant, sepsis, and surgery.

Global Medical Information Center
We are a patient-centric, patient-facing
company, which has transformed into a
truly global organization this year. This
has led to a surge in inquiries regarding
our products, which we responded to
with alacrity and accuracy, thanks to

the recently established Global Medical
Information Center. The center manages
approximately 700 inquiries a month,
answering queries and delivering valuable
information to HCPs and patients across

40 countries. These inquiries span diverse
products from the Diabetes, Oncology,
and Immunology portfolios.

The global Medical Information (MI) team
adheres to six fundamental principles for
effective query handling:

Standard Operating Procedures
(SOPs): SOPs are developed to guide the
handling of inquiries, documentation of
responses, and adherence to regulatory
requirements.

Technology: A robust Ml database and
case management system enables
efficient tracking of inquiries, responses,
and follow-up actions.

Quality Control: Rigorous quality control
measures ensure the accuracy and
consistency of the information provided.

Global Coordination: The MI center
collaborates across regions and affiliates
to deliver consistent service, considering
time zones, languages, and cultural
nuances.

Regulatory Compliance: The Ml center
aligns with global regulatory standards
for pharmaceutical and healthcare
information.

Continuous Improvement: Regular
reviews and enhancements to processes
and systems are based on feedback and
performance metrics.

Intellectual Property Management

In FY24, we filed for 337 trademarks and received approvals for 175 trademarks. We filed for 35 patents and 21 patents were granted
during the year for both biosimilars and novels (excluding small molecule/generics). Till date, we have been granted a total of 1,300+

patents® and 2,200+ trademarks.

Biocon Biologics Secures Canada
Market Entry Date for YESAFILI®
(bAflibercept), a Proposed
Biosimilar to EYLEA®

Biocon Biologics has announced the
signing of a settlement with Bayer Inc.
and Regeneron Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
This agreement paves the way for the
introduction of YESAFILI®, a proposed

biosimilar to EYLEA® (bAflibercept)
Injection, into the Canadian market.

Under the terms of the agreement,
Biocon Biologics has secured a launch
date for YESAFILI® 2 mg NDS for vials and
prefilled syringes (yet to be filed), set no
later than July 1, 2025.

*397 patents for biosimilars and 922 patents for novels. Patents for novels are handled by Biocon Biologics IP team.
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The settlement resolves multiple parallel
patent infringement proceedings in the
Federal Court of Canada involving six
patents, and associated judicial review
proceedings, under Canada’s Patented
Medicines (Notice of Compliance)
Regulations, addressing pre-entry
pharmaceutical patent litigation.
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Digital Transformation

Digital transformation is pivotal for
Biocon Biologics as it drives innovation
and efficiency across all functions. By
embracing the latest digital technologies,
we enhance our operational agility,
streamline processes, and bolster

quality and compliance measures. This
strategic integration of digital initiatives
ensures that we remain at the forefront
of delivering affordable, high-quality
medicines to patients globally, while also
maintaining a competitive edge in the
rapidly evolving healthcare landscape.
With the integration of the acquired
business, the necessity and scope for

Digitally Transforming our
Commercial Operations

For a seamless execution of commercial
operations across 120+ countries,
multiple industry leading digital
platforms were implemented to manage
activities such as sales, marketing and
customer relationship management.

Digitally Transforming our Supply
Chain

We have completely digitized our supply
chains and have implemented Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) systems to plan
and monitor operations in real time.
These ERP systems have helped us to:

digital strategies expanded multifold in
FY24.

Our teams assessed each function’s
needs for servicing the expanded market,
procured and even designed solutions
aimed at enhancing productivity, ensuring
compliance of workflows with global
standards and laws, delivering business
insights and enabling agile decision-
making. While we upgraded some of

our enterprise-level solutions, more than
20 new digital solutions were deployed
with suitable modifications. All our key
functions such as Human Resources,
Supply Chain, Finance, Commercial,

Some of these platforms are capable of
facilitating real-world analytics using Big
Data & Al. During FY24, these platforms:

= Facilitated outreach to 14,000+ HCPs.

= Helped develop 15 multilingual
websites and the digital content
centrally.

= Anticipate fluctuations in demand and
supply.

= Provide insights into business
performance and reduce operational
cost through process optimizations.

= Enable tracking of shipments,
inventory and orders across third party
logistics partners and customers.

Quality, Corporate, Regulatory Affairs,
CDMA, Manufacturing and R&D are
covered under the digital transformation
roadmap.

We have assessed the benefits that
Augmented Intelligence (Al) could bring
in our day-to-day activities and are aiming
at democratizing adoption of tried and
tested tools across functions and levels.

We continuously benchmark ourselves
against the industry best practices

for digital capabilities, and our cross-
functional interventions, specifically
during FY24, have significantly helped us
progress on the maturity curve.

= Simplified and automated medico-
legal review of promotional materials.

= Enabled real-time insights on sales
performance, market access and
product performance metrics.

= Minimize compliance risk by
leveraging robust internal controls,
audit trails and avoiding penalties.

= Ensure compliance with local taxation
and regulatory requirements.
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Securing our Digital Footprint
The Office of the Chief Information
Security Officer (CISO) supports Biocon
Biologics'digital transformation initiatives
by investing in abilities to defend,
withstand and recover from disruptions.
We use world-class technologies and
expertise to reduce the risks of such
disruptions, with the scope now being
included in our entire global footprint.

The Office of the Group CISO has
incorporated a Zero Trust Approach to
defend against known and unknown
threats. This approach was specifically
relevant during the integration of the
acquired Biosimilars business. Under the
approach, access to Company information
is limited to a need-to-know basis and
relevant internal controls are monitored to
ensure principles of least privilege access
that apply both internally and externally.
We have partnered with industry leaders
who provide us with intelligence on data
leakage across the Internet and Cloud
services. We ensure all our partners
provide solutions that will protect Biocon

Biologics'information by design. Violations
of the Company’s policies are addressed
through disciplinary actions and are
closely monitored.

Our computing devices are equipped
with next-generation technologies to
detect and respond to threats as and
when they occur. Effective controls are
built in to prevent any potential data
leaks in all approved mobile devices.
Security gateways and intrusion
detection mechanisms protect against
attacks on our digital infrastructure,
including capabilities that use Artificial
Intelligence and Machine Learning to
configure defenses. Our participation
in security communities in India and
outside also helps us update defenses
proactively as we learn from others’
experiences. Assessing and monitoring
our digital computing infrastructure is
an ongoing program, and we work with
industry experts to continually assess
and remediate vulnerabilities and other
weaknesses as and when we discover
them.

Our information security program is
aligned to the guidelines and regulations
required by authorities within and

outside the countries we operate from.

In FY24, we broadened the scope of

our Information Security Management
System (ISMS) to include our facilities in
Malaysia and Chennai. These facilities

have now achieved certification under the
ISO 27001:2013 standards. Consequently,
all our facilities are now certified in
accordance with these standards. Aligning
to industry standards helps us maintain
continuous rigor of training everyone with
access to Biocon Biologics information at
least annually. We regularly host Townhalls
and other Cybersecurity Awareness
campaigns.

All our business functions participate
through information security working
groups, which consist of business experts
who identify and govern processes and
procedures for information protection.

Over 20 major system integration projects implemented for integration of the acquired Biosimilars business

Transparent reporting,
global legal contracts
and policies
management

Extended ERP system
across global supply
chain network with
integrated business

Compliant promotional
material management,
brand websites and
consent management

Best-in-class customer
relationship management
systems for global Sales
and Medical teams

Digital Customer
Experience and
Commercial
Operations

planning
Drug Safety and .
4 . . Globalized Suppl
Regulatory Information \‘ Dlgltal Desired Ch:inal\lifworukpxi{h
Management Systems Enablers Outcomes Regulatory Compliance

Global Travel and
Expense management,
HRMS and payroll

management
Advanced Cloud-based
data management
platform for storage,
analytics and archival

Integrated Global
Employee Experience
and Business Insights

New tech platforms introduced with Cloud and Mobile First strategy, making the post-acquisition landscape future-ready
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THE INTEGRATION EFFECT

An opportunity to build a purpose-driven organization, with every
employee determined to make a significant impact on global

healthcare through biosimilar medicines.
Leaders’ Perspective

e A
“When | joined Biocon Biologics, it was evident that

the integration of the acquired business was not just
about seizing a business opportunity; it presented a
unique chance to create a purpose-driven organization
committed to making a profound impact on patients’
health. With our global mission to transform healthcare,
we have attracted talented individuals from Viatris and
other pharmaceutical companies, while also assembling
a new leadership team. By successfully overcoming
multiple challenges related to processes, procedures,
documentation to meet local regulations, we have
demonstrated our determination to succeed against all
odds!

Helene Zemliakova,
Associate Vice President HR, Europe & Emerging Markets

L L)

s

“The integration was a testament to our teamwork

and dedication. We had to work with partners in
multiple continents and liaise with multiple regulatory
agencies who had their specific local requirements.

The team managed to pull this off in record time while
maintaining our commitment to patients. Many hours of
hard work, sharing lessons learned, leveraging existing
relationships and relentless focus were key to making
this a successful transition.”

Karan Cariappa,

Head - Marketing & Strategic Programs, Emerging
Markets

>

‘| feel proud to be a part of the journey where this
complex integration exercise was completed in such a
short period of time. What made project challenging was
its scope, given the complexity and uniqueness of each
market — whether in North America, Europe or JANZ.
This accomplishment was possible due to the tireless
efforts and dedication of our incredible group of people.
As we now move on to the next stage of our journey as
One Biocon Biologics, we look forward to continuing to
make a positive impact in the healthcare industry and to
patients' lives”

Milind Dalal,
Head — Advanced Markets Strategy & Analytics )
L)

‘| chose to join Biocon Biologics because of three factors:
the people, the opportunity to be part of something big
and finally, purpose. The more | learned about Biocon
Biologics, the more | learned about “the why” behind

the purpose of the organization - to provide access to
high-quality medications for those that may not have
previously had this as an option. Doing this with great
people and helping build a footprint in the U.S. knowing
the positive impact Biocon has on patients continues to

Head of North America Commercial Excellence

excite me
’)

Jeff Noah,
N

“It has been a great learning and invigorating experience of leading the marketing communications for the most complex
integration of the acquired business in a short time frame. We overcame a labyrinth of challenges during the strategic
transition of brand, product artworks and promotional assets across more than 100 countries, aligning with multiple
international regulatory frameworks and synchronizing cross-functional teams. The collective innovative problem-solving
and resilience enabled us to complete this exercise a year ahead of schedule. Our success reflected the team’s agility and
commitment to excellence, and ensured seamless transition of business across Advanced and Emerging Markets!"

Saurabh Narain, Associate Vice President, Global Marketing Communications ’>
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Human Capital
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Biocon Biologics believes in a workplace
culture that integrates individual career
aspirations with the organization’s purpose
of finding solutions to address patients’
needs.

We take pride in our ability to seamlessly
blend diverse global talent into our
organizational fabric. Following the
integration of the acquired business,
Biocon Biologics witnessed a rapid
influx of diverse talent, transforming us
into a globally inclusive workforce. By
emphasizing a shared sense of purpose
and values, we were able to set the tone
for a collaborative and inclusive work

Aligned to SDGs

environment. By the end of FY24, we had
5,467 employees spread across the world.

Beyond the integration, during the

year, we focused on designing and
implementing an industry-leading skills
framework that included significant
transformations in our Learning &
Development (L&D), growth and
performance management systems.
Apart from this, we renewed our focus on
‘culture and belongingness. We continued
our efforts towards encouraging diversity
and inclusion, adherence to human rights
and employee engagement.



Human Capital

Key Highlights

29%

Women Employees in FY24

20

Rs Million Invested in L&D
Programs in FY24

64%

Employee Engagement
Score - Great Place to Work
(GPTW) Survey

221,898

Hours, of Learning Imparted
vs 24% in FY23

Cumulatively Across all our
Programs in FY24

We held multiple orientation sessions to
help the new employees understand our
vision, values, and ways of working. These
sessions also covered rewards, benefits,
Learning & Development, and other
processes. Additionally, we mapped their
skills to define roles and responsibilities,

At Biocon Biologics, we encourage

a culture of openness, which allows
every employee to speak up. In FY24,
we leveraged digital tools to make the
feedback process seamless.

Integrating a Global Workforce

As part of the integration of the acquired
business, 250+ individuals came over from
Viatris to Biocon Biologics. As a responsible
employer, our top priority was to ensure

a smooth transition of the employees. In

addition to employees and capabilities
transitioning from Viatris, we onboarded
experienced, global talent from the market
and built new organizational capabilities
from the ground up in many areas.

which informed their learning needs
assessment.

‘Skills First’ Approach
We understand that identifying, developing and retaining highly skilled employees is a key contributor to our position as a market leader.
We also realize that skill shortage, especially Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) talent, is a global concern. To tide
over this challenge, and to ensure optimum performance of our talent pool, we have adopted a ‘Skills First "approach*.

Stage in Employee | The Conventional Skills First Approach Impact
Journey Approach

Workforce planning

Demand for and
supply of specific roles
determined on the
assumption that skill
requirements remain
unchanged over time.

Create a'workforce for
tomorrow, in alignment
with long-term business
strategy.

For Biocon Biologics: Availability of talent pipeline that is
resilient and agile enough to respond to changes.

For the employee: Wider opportunities for candidates
with varied skillsets.

Identifying potential

Focus on educational

Focus on skills, which

For Biocon Biologics: A greater talent pool to select the

employees qualifications and could be developed right fit from.
degrees. through experience and For the employee: Better chance to get selected for
micro / online courses. ) ) .
candidates with varying backgrounds.
Employee Limited emphasis on A dynamic curriculum For Biocon Biologics: Employees equipped with updated
development (L&D) | developing role-based, | that adapts to industry and relevant skillsets.
applicable skillsets. changes and gmphamzes For the employee: Skill development to enable growth
practical application over o :
within and outside the Company.
theory-based pedagogy.
Performance Performance metrics Compensating people For Biocon Biologics: Higher employee engagement

management &
growth

tend to be based solely
on operational criteria.

to help build and retain
critical skills within the
organization, apart from
operational (role-specific)
criteria.

and retention on account of all-round performance
management.

For the employee: Continued professional and personal
growth; clarity about next best role.

Cross-cutting elements: Organizational Culture and Values

*The term “Skills-First"is used to describe a new approach to talent management that emphasizes a person’s skills and competencies — rather than degrees, job histories or job
titles — with regard to attracting, hiring, developing, and redeploying talent. Source: World Economic Forum
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Improving Employees’ Operational Efficiency

Our CoF for Operational Excellence continues to play a significant role in enabling employee development and enhancing productivity.
Our innovative process optimization strategy encourages employee participation, ensuring improved uptake and program sustainability.
The Cok follows a 5S approach.

Streamlining Efficiency with 5S — A Lean Thinking Method

5S What it Intends to Achieve Common Benefits

Sort (Seiri) Reduction of redundancy in processes = Minimal pre-audit preparation

Set in Order (Seiton) Systematic arrangement for easy access = Reduced errors in audits / inspections

Shine (Sei A dwell-maintained " = Reduced search and processing times
ine (Seiso) clean and well-maintained workspace » Increased storage space

Standardize (Seiketsu) Regulation of the first 3 processes = Visually appealing workspaces

Sustain (Shitsuke) Continuation of the first 4 processes

To enhance the adoption of practices under 55, Awards Received in FY24
various zones and sub-zones are created within the . -
Confederation of Indian Industry | = 5 Gold awards

(CI): Institute of Quality, National = 1 Platinum award
Kaizen Competition = 3 Sjlver award

key facilities that act as model workspaces. Select
employees, trained in these good practices, have
been allocated the responsibility of '5S auditor’
Based on these internal audits, well-performing Quality Circle Forum of India (QCFI) | = 1 Distinguished award
teams are recognized in the Group CoE Award 0 1 Colld amae
Ceremony, some of which are then nominated for » 4 Silver awards
awards by external organizations looking into quality
excellence and process improvements.

We have started including 55-based trainings as part of our employee onboarding program to help new joiners imbibe these efficient
ways of working from Day One.
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Continuous Learning and
Development

Learning and Development pathways
at Biocon Biologics are created using
the 'Skills First"approach explained
earlier in his report. This starts with a
comprehensive survey conducted by
an in-house 'Skills Academy’to map
existing and potential skills needed in

the biosimilars and larger pharmaceutical
industry, leading to the creation of a

skills taxonomy. The identified skill sets
are further grouped under eight broad
categories, against which the skill sets

of existing employees are mapped. This
mapping is done in two ways: assessment
by self and assessment by manager. The
gaps and misalignments identified help

Human Capital

shape the hiring needs as well as the L&D
pathways for existing employees. Our
goal is to create ‘'hyper personal learning
journeys'for our employees.

During FY24, we invested Rs 20 million in
Learning and Development programs. All
our programs cumulatively amounted to
221,898 hours of learning.

Key Learning & Development Programs in FY24

Technical Skills

Specialized training for Malaysia
employees in Bio Agrotech and Bio
Pharmaceutical Employability &
Entrepreneurship from the Ministry of
Science, Technology, and Innovation.

B-Nurtured - Young Leadership Program
(YLP) and Set Up Program (SUP), catering
to 110 individuals, unfolds in two phases.

Phase 1: Five-day orientation to give a
deep understanding of organizational
culture, policies, and core functions
spanning Manufacturing, R&D, and Quality
Assurance.

Phase 2: Three-day hands-on training
on collaborating with partners like
Merck and Biozeen, enhancing practical
competencies vital for professional
growth.

Performance Management

Our performance management system

is underpinned by organizational
priorities and Company goals. We have
departmental scorecards that guide
individual functions in identifying,
prioritizing, and tracking employees’
strategic contributions. The process
integrates ESG and diversity goals, shaping
individual objectives, which undergo a
comprehensive year-end assessment.
Every employee has access to their
department’s scorecard and individual
scores. Performance conversations occur
annually, with additional touchpoints
available for more frequent discussions, if
desired by the employee.

Leadership / Soft Skills

Young Leadership Development Program
for new joiners.

High-Potential Leadership Development
Program conducted by the Indian Institute
of Management, Bangalore, for mid- to
senior-level employees.

BioAspire to nurture high-potential
individuals with specialized skills and
leadership capabilities.

Managerial Effectiveness Program that
equips managers with tools and strategies
for effective team management and
organizational success.

Performance management at Biocon
Biologics is being carried out through the
‘MyHub'tool. During FY24, we piloted a
360-degree feedback system for a target
group of senior leadership team members,
providing valuable insights for personal
and professional development.

We re-calibrated our performance
management system during the year to
incorporate the following:

= Raising awareness about various biases,
such as recency bias, affinity bias or any
such biases, which may inadvertently
influence evaluation decisions.

= Encouraging managers to be open to
diverse views and self-reflect in order to

Culture and Belongingness

Training on Unconscious Bias to help
individuals recognize and mitigate biases
they may not be aware of, fostering
inclusivity, fairness, and better decision-
making in the workplace and beyond.

We conduct this session on Day One of
onboarding. We covered 1,370 employees
this year.

Culture and Values coaching on the
importance of demonstrating the 5
core values of Biocon Biologics in one’s
actions and behavior. [t emphasizes the
3Ps - Purpose, Pride, Performance. In
FY24, coaching was provided to 4,000+
employees across the globe.

identify and consciously eliminate biases
in their assessment processes.

= Promoting open communication and
transparency, ensuring that individuals
understand the criteria used for evaluation,
and have the opportunity to provide
feedback.

= Advocating for data-driven decisions
and transparent communication to
uphold the principles of DEl in the
calibration process.
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Diversity and Inclusion, as a Way
of Life

At Biocon Biologics, our dedication to
diversity and inclusion is fundamental

to our organizational ethos. We strive

to elevate women to leadership roles,
valuing their distinct perspectives

and contributions. Through Employee
Resource Groups (ERGs) like the Biocon
Women Network (BWN), Back to Work
Network and New Moms Network, Gen Z
and Gen Y Network, we provide extended
maternity leave and flexible work
arrangements, enabling our employees
to balance personal and professional
responsibilities. Our ERGs cater to diverse
needs, including support for differently
abled individuals and initiatives promoting
LGBTO+ inclusion. Panel discussions and
sensitization workshops further facilitate
dialogue and understanding. We have 8
employees with us who are differently
abled.

With 29% female employees and 18%
women on our Board, we continue to

champion diversity and inclusion as
integral components of our corporate
culture. Our long-term vision is to foster
an environment where all individuals feel
valued, respected, and empowered to

thrive, regardless of gender or background.

Women in STEM-based Roles

We continue to consciously onboard
women across STEM-based roles such as

Key Initiatives for Women in STEM

= Onboarded 130 women interns
during FY24. 44% of them have
transitioned into full-time employees
in our facilities.

= Gender balance workshops across
functions, aimed at raising awareness
and fostering a balanced and
inclusive work culture.

= We have seven Employee Resource
Groups (ERGs) that focus on gender
inclusion.

Manufacturing, R&D and Quality. Across
these three functions, we had 44% women
employees during the financial year. We
are proud to state that our R&D function
currently has an almost equal proportion
of men and women.

= [ aunched Bioleap, a development
journey program specifically designed
for women, focusing on their
professional growth and leadership
development within the organization.

= Favorable shift timings for women
employees in Manufacturing and
Quality.
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Women in Leadership

Of the 144 employees at managerial
positions and above, 16% are women.
We have several initiatives designed to
support our women employees.

= The Women Leadership Development
Program aims to empower top talentin
higher education, specifically targeting
45+ women employees. This initiative
focuses on promoting self-development
and educational advancement, offering
opportunities for growth and leadership
enhancement. Participants will benefit
from curated courses and resources from
premier institutes, fostering personal and
professional growth while championing
diversity and leadership excellence within
the organization.

= |n recognition of the significant
contributions of women in STEM-based
roles, we organized an event dedicated to
celebrating them. With participation from
85+ women employees, we highlighted
their achievements and recognized their
valuable contributions to the field. The

positive feedback received highlighted
the importance of acknowledging and
appreciating the efforts of women in
scientific industries.

Diversity in Supply Chain

We have initiated DEI-based training
sessions for our suppliers and are
preparing to undertake a supplier diversity
assessment in the coming year. During
our Suppliers’Conclave, we carried out an
interactive session with select suppliers on
inclusive practices at the workplace.

Gender Pay Parity Assessments

Last year, we collaborated with an external
consultant to conduct a Pay Equity

Study. We analyzed incumbent data and
designed statistical models to evaluate
the impact of gender on pay equity. A
detailed review was then done to identify
drivers contributing to the pay gap and,
accordingly, remediation scenarios were
shared with the relevant teams.

Human Capital

India

Women: Men
Earnings per
Rupee

Malaysia

~0.94 ~0.97

Recognition of our focus in DEI

= One of the Top 3 companies for
Sustainability & DEI in Malaysia by LIFE AT
WORK Awards (LAWA).

= “PoSH Trailblazer Award” & “Safe
Workplace Advocate Award” at the PoSH
conclave by 'NoMeansNo.

= Best Organisations for Women 2024" &
“DEI Crusader” Award by Times Group.

= Among the Top 5 Most Innovative
Practices'in Women Diversity &
Development by JobsForHer.

10 Inclusive Leadership Behaviors at Biocon Biologics

Continuous learning for Compliance and ethical Entrepreneurial skills
high-performance culture practices

Data integrity and Sustainable future

quality focus with ESG mindset

Renewed Focus on
Organizational Culture &
Belongingness

We believe that a clear Purpose and Pride
in our work will help us consistently deliver
exceptional Performance.

Setting up a dedicated Culture and Values
Department at Biocon Biologics was an
important milestone for us during the
financial year. As a company that focuses
on driving employee engagement,
encouraging a positive work environment
and creating a convergence between
organization values, employee beliefs and
ways of working, having a dedicated team
focused on culture is crucial.

One of the key initiatives of this newly
created department is the Culture and
Value Roadshow. This was designed to
instill the concept of belongingness
and reiterate Company values in our
employees. More than 4,100 employees
participated in the roadshow.

Our team shared value demonstration
stories, focusing on themes like
performance-driven culture, ethics, and
integrity.

We emphasize workspaces where
everyone feels psychologically and
physically safe. One of the ways we do this
is by encouraging a culture of 'Speaking
Up'&'Demonstrate Performance- and
Quality-Driven Behaviors!

What is the purpose of your existence?
What drives you?

o0
R<a

Purpose

oBo
e

Performance

How and why do you
take pride in being a part
of Biocon Biologics?

How do purpose & pride
enable you for high
performance?
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The initiatives of the Culture and Values Department form an integral part of our employee engagement framework, "ROW Together
GROW Together” (RTGT), launched in the previous financial year.

Global Employee Survey

During FY24, 75% of our employees
participated in the Great Place to Work
(GPTW) survey and our engagement score
was 64%. The score has had a percentage
drop from last year and we are actively
looking into the root causes behind

this. However, we had an increase in the
participation rate in this year's survey.

In Europe and NorAm, especially, the
participation rate was an impressive 92%
and 85%, respectively. The survey results
showed that the biggest pull factors for
the employees at Biocon Biologics have
been the pride associated with the brand
and leadership capabilities to bring about
a positive and transformative change.

Employee Wellbeing and Benefits

Physical and Mental Wellbeing

= Annual health check-up

= |In-house doctor support

= Employee Assistance Program (EAP) — 100%
Company-funded and third party-managed

= Stress management & mental health support

= Gymnasium

= Financial rewards

= Restricted Stock
Units (RSUs) granted
to 70% employees

Other Support Services

= Creche facility for both parents

= Kindergarten - Set up as part of creche facility for all
children up to 6 years of age. 100% contributed by
Biocon Biologics

= Children’s education allowance (yearly) for employees
in India, over and above CTC

= 100% financial sponsorship for higher education of

employees

We have a robust Rewards and Recognition program that celebrates the contributions and achievements at every stage of an employee’s
life cycle. The Achievers'League platform enables peer-to-peer, top-down and bottom-up recognition. The active socialization on this
platform affirms how our culture of appreciation is a key motivation and engagement driver.

Transitioning to a‘Digital First’
Human Resource Management
During the year, we made significant
investments in digitally transforming our
human resource management systems
and processes. This was a timely step given
that we had the task of integrating 250+
employees with us from 25+ countries.
This number is bound to only increase as

we strengthen our global presence further.

Multiple platforms are being deployed
to streamline, automate and efficiently
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manage HR-oriented processes, such as
employee lifecycle management, talent
acquisition, workforce planning and HR
administration. We are exploring further
consolidation and integration of platforms
within a unified Human Resources
Management Information System (HRMIS).

We have linked all our employee-facing
modules, such as performance, learning
modules and information, including
employee policies and supporting

systems, into MyHub, an easy-to-use,
single-window platform.

(::} myHub



What our Digital Platforms Have Achieved

Streamlined employee
onboarding and offloading

Employee Health and Safety
Biocon Biologics has been re-certified
with ISO 45001:2018 for Occupational
Safety and Health Management System
by TUV Rhineland for EHS Management
System Standard requirements. We
have maintained this status for seven
consecutive years with zero non-
conformities.

Employee Health and Safety (EHS) is a
key contributor to improving workplace
culture, and it begins with our leaders

Key EHS Initiatives in FY24

= Reduction of conflict zones in
movement pathways on our premises
and parking locations, and raising
awareness for the same with support
from the Global Communications Team.

EHS Awards Received in FY24

Our industry-leading efforts towards
health and safety have been recognized
by well-known bodies.

taking an active role in reiterating the
importance of safe practices, within and
beyond workplaces. We have mandatory
on-the-job safety training modules (NEO-
EHS) for our new joiners. We have 10
modules focused on health and safety for
our existing employees, broadly covering
topics such as overview of EHS systems,
chemical safety, laboratory safety, safety in
process operations, operating emergency
and safety equipment.

= National Safety Week campaign at

all Biocon Biologics facilities in India,
focusing on the importance of thorough
risk assessment and active management,
guidance and two-way communication,
and employee involvement.

= Unnatha Suraksha Puraskar by the
National Safety Council - Karnataka
Chapter

= OHSE Excellence Award by the World
Safety Organization

Human Capital

Real-time and automated
travel expense management

We encourage two-way communication
between our employees and senior
management, related to safety within
the workplace. This forms part of

our structured health and safety
communications plan.

We publish safety bulletins as a part of
our regular internal communications

with details on safety-related initiatives,
events such as National Safety Week, good
practices and recognition of individual
efforts in building a safe workplace.

= Mock drills for internal and external
risk factors.

= Awareness session for our employees
in Malaysia on the risks of prolonged
noise exposure and mitigative
technigues against noise-induced
hearing loss.

= |nternational Safety Award by the
British Safety Council

Human Rights

Our dedicated policy on Human Rights
takes a Zero Tolerance approach towards
child and forced labor, non-discrimination
and harassment of any nature on grounds
of race, color, religion, age, gender, sexual
orientation, nationality, disability, political
opinion, and other factors. The policy
extends freedom of association to all its
employees.

Our other policies, such as Code of
Conduct, Business Partner/ Supplier
Code of Conduct, Prevention of

Sexual Harassment at Workplace,
Grievance Redressal Mechanism, Biocon
Whistleblower and Integrity Policy,
Employment Policy and Environmental
Policy, supplement the human rights
policy.

Employees can raise concerns with the
Culture & Values Department, which
handles all harassment and discrimination
issues, excluding sexual harassment. The
Internal Complaints Committee looks

at sexual harassment complaints, as per
provisions of PoSH rules, and they can be
reported at posh.ic@biocon.com.

For reporting instances of bias,
discrimination and harassment,
employees can send an email to
workplace.culturevalues@biocon.com. We
have also launched a'Speak-Up'hotline
for raising business integrity-related
issues. Matters under the provisions of
Whistleblower and Integrity Policy can be
reported to integritybiologics@biocon.
com, while issues under the provisions

of the Code of Conduct, Anti-Bribery and
Corruption and Conflict of Interest can be
raised at gec.biologics@biocon.com.
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THE INTEGRATION EFFECT

Joining hands to take on a monumental
task, fueled by a shared sense of unity and

collaboration that steers us towards triumph.

Commercial Team’s Perspective

( ) (
“Throughout the integration process, we were
racing against time. When | joined, we faced
the monumental task of transitioning over 200
commercial access contracts, crucial for ensuring
our products’presence in the U.S. and Canada. The
odds were stacked against us and many doubted
our ability to meet the transition deadline of
September 1, 2023. However, the challenge only
fueled my determination and that of the team,
driving us to work even harder to achieve our goal.
The support and camaraderie of those around me
were additional sources of motivation. | find great
inspiration in the North America leadership team,
and within this organization, there’s a palpable
sense of solidarity and teamwork that propels us
toward success”

Marcy Grishkevich,
Senior Director of Contracts, North America

“I've been impressed by the speed, commitment,
and hard work the Company has shown in this
integration process. This energy inspires me,
and I'm honored to be part of this new chapter.
| often say that if medication were enough, we
wouldn't still have so many diseases burdening
our patients. To me, Biocon Biologics is precisely
a’'beyond the pill solution, a partner to the
stakeholders impacting patients’journeys,
promoting greater access to revolutionary
therapies and facilitating favorable clinical
outcomes!

Luiz Vieira,
Medical Manager, LATAM

|\ /_.> -

>
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“It's been an immense pleasure for me to be

part of the integration process and contribute

to establishing a new global company in Brazil,
equipped with a wide portfolio of high-quality
biosimilars ready for launch. I am confident that
we can position Biocon Biologics as a trusted and
reliable company, and over the coming years,
grow and consolidate our leadership in biosimilar
medicines in Brazil”

Jaacqueline Paiva,
Marketing Manager, Brazil

~
“Our transition from Viatris to Biocon Biologics
has been nothing short of transformative. It has
not only opened up new avenues for growth
but has also reignited our sense of purpose,
invigorating our efforts as we strive to make

a meaningful impact in the lives of patients
worldwide!

Elaine Hefer,
National Sales Manager, South-Africa

& /_.> &
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Natural Capital

At Biocon Biologics, we are integrating
responsible and sustainable business
practices in our day-to-day operations to
create a better tomorrow for people and
the planet.

As we expand our commercial footprint
across the world and pursue new growth
opportunities, post-integration of Viatris’
global Biosimilars business, we are working
towards aligning our environmental
practices with the good practices in the
countries where we operate.

Natural Capital

Aligned to SDGs

Through our efficient management of
energy, waste, water, and biodiversity,
we aim to make sustainable utilization of
resources and minimize environmental
impact. In FY24, our key initiatives
included implementation of energy-
efficient systems such as aerodynamic
cooling tower fans and rooftop solar
panels, implementation of re-usable
technology and solvent recovery
processes to reduce waste, and a water
audit and risk assessment to help conserve
freshwater at our manufacturing units.
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Key Highlights

46%

Electricity Requirements are
from Renewable Sources

Environment Management &
Governance

Biocon Group's Environment, Occupational
Health, Safety & Sustainability (EHSS) policy
guides our environmental actions. The
CSR and ESG Board Committee oversees
the EHSS Policy and management of
environmental initiatives. A team of
dedicated EHS specialists is accountable
for designing and implementing day-to-
day operations. Regular audits ensure that
preventive maintenance aligns with best
practices, resulting in increased efficiency.
Trainings for relevant teams and functions
are carried out by both internal and
external EHS experts.

11%

Waste Recycled

1,419

KLD Water Recycled

Climate Strategy

Our climate strategy is guided by a
decarbonization plan with the key
pathways being a shift to renewable
resources, operational efficiencies and
effective emissions management.

Climate Risk Assessment

To effectively manage climate risks, Biocon
and Biocon Biologics Limited are adopting
the TCFD (Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures) framework. Through
comprehensive Scenario Analysis, we
have identified physical risks (weather
events, supply chain disruptions, etc.) and
transition risks (changing regulations, legal

8,980

tCO,e Reduction in GHG
Emissions: Scope 1 &2

requirements, etc.), and will take actions to
mitigate them.

Ratings on Climate-Related
Disclosures and Performance
Biocon, including Biocon Biologics, has
received a rating of ‘B'for climate change,
and'C'for water security from the Carbon
Disclosure Project (CDP) in 2023.

Climate-Related Incentives

Our variable incentive structure includes
sustainability-related objectives with a
significant weightage for department-
specific goals.

Energy Management

In FY24, our manufacturing sites were re-certified for Environment Management System, under the I1SO 14001: 2015 standard
requirements. We are preparing to get ISO 50001 certification and are in the process of developing an energy management policy, as a

part of the certification.

Three-Pronged Approach to Energy Management

Approach
Energy-efficient systems

Key Pathways / Initiatives
Aerodynamic cooling tower fans

Impact
GHG savings of ~890 tCO.e

Motion sensor-equipped lights

Centralized chilled water system in two of our mAbs
manufacturing facilities

Optimized relative humidity control process without hot water
usage

Optimized compressed air distribution system

Replaced half of Compact Fluorescent Lamps (CFL bulbs) with
Light-Emitting Diode (LED) bulbs and installed motion sensor
lighting in common spaces at the Malaysia facility

Installed energy-efficient axial flow fans at the Malaysia facility

Shift to renewable source of energy | Rooftop solar panels at the Malaysia facility ~201CO,e annually

1,130 tCO,e annually

Alternate transportation options Transitioned to sea-based freight

For our India operations, 85% of the electricity requirements are sourced from renewable sources, and if we include our Malaysia
operations, this stands at 46%. Our energy saving initiatives have contributed to the reduction of our Scope 1 and 2 emissions by 9% this
year. We are currently in the process of setting mid-term targets for Scope 1 and 2 emissions, based on a scenario analysis conducted.
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Natural Capital

Pr2s ec0,0 | P13 100

Scope 1 Emissions 8,491 8,256
Scope 2 Emissions 78,721 87,936
Total Emissions (Scope 1 &2) 87,212 96,192

Biocon Biologics initiated its Scope 3 Emissions accounting with the baseline year as FY23, and the value has been calculated as 156,387
tCO e for FY23.

Rooftop Solar Power Project, Malaysia

We have completed installation of solar panels for our Drug
Substance, and Research and Development facilities, as

per plan. The panels are expected to generate more than
1,000 kWp of renewable energy. This marks the completion
of Phase 2 of our Rooftop Solar Project. In Phase 1, rooftop
panels were commissioned at the Central Utilities Facility,
which led to the generation of more than 386 KWp of
renewable energy. The initiative has the potential to reduce
our overall cost per unit of energy by 15%, and offset

~1.6 tCO e emissions every month, once active and utilized to
its full capacity.

at warehouses: With the reduction of

over 5,000 kg (80%) of plastic wrapping
consumption annually at our warehouses
by replacing it with CAM Buckle Pallet
Strap (Belts), we are able to avoid over 3
tCO,e annually. The tested practices will be
replicated in India from 2025 onwards.

batch of solvent, which helps us offset
about 0.9 tCO.e annually.

Waste Management

In FY24, we handed over 65 Tons of
waste to authorized recyclers. We have
onboarded specialized agencies that
support us in implementing integrated
waste management practices.

Apart from these two initiatives, we
carried out optimizations of our effluent
treatment plant and recycled paper waste
through authorized recyclers.

The following initiatives are part of our

We comply with the amended ‘Plastic
circular economy strategy:

Solvent recovery processes: In our

Malaysia facility, we are able to recover
about 1,500 MT of Acetonitrile with 99%
purity. This means we do not need a new

Implementation of re-usable technology
to replace disposable shrink wrapping

Waste Management Rules’ of the Central
Pollution Control Board (CPCB), including
Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR).

Reducing Environmental Impact of our Products with Environment-Friendly Reusable Insulin Pens

We have been manufacturing reusable insulin pens since 2011. These pens are cheaper than their disposable
counterparts, and they also lead to waste reduction. We are actively looking to increase the share of these reusable pens
in all our markets apart from India, where they already account for more than 40% of the total pens supplied.

\
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Water Management

In FY24, our efforts towards water
management in our facilities in India
were guided by an internal water audit
and risk assessment. The findings of the
assessment helped us conserve 100 KLD
of freshwater within our manufacturing
processes.

In our Malaysia facility, implementing
Scaleban technology has helped us
achieve a recycle rate of almost 500m?

of water per day, significantly reducing
freshwater intake. We are piloting a
rainwater harvesting system with a
harvesting capacity of 1,000 liters of
rainwater. We are planning to expand the
capacity to 25,000 liters.

We had set targets for water recycling as a
part of our Sustainability Linked Loan (SLL),
and we are proud to state that in both the
current and previous financial year, we
have surpassed the targets.

Water Recycled (in KLD)

Target | Achieved

FY24 (2023-24) 1,000 1419
FY23 (2022-23) 900 941

Air Quality Management

We have installed an Ambient Air Quality
Monitoring System (AAQMYS) at Biocon’s
Special Economic Zone Area, which
captures air quality data around a 5km
radius of the facility. The data is fed into
Karnataka State Pollution Control Board's
(KSPCB) website, enabling real-time
monitoring. To ensure workplace hygiene,
we conduct thorough indoor air quality
checks every six months. For continuous
monitoring, we use EVM (Environmental
Monitor) to measure various factors,
including particulate sampling, volatile
organic compounds, dust and average
temperature.

Biodiversity Management

Our commitment and efforts towards
biodiversity and land conservation

are rooted in our Biodiversity and No
Deforestation Policy. Provisions under the

policy are implemented and monitored by

our CSR and ESG teams in collaboration
with other related departments. We
conducted an Impact Assessment
internally to identify the adverse impact
of our operations on the surrounding
ecosystem. The study also helped us
inventorize the surrounding flora and
fauna. The results of the assessment will
help us finalize the level of commitment
needed towards conservation.

We have continued our efforts towards
afforestation and plastic-free initiatives,
which are largely driven by our employees.
Some of these include:

Bengaluru Plantation Drive: Planted
5,000+ saplings in Bengaluru.

Malaysia Biologics Woodlands Project:
Planted 1,000+ trees in collaboration with
local authorities, within and outside the
Biocon Malaysia premises.

Be Plastic-Free: Beach clean-up and waste
plastic collection campaign in Malaysia.

Malaysia Green Initiative: Distributed
250+ saplings to employees in Malaysia to
promote accountability towards positive
environmental action and raise awareness.
Our employees also undertook lake
cleaning under this initiative.

Combating Water Pollution in Rivers:
Deployed 5,000+ mud balls in a river in
Malaysia to combat water pollution. These
balls, made of clay, organic materials, and
microorganisms, help decompose waste,
improve water quality, reduce odors, and
stabilize pH levels.

LT

Beach clean-up campaign in Malaysia

Product Life Cycle Assessments
During the financial year, we undertook
‘Gate to Gate'Life Cycle Assessments for
two of our commercial products using
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the SimaPro software. We are working
towards increasing the scope and extent
of assessments to more of our products
in the following years. The R&D team is
closely associated in this process and

studies the outcomes of the assessment.
This ensures integration of sustainability
considerations right from the product
development stage.



Social and Relationship Capital

Social and Relationship Capital

At Biocon Biologics, we believe in
synergistic collaborations with like-
minded partners to integrate each other’s
strengths to deliver on our humanitarian
purpose of making healthcare affordable
and accessible to even the poorest of
patients.

Our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
strategy reflects our purpose-driven
business philosophy.

In FY24, we continued to focus on
improving access to high-quality,
affordable Biosimilars for the benefit of
underserved communities in emerging
economies, providing education and
training for better disease management in

LMICs and helping communities around
our operations live better by improving
healthcare and civic infrastructure.
Through Biocon Foundation, we
invested in building resilient solutions
around healthcare, education, and the
environment.

We also strengthened our supply chain
and underlined our commitment to
ethical practices when it comes to selling
and marketing our products.

As a fully integrated, globally scaled
biosimilars enterprise, we look forward to
making a bigger impact on the lives of our
patients as well as other stakeholders.
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Key Highlights

120.3

Rs Million, CSR Expense

Enhancing Patient Access

One of the pillars of our mission is to
increase access to lifesaving biologics by
making high-quality biosimilars available
globally. Our commitment to access is
closely intertwined with affordability.
Biosimilars are typically priced lower than
the reference products. This, in turn, results
in lower out-of-pocket costs for patients
and increases affordability. In addition,

we provide multiple programs to make
drugs affordable and accessible to patients
belonging to a wide range of economic
backgrounds.

~55 Million*

Patients Benefited Through
our Biosimilars

Program in U.S.

Access and Affordability Pathways
Across Advanced Markets

We have adopted three-structured access
pathways for our Advanced Markets:

= Patient Services and Support Program
(PSSP)

= Patient Assistance Program (PAP)

= Advocacy aimed at enhancing
biosimilars'prevalence and uptake

The PSSPs work towards simplifying the
process of procuring a drug for a patient,
in an otherwise complex system between
the prescriber and end-user, i.e, the

~30,000

Patients Served Through
Patient Services and Support

~13,500

bGlargine Pens and Vials
Donated to Patients in LMICs

patient. The PSSPs act as hub between
these two entities, extending various kinds
of services such as injection reminders
that increase adherence, injection training
to ensure safe drug dosing, triaging
services to pharmacies to enable efficient
and timely drug access to patients, nursing
support and health coaching, all of which
lead to improved patient access and
health outcomes. In addition, through the
PSSPs, we offer generous copay assistance
to help navigate the out-of-pocket costs
for patients. This support ensures that
patients stay on therapy and do not
abandon due to financial constraints.
Finishing the therapy is vital to ensuring
recovery and/or maintenance of good
health.

Inthe U.S.,, we utilize external entities
such as hubs to support patients through
their journey. During FY24, we were able
to support ~30,000 patients through
these PSSPs for our four commercialized
biosimilars in the country.

For people with no health insurance,

and those who are underinsured, with

an annual income lower than a certain
threshold, we provide certain medicines

at no cost through our PAPs. In FY24, the
number of patients reached through our
PAPs increased by 1.6-fold to support 1,500
patients.

P
“Our partnership with Biocon Biologics since its launch in September 2023 has been marked by increased
volume in patients and dispenses. Through efficient communication and collaboration, we have
successfully implemented new programs, transitioned products, and assisted with program inquiries,
benefiting both patients and healthcare providers. We value our partnership and remain committed to
achieving success in improving patients'lives with access to medication.
Susanne Carroll,
Sonexus, Biocon Biologics'U.S. Patient Assistance Program partner
&

*12-month moving annual patient population (April 2023 to March 2024)
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Social and Relationship Capital

Our Advocacy Work in North organizations that help educate our peers in shaping industry’s advocacy
America stakeholders about the safety and efficacy agenda for a sustainable biosimilars

We have enhanced our focus on of biosimilar medicines and work to market. This provides us a platform to
responsibly advocating the uptake expand their access and availability. In further enhance Biocon Biologics' visibility
of biosimilars. In 2024, we joined the addition to our existing leadership position as a biosimilars leader, and helps us build
Biosimilars Forum in the U.S. and with the Association for Accessible external relationships with policymakers
Biosimilars Canada and the Canadian Medicines (AAM), through active to proactively advocate for favorable
Association for Pharmacy Distribution engagement within these key industry policies at the state and federal levels for
Management (CAPDM), key industry forums, we have a seat at the table with biosimilars in North America.

Our Key Donation-Based Programs in FY24

insm N ™
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INFECTING HOPE
SAVING LIVES

Insulin for Life

The number of people affected by diabetes globally is
expected to reach 643 million by 2030, and 783 million by
2045, and LMICs will be the worst hit, given their limited access
to insulin. Biocon Biologics, one of the leading global producers
of biosimilar insulins, is making the lifesaving drug accessible
and affordable in these countries through various programs.

In FY24, we collaborated with Insulin for Life, a U.S.-based
non-profit organization that provides insulin and diabetes
management supplies free of charge to diabetes patients by

collecting supplies and delivering them to disadvantaged Biocon Biologics donated approximately 12,500
regions. We donated approximately 12,500 Insulin Glargine insulin glargine injectable pens and 1,000 glargine
S ) . vials to ‘Insulin For Life
injection pens and 1,000 bGlargine vials.

*Insulin for Life is a-U.5. -basen'.r' profi fea i d to ding
Insulin for Life sends donated supplies to partner clinics and Uiabhcuminaatioecatile muliches

hospitals serving patients with all types of diabetes (Type 1,
Type 2, gestational) worldwide, with a focus on LMICs.

We are constantly engaged in making the experience of biosimilars better for our patients through our Patient Assistant Programs, which
is reflected in the positive feedback we received.

“You have been wonderful.

"You've have been
B wonderful...
hank you so very much!

Thank you!”

1.1 really +Thank you so much. |
your help

| appreciaté
e been really helpfu

You'v . u o
appreciate you--- “You guys are a big, big big help!

“l appreciate you helping me and doing the best you could. And thank you for helping
those who can't help themselves, you know, and | really appreciate you trying”’

- Beneficiaries of our Patient Assistance Program

for Glargine, in the U.S.
Dy
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Access Pathways Across Emerging
Markets

Product donations continue to remain a
key access pathway in Emerging Markets,
of which most of the countries are LMICs.
During the fiscal, we leveraged local
partnerships to maximize impact and
ensure program sustainability.

Our Studies on the Safety &
Benefits of Biosimilars

We have completed Phase Il of a study on
the effectiveness and safety of biosimilar
Insulin in People with Diabetes (PwD)

in the Philippines. We collaborated with
Reach52, a tech-based social enterprise
working on Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus
(T2DM) in underserved areas in the
country, which delivered Biocon Biologics’
biosimilar Insulin at an affordable price
(10 cents) to patients'doorsteps. This
resulted in a mean saving of 349 PHP/
month/patient and improved patients’
adherence to the treatment. Phase | of the
study, which included raising awareness,
diagnosis, and treatment, had been
presented at the International Diabetes
Foundation 2021.

To support a favorable environment
for the prevalence of biosimilars in
LMICs, we conducted a comparative
study in select countries where we
have a substantial market share (which
signifies a higher uptake of biosimilars
irrespective of the manufacturer) versus
countries with negligible market share,
focusing on benefits and challenges of
biosimilars uptake. The outcome report
includes proposed quality criteria for
selecting biosimilars, offering policy
recommendations for governments to

Action4
Diabetics.org

Action4Diabetes

In South-East Asia, hundreds of children from underprivileged communities
succumb to Type 1 Diabetes every year. The healthcare infrastructure in these
regions frequently faces a scarcity of resources, leading to a diminished rate of

T1D detection. Furthermore, once a diagnosis is established, the financial burden
of procuring insulin and glucose monitoring devices often proves prohibitive for
many families. Biocon Biologics has stepped in to fill that critical gap in Myanmar,
in collaboration with Action4Diabetes, a UK-based non-profit. In FY24, we provided
Insulin Glargine at subsidized cost to more than 100 young T1 diabetics, along with
reusable pens and funds to procure accessories to manage their disease.

create a more favorable environment

for access to biosimilars, and suggesting
criteria for payers to select biosimilars. It
also suggests pathways to increase uptake
in these countries and ways for biosimilar
companies to enable this change.

We are collaborating with the Clinton
Health Access Initiative (CHAI), under

its Cancer Assistance Partnership (CAP)
program, and the Ministry of Health (MoH)
in Nigeria and Tanzania to enhance access
to anti-cancer products in these countries.
The products are being provided at an
‘access price™.

Biocon Biologics has expanded its
strategic collaboration with Eris
Lifesciences, to provide access to its
portfolio of Metabolics, Oncology and
Critical Care brands in India. This strategic
collaboration aligns with Biocon Biologics'
strategy to maximize patient reach and
market potential, while unlocking value
from its Branded Formulations business in
India. The company has also signed a 10-
year supply agreement with Eris for these
products as a part of this collaboration.

Ethical Sales and Marketing

In January 2024, we published a Global
Policy on Interaction with Health Care
Professionals (HCPs) and Health Care
Organizations (HCOs)** and ensured that

our frontline marketing staff is well versed
with its provisions. Since Biocon Biologics
would now be front-facing markets in
120+ countries, our sales, marketing/
commercial teams have considered

all country-specific norms for such
interactions and promotional activities,
wherever applicable. All sales and
marketing employees have been trained
according to the provisions in the policy.

To get real-world inputs on patient
requirements and feedback on our
products, we systematically interact with
HCPs and HCOs. While this often involves
compensating the HCPs/HCOs for their
time and effort, we do so in an ethical, fair
and transparent manner, and report on
such transfer of values for jurisdictions in
which it is mandatory. Aspects related to
transfer of value are also guided by the
Global Policy on Interaction with HCPs and
HCOs.

During FY24, we did not receive any
complaints of false or biased claims
and malpractices related to marketing
activities.

*Government Mediated Access Price (GMAP) is a policy mechanism where the government negotiates with pharmaceutical companies to lower the prices of certain drugs to

make them more accessible to the population.

**https://www.bioconbiologics.com/docs/Global-Policy-on-Interaction-with-HCP-and-HCO.pdf
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In FY24, we served ~5.5 million patients
globally with our wide range of
affordable high-quality biosimilars. With
eight commercialized products across
120+ countries for various therapeutic
areas, including diabetes, oncology and

immunology, we make high-quality
therapies and solutions accessible
to patients, healthcare systems, and
governments worldwide.

Dose of Hope:

A Cancer Survivor’s Story
Kumudha Raju is one of the millions
of women who have survived HER2-

positive breast cancer with the treatment

of a biosimilar Trastuzumab. This is the
most common cancer subtype, with 90
new cases per 100,000 women being
reported worldwide in 2024.

K. Raju was diagnosed with breast cancer
and a lumpectomy had to be carried

out, which meant she was subjected to
16 brutal cycles of chemotherapy and
radiotherapy. She was also prescribed 17
cycles of bTrastuzumab infusions.

bTrastuzumab, an affordable, high-
quality biosimilar, has given a new
lease of life to millions of patients like

K. Raju battling breast cancer. Biocon’s
bTrastuzumab was launched in India in
2014, and by 2017, it was also approved
by the US. FDA, thus becoming the first
biosimilar Trastuzumab to be approved
anywhere in the world.

Post-treatment, K. Raju rediscovered
the resolve to lead a fulfilling life and
became a beacon of hope for fellow
cancer survivors.

Social and Relationship Capital

While narrating her story, she said, “I'm
feeling so much more positive now. |
hope my story inspires other women

to be self-aware and they go for regular
tests, since early detection is key to beat
cancer”’

Our Global Supply Chain

Our supply chain operations underwent
major changes and capacity increase as
a result of the integration, with our total
supplier count going up by 73% in FY24.
To carry out key tasks in-house, which
were earlier undertaken by Viatris, we
augmented our people, processes and
supporting technologies.

We onboarded talent for strategic roles,
such as ESG in supply chain, international
logistics, regulatory affairs, data analytics,
and strengthened our sales, marketing and
forecasting teams through comprehensive
training programs aimed at tackling a
global footprint and various regional
expectations.

Organizational processes were redesigned
to ensure enhanced coordination
between these teams and manufacturing
operations, with the sole objective of not
delaying or missing out on orders in 120+
countries across the globe. Through the
use of our Integrated Business Planning
(IBP) tool, we conduct monthly demand
forecasting processes and communicate
the same to upstream and downstream
functions.

In FY24, new supply chains were
established, which included the creation
of 40+ transportation links (@amounting
to our total transportation links being
more than 300 across the globe) and 25+
distribution centers spread across various
countries.

We have completely digitized our supply
chains and use planning tools to monitor
movement and transactions in real time,
as well as to ensure compliance with
regulatory standards and to safeguard
product integrity. We have established

a centralized ‘control tower’to manage
shipments across the globe.

Sustainability Across our Supply
Chain

We believe that responsibility does not
stop within our boundaries but extends to
all the entities we partner with, including
our suppliers, contract manufacturing
organizations (CMOs) and other business
partners. We have various provisions and
initiatives that help us build a responsible
supply chain.

https://www.bioconbiologics.com/docs/BBL-Business-Partner-Code-of-Conduct.pdf

Supplier Engagement and Capacity
Building

We have developed a standalone ‘Business
Partner Code of Conduct”, which includes
principles and aspirations of the Company
across ESG considerations that we would
like our partners to diligently implement
in their operations and improve their

ESG journey. We have communicated
these to all new and 80% of existing
business partners (suppliers, CMOs and
other partners) and have mandated an
acknowledgement on the Code.

Apart from this, during the financial year,
we conducted three capacity building
workshops covering 137 suppliers. Topics
covered in the sessions included climate
change, diversity, equity and inclusion,
business ethics, human rights, labor
management, materiality and emerging
regulations. We will continue to conduct
such sessions in the following years to
build a responsible supply chain. For our
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(MSME) partners, we are extending one-
on-one support.
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Supplier Conclave
2023

= &
'% S In August 2023, we
IO held a Global Supplier

Conclave in Bengaluru,
where 100+ supply chain partners
across the world participated. We
communicated our near- to long-term
business outlooks and expectations, as
partners to a global company.

ESG Assessments Program

In FY24, we developed an assessment framework
consisting of ESG considerations, requirements
of the Business Partner Code of Conduct and
applicable regulations. We covered the suppliers
who comprise the top 80% spend (127 suppliers)
under these assessments. This also includes

the CMOs associated with us. Suppliers were
assessed based on their process, activities, ESG
programs, targets, and performance. After the
assessments, recommendations and required
support were provided to partners to help them
improve their ESG maturity. We aspire to cover
100% of our direct material suppliers by the end
of FY25 through the assessment.

Supply Chain Risk Management
We constantly monitor and evaluate our
suppliers and partners, and proactively
manage any risks. While evaluating our
suppliers and partners, we consider
various parameters related to finance,
business integrity, operations, quality,
industry-specific parameters and other
ESG aspects. Based on the results, we
have categorized our suppliers under
high, medium and low risk rating.
Further, we collaborate with them to
understand their needs and provide
them with opportunities and guidance
for improvement. We work with multiple
supply chain partners, and as a risk
management measure, whenever any risk
arises, we proactively identify and work
with alternate suppliers.

We took this opportunity to

introduce them to concepts around
environmental sustainability, diversity
and inclusion, among others. Trending
ESG-related topics such as climate
change, supply chains risks, disruptions,
and challenges for supply chains,

at present and in the future, were
extensively discussed, deliberated, and
reflected upon.

Environmental Action Within
our Supply Chain

Activities within any supply chain are
key contributors to total emissions.
With our enhanced supply chain
post-integration, the need to explore
opportunities for process efficiency
leading to emission reduction has
increased manifold. Some of our
initiatives in FY24 are:

= Transition to sea freight-based
shipment method. We estimate
an annual emission reduction of
1,130 tCO,e as a result of this.

Centralization of Procurement
Process

In FY24, as we have increased our global
footprint, we have centralized our
procurement processes for all indirect
procurement and have made the process
entirely paperless, resulting in efficient
management of operations. We have
dedicated teams to look after sourcing
and procurement operations, which
leads to improved supplier engagement
and makes it convenient for us to
communicate our expectations, including
those related to ESG, to them.

Internal Capacity Building of
Procurement Teams

Following a restructuring of our supply
chain team due to the expanded reach,

we introduced dedicated programs to
upskill these teams on matters related to
ESG, Business Partner Code of Conduct,

https://www.bioconbiologics.com/docs/BBL-Business-Partner-Code-of-Conduct.pdf

086 (o The Integration Effect

The conclave acted as a platform for
exchange of ideas, good practices,
challenges, potential solutions, risk
mitigation approaches and tactics.

It was a stepping stone for new
collaborations and coalitions for Biocon
Biologics and its partners. We also took
note of any feedback or support that
they might seek from us.

= Procurement of 900+ net zero
certified laptops resulting in emission
reduction of 175 tCO_e.

= About 1,300 Kg of plastic waste
was avoided in warehousing
activities in Malaysia. The same is
to be replicated in India in the next
financial year.

= Partnering with local vendors,
wherever possible, leading to
reduced transit requirements and,
hence, reduced emissions.

Risk Management and Supplier Diversity.
Training on the newly introduced
centralized procurement process was
conducted for all relevant members.

Supplier Diversity

We expect our suppliers to uphold the
importance of diversity and inclusion

and integrate the same within their

own operations. The Company seeks to
associate with the most capable suppliers
in terms of business ethics, integrity,
quality of products/services, value versus
cost, and technology inclusion. We,
however, do not differentiate based on
aspects such as size of the entity and
nature of ownership. Our teams are closely
working with entities owned by minorities,
women, LGBTQ+ individuals, veterans,

and specially-abled people. Our Diversity,
Equity and Inclusion team conducted
three awareness sessions for our suppliers
and partners.



Our Responsibility to the Community

T—

A patient being screened as part of the Oral Potentially Malignant Disorders

In FY24, we continued to invest in
programs that go beyond profit-

making and contribute positively to the
community and the ecological and social
environment in which we operate. In
FY25, we are looking to expand our ambit
beyond India and Malaysia, engaging our
expanded employee base in Advanced
and Emerging Markets in various volunteer
programs covering health, environment,
education, etc.

Through Biocon Foundation, we have
invested Rs 120.3 million across six projects
during FY24. Our focus during this year has

The second edition of the India-
specific Consensus Guidelines for the

Management of Head and Neck Cancer

(HNQ), developed by the OCTF, was

released to commemorate the World Head

and Neck Cancer Day on July 27, 2023.

These Consensus Guidelines have
been recognized among 13 worldwide
Clinical Practice Guidelines in Cancers,

an international peer-reviewed journal of
oncology. This recognition acknowledges
the global significance of the OCTF's efforts
and positions its consensus guidelines
among those from U.S., Europe, Canada,
Japan, and the National Comprehensive
Cancer Network (NCCN).

been on healthcare access, innovation and
clinical excellence, green-urban mobility,
lake rejuvenation, and grant-in-relief
efforts.

Oral Cancer Screening Program
Biocon Foundation has been running its
multi-state, flagship oral cancer screening
program successfully for almost a decade
and has positively impacted more than
75,000 beneficiaries during this time. The
project is implemented in specific sites
across Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan, Punjab,
Assam, Maharashtra, and Karnataka.

(OPMD) screening

Social and Relationship Capital

This program has leveraged technology,
capacity building and collaborative
efforts to address the burden of oral
cancer. A mobile application has been
developed and is used by frontline health
workers, trained for Oral Potentially
Malignant Disorders (OPMD) screening
and surveillance. During FY24, 10,000+
screenings were conducted for OPMD.
Among 5,600 high-risk patients who were
enrolled on the mHealth application,
almost 25% were detected with OPMDs.
10,200+ screenings were conducted for
common dental health problems. 13.6%
of the participants were diagnosed with
dental problems and were provided
treatment.

The program engages with
government and state-specific non-
government organizations for effective
implementation. The collaborative
efforts have led to the creation of an
independent Oral Cancer Task Force
(OCTF) for developing a strategy for oral
cancer control in India over the next
decade.

As a way forward, the project aims to
leverage advances in Artificial Intelligence
to combine datasets, including clinical
information, lesion image, cytology,
pathology, genomics and proteomics, and
result in a first-of-its-kind multidimensional
data-centric platform.

WELCOME TO
Feeoctr

ORAL CANCER TASK FORCE MEETING - 2028 —

TR FRUMTY AN AT
3
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BAGCHI - PARTHASARATHY HOSPITAL
INDIAN INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE

Biocon Foundation is funding construction of a 147-bed hospital block in lISc, Bengaluru

Post-Graduate Medical School and
Hospital at 1Sc

Biocon Foundation has contributed

to the construction of the Biocon-
Syngene General Medicine Wing at the
Postgraduate Medical School & Hospital,
envisioned by the Indian Institute of
Science (IISc), Bengaluru. The wing will

be spread over six floors with 147 beds.
Furthermore, the medical school has
rolled out a unique MBBS/MPH Internship
program to foster interdisciplinary research
and develop physician-scientists in the
country. Under this program, 37 selected
students got an opportunity to work
under the supervision of 35 participating
faculties at IS¢, Bengaluru, for a period

of one to two months. The key thematic
areas of research included Cancer Biology,
Bioengineering, Artificial Intelligence and
Data Sciences, Endocrinology, Biomedical
Devices.

Biocon-Hebbagodi Metro Station
Construction of the Biocon-Hebbagodi Metro
Station on the elevated Yellow Line has reached
an advanced stage of completion. The stretch is
expected to be open to the public by December
2024. Biocon Foundation put forth a plan to
reimagine the use of space under the elevated
metro corridor to BMRCL. The plan includes pier
wall paintings with a wider vision to transform the
space with design elements that truly represent
the rich heritage and traditions of Karnataka. The
Foundation is collaborating with Srishti Manipal
Institute of Art, Design and Technology for the
project. After looking at various traditional arts
and crafts with historical and cultural importance,
they decided to feature Channapatna dolls,
which are a key part of the state’s cultural identity.
This unique public art project, ‘Pillars of Society

- Celebrating Everyday Heroes, has breathed life
into the Metro corridor between the Hebbagodi
and Huskur Gate stations.

Pillars of Society: Celebrating Everyday Heroes - Paintings on the Biocon-Hebbagodi Metro Station pillars.

In India, we conducted plantation

drives to celebrate World Earth Day and
World Environment Day. We organized
awareness sessions, spot quiz and drawing
competitions in nine government schools
on World No-Tobacco Day. Our employees

Other Community Initiatives

When it comes to supporting the
community, we go beyond projects that
are part of mandated Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) regulations.

088 (o The Integration Effect

take an active role in these activities and
have spent more than 300 hours on these
drives.

In Malaysia, there is considerable focus
on combating water pollution. We are
exploring the effectiveness of mudballs



in curbing pollution in certain water
bodies, as mentioned in the Biodiversity
Management sub-section. We collaborate
with local authorities to clear floating
debris and sludge from storm water
drains. 30 MT of waste was removed from
drainage systems through our initiatives.

More than 140 volunteers from our
Malaysia facility have spent 500+
volunteering hours on projects related
to afforestation (1,000+ trees planted),
mobile health clinics (400+ patients
served), and community health, skill
development and improving community
assets (125+ hours), apart from delivering
essential provisions (100+ families aided)
and surplus food distribution (600+
people supported).

Social and Relationship Capital

Students in Bengaluru participate in a tree plantation drive.

Stakeholder Communication

At Biocon Biologics, we believe open
communication and honesty are the
foundation of our relationships with all
stakeholders and critical for building

a strong brand reputation. Our public
relations endeavors prioritize fostering
trust and transparency among our diverse
stakeholders.

We firmly uphold the principles of clear
and concise communication, contributing
to an engaged work environment

that breeds trustworthy relationships

with our valued customers, strategic
partners, investors, investment analysts,
journalists, healthcare professionals (HCPs),
employees, and the broader community.

The Global Communications and
Corporate Brand Team (GCT) has a diverse
talent pool comprising brand specialists,
storytellers, PR professionals, content
writers, former journalists, filmmakers,
creative graphic designers, and social and
digital marketing specialists.

GCT operates across seven verticals:

= External Communications & Media
Engagement

= Reputation Management & Crisis
Communications

= Digital & Social Media Management
= Marketing Communications

= Internal Communications

= Content Development

= Graphic Design and Video Production

We communicate regularly with diverse
stakeholders through owned media
channels such as website, blog, and
social media platforms like LinkedIn, X,
Instagram, Facebook and YouTube, and
earned media channels that include
national and international business and
trade publications, both print and online,
and TV channels. Through face-to-face
meetings and two-way communication,
we nurture a strong relationship of trust
built on transparency, empathy, and
respect.

We collaborate and work closely with
various teams in the organization to
identify story ideas that we weave into the
Company’s value proposition to narrate

a compelling brand story. In addition to
effective content development, the team
ensures adherence to brand guidelines

for a consistent visual identity and brand
voice.

During FY24, Brand Biocon received
extensive coverage from leading news
publications and media channels, resulting
in overall ~8,300 stories across audio-
visual, print, and online media. We have
seen a consistent increase in our share of
voice and quality of stories reported on
Biocon Biologics. Leadership engagement
with media got us long-format stories on
a quarterly basis. Overall, we developed
30+ brand campaigns for owned media
channels that were rolled out on social
media and internal platforms. The
Communications campaigns on Biocon
Biologics'integration of the acquired
Biosimilars business took centerstage this
year.

During the year, we expanded our social
media follower base. On Biocon Biologics’
LinkedIn account, we crossed a major
milestone of 400K followers, a six-fold
increase since 2020.
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Narrating Biocon
Biologics’ Complex
Integration Story

To highlight the integration
of the acquired business
and extension of our global footprint, GCT developed
and implemented ‘The Power of One'campaign.

A comprehensive communication roadmap was
developed to address both internal and external
communication needs, utilizing several communications
channels and a diverse media mix.

'I}E POWER OF ONE
A ’

-

The commercial and regulatory teams were enabled by
developing marketing collaterals and product packaging
artworks in multiple languages for over 120+ countries
in a short duration of time. On the digital front, Biocon
Biologics'independent corporate website was launched
and several product sites were developed and rolled out
to enable marketing operations.

The Social Media campaigns, #Biosimilarsareallwedo
(North America); #Hereweareineurope (EU), #Emerging
to Empower (EMs), highlighted the successful
business integration in Advanced and Emerging
Markets, garnering nearly 550K impressions and 25K
engagements. Additionally, internal brand campaigns
were also rolled out to integrate the incoming new
teams with the existing Biocon Biologics family.

090 (0 The Integration Effect

Stories of Hope
Stories of Hope is a key Brand
tories Campaign of Biocon and
{u "“[W ||, Biocon Biologics, which narrates
. inspirational patients'stories in a
video format.

It encourages people facing health challenges to be
strong and gives them hope.

This video series, developed in-house by GCT, brings
forth patients'stories of courage and resilience, poignant
tales of individuals from various walks of life who have
managed severe health challenges with exemplary
courage. The videos are available on Biocon’s own media
channels like website, YouTube channel and other social
media platforms.

This year’s episode narrated the story of a breast cancer
survivor, a single working mother. In an insightful
conversation with the host, she shares her own story
and also speaks about the relevance of regular health
check-ups, staying positive, seeking help from friends,
and expanding the circle of caregivers to fight back and
accelerate the process to recovery, but above all never
give up on your job or your life.

The Global Communications and Corporate Brand Team



GRAND MASTER
TALKS

Some of the Grand Masters we hosted in FY24 were a Brand expert, a TV anchor
& entrepreneur, an ex-Indian Army Colonel, and a celebrity author & podcaster.

Corporate Brand Employee
Engagement Campaign:‘Biocon
At 45: Together, We Thrive’

To commemorate Biocon's 451
anniversary in November 2023, we
rolled out an internal communication
and employee engagement initiative
that gave our people an opportunity to
share their creative expressions for the
Company.

The campaign was aimed at bringing
synergy between the team of new
multicultural, multinational group of
employees who joined post-acquisition
with the existing pool of Bioconites. We

Participants of the ‘Biocon At 45’ contest were felicitated by senior leaders,,
including Biocon Biologics CEO & MD Shreehas Tambe.

Grand Master Talks

In FY24, we launched Grand Master Talks, a new interactive
series, where accomplished professional experts from
various domains delivered motivational talks based on
their real-life experiences for the benefit of employees of
Biocon Group entities. This hybrid event includes a face-
to-face fireside chat and a webcast. A Q&A session following the interaction
enables employees to engage actively with the speaker.

Social and Relationship Capital

EN e,

The Art of Reinvention

Seema Ahuja, Global Head of Communications &
Corporate Brand at Biocon Group and Biocon Biologics

(right), in conversation with author & podcaster Mohua
Chinappa at a Grandmaster Talks session.

celebrated Biocon’s 45-year legacy of
excellence in biotechnology, affordable
innovation, differentiated growth, high-
quality lifesaving biotherapeutics, and
above all, serving millions of patients
and enabling equitable access to
advanced therapies.

Our campaign was an interesting
integration of art and science and
was designed to ignite the creative
genius of our people. We shortlisted
70 contributions in the form of
poems, stories, slogans and posters
from different functions across the
world, which expressed their pride for
Brand Biocon, and published them
in a compendium, titled ‘Bioconites’
Creative Treasury'

The top 20 entries were showcased
through a rolling exhibition held

at different locations in Bengaluru.
This exhibition was converted to

a virtual exhibition and hosted on
BioCommsverse, GCT's information
portal, and was rolled out to employees
outside Bengaluru through a series of
virtual events.

All Biocon Biologics participants were
felicitated by CEO and MD Shreehas
Tambe. Through the virtual events,
we reached out to our employees
across U.S., Canada, Europe, Brazil,
South Africa, Morocco, UAE, Malaysia,
Thailand, the Philippines and other
countries.

The campaign, which saw thousands of
Bioconites come together to appreciate
their colleagues'talent, is a testament
to how a powerful communication
campaign can instill a strong sense of
collective pride and belongingness,
fostering an inclusive ecosystem.

The Biocon Biologics senior leadership at the rolling exhibition,
Biocon at 45: Together, We Thrive.
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Strengthening our ORM Strategy media campaign on the six capital Thought Leadership

In FY24, we strengthened our Online highlights, which resonated well with The Global Communication and Corporate
Reputation Management (ORM) strategy our followers, garnering over 153K brand team has been recognized amongst
by deploying advanced listening tools impressions, underscoring the widespread the top teams of India. The Head of GCT
for social media listening, online and interest in our brand. is recognized amongst the leading PR

print media monitoring. These tools
have enabled proactive planning and
real-time brand engagement on social

and Brand Communications professionals
of the country, and is regularly invited
to share her experience and expertise

You are currently reading the second
Integrated Annual Report of Biocon

: ; Biologics, which narrates the Integration . i .
media channels. It has also helped us in Story of the acquisition of the biosimilars on industry best practices at various

identifying any potential reputational business. conferences and industry forums. She also
threats. serves on the jury panel for prestigious
industry award events recognizing the
pathbreaking work in the field of PR

and brand communications. In FY24,

she received several individual awards

Investor Relations

The Investor Relations (IR) team of
Biocon Limited, the parent company

Comprehensive Stakeholder
Communication

In 2023, we developed the first Integrated of Biocon Biologics, plays a key role in . 4
Annual Report for Biocon Biologics. The bridging the gap between Biocon and and recognitions. Under her Iead'ers:hlp,
holistic brand narrative was developed the investment community. Through Biocon Group and Biocon Biclogics' Global
around the framework of Six Capitals - distribution of annual reports, quarterly Communications feam was ranked No.
Financial, Manufacturing, Intellectual, reports, and investor presentations, we 4among the Top 30 In-House Corporate
Human, Natural, and Social & Relationship. keep investors informed about Biocon and communications teams in 2024,
This approach enabled us to provide Biocon Biologics' financial performance,
a comprehensive account of Biocon business strategies, ESG performance
Biologics'value creation journey for its and overall outlook. We track market
diverse group of stakeholders, including trends, shareholding movements, analyst
patients, partners, suppliers, employees, reports, and investor sentiment to provide
shareholders, and the society at large. insights to the Company leadership and
Post release of the report, we also deve\op effective investor communication

strategies.

developed a visually engaging social

Biocon Biologics Global
Communications Team Wins IPRCC Gold
Award

In FY24, the Global Communications Team
won the IPRCC Gold Award for being ‘The
Best In-House Communications Team of The
Year' by exchange4media.

We also received In-House Team of The
Year Award at PRmoment Health Comms
Awards 2023.

The team was ranked at number 4 among
the top 30 corporate communications
teams of India by Reputation Today.

These recognitions bear testimony to

the quality of reputation building brand
campaigns done by the talented team
using largely earned media and own media
channels with in-house creative concept
development, design and execution.

A member of the Global Communications Team receives the IPRCC Gold Award.
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The Integration Effect

THE INTEGRATION EFFECT

Tackling the challenges of a complex integration
together as a team, and looking forward to a

shared future of improving patient lives.
Partners’Voice

&

s

“Our collaboration with Biocon Biologics
has been nothing short of a success
story. With high hopes, we anticipate this
success to endure, and while the future
may present challenges, we approach it
with optimism and great expectations.

Luis Cordon,
CEQ, Aviv Farmaceutica, Customer in Guatemala

—>

“Very successful integration, where
collaboration was a key part of the
success. This was executed through a
clearly defined vision and mission and
based on transparency and constant
communication.’

Claudy Tarazy
Chairman and MD, Onepharma Medics, Egypt

—

“The integration process has surpassed my expectations in terms of speed and efficiency.
Despite uncertainties, the Biocon Biologics team, spanning commercial, requlatory, and
technical departments, showcased remarkable professionalism and proactiveness. It has
been a pleasure to tackle the challenges of this integration process together as a team,
combining Biocon Biologics and PHARMARIS. | firmly believe that our partnership will

significantly benefit patients in Latin America by offering them advanced, high-quality, and

affordable products!

Rolando Andrade,
CEO, PHARMARIS LATAM S.A.C

—>

N
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Environment, Social & Governance

ESG Governance

Biocon Biologics has a vision "to strive
towards developing and sustaining
healthy and empowered communities by
promoting social & economic inclusion,
environment sustainability and improving
overall quality of life”

As communicated in our previous year’s
Integrated Annual Report, we have
created a strong ESG strategy that is based
on enabling long-term growth and value
creation, while having a positive influence
on the environment and the communities
in which we operate across the globe.

While we continue to embed ESG into
our business model, we are delighted
to inform our stakeholders that we were
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honored with the ‘Best Sustainability
Linked Loan’award in the pharmaceuticals
category at ‘The Asset Triple A'Sustainable
Finance Awards 2024. We stand
committed to the best practices adopted
across all our business operations and
have achieved beyond the targets set

for the current financial year. We have
operated our Bengaluru facilities with 85%
renewable energy and have successfully
commissioned rooftop solar panels at our
Malaysia site.

Through continuous efforts to reduce
carbon emissions, optimize freshwater
consumption in our operations, and
minimize waste generation, Biocon
Biologics actively works to mitigate the
negative impact of its business on the

environment and society. Our dedicated
ESG and CSR board committee closely
monitors the progress of various initiatives
and provides guidance to the ESG steering
committee.

The core agenda of our business is to
provide access to lifesaving medicines

for patients, and we remain steadfast in
our commitment to increase product
approvals and launches in LIC/LMIC
countries. This year, we also made
significant strides in our human capital

by enhancing employee engagement,
improving diversity, and establishing a
dedicated Culture and Values Department.



Materiality

Biocon and Biocon Biologics had
performed a detailed materiality
assessment in FY22. The assessment
considered views of multiple stakeholder
groups such as Board Members, Executive
Leadership, employees, suppliers and
vendors, investors, analysts, business
partners, media, journalists, bankers, and
healthcare experts.

In this assessment, a total of 50+
sustainability topics were evaluated for
consideration at a strategic level, which
were then filtered down to 30 topics and
organized into 11 broad themes. Based
on a survey that included the above-
mentioned stakeholders, the relative
importance of the 11 broad themes was
arrived at: Product Quality, Research and
Development were listed as Top Priorities;

Environment, Social & Governance

while Safe and Empowering Workspace,
Environmental Performance, Ethical
Governance, Digitization, Supply Chain
Sustainability, and Diversity & Inclusion
came under Key Issues; and Community
Engagement, and Ethical Sales and
Marketing were categorized as Monitoring
Issues.

The Review Process Undertaken
in FY24

In FY24, we took a conscious call to review
the 30 topics which we considered to
drive the materiality exercise. This was a
necessity given the changes in the global
business environment, emerging trends

in sustainability and even the regulatory
landscape. Biocon Biologics'expanded
global footprint, on account of the
acquisition of Viatris'Biosimilars business, is
also a contributing factor here.

As preparatory steps, we did a thorough
review of topics identified by our peers
and recommended by standards such

as GRI, MSCl and SASB. This helped us
consider 14 topics over and above the 30
topics that were already selected under
the FY22 assessment. These 14 topics
were:

1. Integrated Risk Management &
Business Continuity

Environmental Impact of Products
STEM Talent Pipeline

Climate Risks (Physical and Transition)
Health Systems Strengthening
Biodiversity and Nature Risks

A A

Patient Experience, Health Awareness /
Prevention

8. Digital Ethics / Responsible Al

. Green Chemistry
10.Responsible Public Advocacy
11.Ethical Clinical Trials and Animal Testing
12.Circular Economy
13.Pharmaceuticals in the Environment
14. Antimicrobial Resistance
We invited our key stakeholders to rank

these topics from an outside — in (Financial
Materiality) and inside — out (Impact

Materiality) perspective. Following this, as
part of the analysis process, we considered
the mean ranking of both the perspectives
for each of the topics to arrive at a relative
score. This was done separately for the

Board members, ELTs and the rest of the
stakeholders to align the assessment
method and output, with the one used in
FY22.The resulting top 5 for both set of
stakeholders are as follows:

Top 5 Materiality Topics

1. Board and ELT 2. Other Stakeholders

Integrated Risk Management & Business
Continuity

Integrated Risk Management & Business
Continuity

STEM Talent Pipeline

Environmental Impact of Products

Health Systems Strengthening

STEM Talent Pipeline

Climate Risks (Physical and Transition)

Climate Risks (Physical and Transition)

Circular Economy

Health Systems Strengthening

The concluding step for the assessment
was to categorize these newly rated

topics into the 11 broad themes used

in the FY22 assessment. In order to do

this, we renamed some of the themes to
ensure better coverage of the underlying
topics. We also added “Climate Risk”as

an additional theme, bringing the count
to 12in FY24.The re-named themes are
mentioned below along with the rationale.

= Ethical Governance is now being
identified as ‘Governance’as the theme
now includes Integrated Risk Management
& Business Continuity.

= Safe & Empowering Workplace is
now being identified as ‘Future Ready
Workforce'as the theme now includes
STEM Talent Pipeline.

= Access and Affordability includes a
new topic - Patient Experience, Health
Awareness / Prevention.

= Environmental Performance now
includes Circular Economy.

The final relative importance of the
themes, based on inputs of our CSR and
ESG Board Committee members and
Executive team leads, is presented below.

Relative Importance / Criticality Topics

Top Priorities Product Quality

Access and Affordability
Research and Development
Environmental Performance
Future Ready Workforce (renamed theme)
Governance (Renamed Theme)
Climate risk (New Theme)
Digitization

. Supply Chain Sustainability
10.Diversity & Inclusion

11.Ethical Sales and Marketing
12.Community Engagement

Key Issues

O 00 N O W

Monitoring Issues
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Materiality Matrix

We devised a Materiality Matrix based on the weighted averages and scores for each topic.

Top Priorities = Environmental =
Performance

Key Issues = Climate Risk .

Monitoring Issues = NA =

*Cross-cutting topic across E, S and G

Access and Affordability

Future Ready Workforce
Diversity & Inclusion

Community Engagement

Product Quality
Research & Development

Governance
Digitization
Supply Chain Sustainability*

Ethical Sales and Marketing
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Governance, Ethics and Compliance

Governance, Ethics and Compliance

Strengthening our Governance
We have built a strong, global and
diverse leadership team to keep pace
with the rapid and significant expansion
in the scale of our business worldwide.
Additionally, we have adapted key
leadership roles and governance
structures to ensure agility and expedite
decision-making, while maintaining
necessary process controls.

We have set up the Biocon Biologics
Executive Committee (EC) as the apex
executive leadership committee and
decision-making body of the Company
with the mandate to set the organization'’s
vision, corporate strategy and governance
structure in consultation with the

Executive Chairperson and the Board.

It provides leadership oversight to the
Executive Leadership Team (ELT) for the
execution of all strategic initiatives and
delivery of the plan to achieve business
and organizational goals.

The EC makes decisions on long-term
investments, organization policies,
collaborations, and the strategic direction
of the Company. The EC comprises the
CEO & Managing Director, Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), Chief Operating Officer
(COQ), Chief Development Officer (CDO)
and Chief Commercial Officers (CCOs). The
Global Head of HR is a Permanent Invitee
to the EC meetings.

The COO leads the Operations functions

- Manufacturing, MSAT, Supply Chain
Management (SCM), Projects and Quiality.
The Chief Quality Officer has dual
reporting to the CEO & Managing Director
and COO. The CDO leads the Development
functions - Research & Development-CMC,
Clinical Development & Medical Affairs
(CDMA) and Regulatory Affairs. The Chief
Commercial Officers (CCOs) continue to
be focused by geography and separately
lead Advanced Markets and Emerging
Markets. In keeping with the broader
mandate and organizational responsibility,
the CFO, COO, CDO and CCO roles have
been elevated to Executive Vice President
(EVP).

Ethics and Compliance

At Biocon Biologics, fostering a culture
where ethics and compliance are
prioritized at all times is a constant
endeavor. Our Code of Conduct serves as
the foundation of this vision and also sets
the tone for our compliance program. The
Code of Conduct further shapes ancillary
policies that add to ethical practices,

for example, supplier code of conduct,
human rights, etc. We ensure that these
ancillary policies are updated to account
for the changing dynamics of both the
Company and the social structure it
operates in.

The Company provides regular training
to all employees on the Code of
Conduct, including new hires who must
complete mandatory programs as part
of their onboarding process. We also
have a mandatory Anti-Bribery and
Anti-Corruption training program for
employees.

Biocon Biologics has Compliance
Management Systems for tracking,
managing and reporting adherence to
compliance requirements. This system is
regularly monitored to ensure compliance
with national and regional regulations.
Updates on compliance are reported to

the Risk Management Committee (RMC)
and/or Audit Committee (AC) every
quarter.

In FY24, Biocon Biologics unveiled a
comprehensive global Anti-Bribery & Anti-
Corruption (ABAC) Policy. This policy is
designed to reinforce the Company’s Zero
Tolerance approach towards bribery and
corruption and provide guidance on how
to identify and deal with any potential

bribery and corruption concerns that one
may encounter during normal course of
business. The ABAC Policy is applicable to
all employees of Biocon Biologics and its
subsidiaries.

Biocon Biologics also rolled out a Conflict
of Interest (COI) Policy to provide further
guidance on identifying, disclosing, and
managing potential conflicts of interest
situation that may arise in our day-to-day
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operations, as well as to ensure that our
decisions and actions are always in the
best interest of the Company and are free
from any undue influence or perceived
impropriety. Recently, Biocon Biologics
launched a Conflict-of-Interest Disclosure
online tool globally. This tool provides
employees with a user-friendly platform to
disclose any circumstances that may lead
to a conflict-of-interest situation.

To ensure preparedness and compliance
during unexpected regulatory inspections
or a sudden / unannounced raid, we
implemented a Dawn Raid Policy.

We launched a Speak-Up Hotline,
accessible by all Biocon Biologics
employees across the globe. This Hotline
allows our people to raise concerns
about any kind of business or employee
misconduct and seek clarification while
remaining anonymous, if they so choose.

We also launched a policy for Global

as well as Country-Specific Interaction
with HCPs and Healthcare Organizations
(HCOs)*. The policy is formulated to align
us with the highest ethical standards
relating to the marketing, promotion, and
sales of our products and to maintain

the highest ethical standards in the wide
range of activities and interactions we
carry out.

The Company encourages an environment
that promotes compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations and gives
employees the guidance they need to
uphold the Company’s commitment to
transparency and integrity in all business
dealings. Our Ethics and Compliance
department contributes to creating an
environment, which is based on the
principles of prevent, detect and respond.

The Company has a Zero Tolerance
approach to violations, and this is
consistent with our commitment towards
the principles of integrity, transparency,
accountability, and business ethics that are
embedded in our DNA.

Human Rights

Biocon Biologics is committed to
respecting and promoting human rights
in all its operations. Our Human Rights
Policy ensures our employees are treated
fairly and with dignity, and that we do

not engage in any practices that violate
internationally recognized human rights
standards. We have a Zero Tolerance policy
towards discrimination and harassment
on the basis of race, ethnicity, gender,
sexual orientation, age, religion, disability,
etc. You can find more details on our
Human Rights Policy in the Human Capital
chapter.

Establishment of Vigil Mechanism
The Vigil Mechanism, as envisaged in

the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules
prescribed therein are implemented
through the Whistleblower Policy. This
enables the Directors, employees and

all the stakeholders of the Company to
report genuine concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud

or violation of the Company’s Code

of Conduct?, to provide for adequate
safeguards against victimization of
persons who use the mechanism and
make provisions for direct access to the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee in
appropriate or exceptional cases.

The Company adheres to
uncompromising integrity and strictly
abides by well-accepted norms of ethical,

lawful and moral conduct. It has Zero
Tolerance for any form of unethical
conduct or behavior. During the year, the
Company received 17 complaints, which
are neither material individually nor in
aggregate. The Biocon Group Integrity
Policy is applicable to the Company. The
Vigil Mechanism is established under this
policy, which can be accessed at: BBL-
Whistleblower-and-Integrity-Policy.pdf
(bioconbiologics.com)

Grievance

The Directors, employees and all the
stakeholders of Biocon Biologics can
take their complaints to the Company’s
Integrity Committee (IC), which is
responsible for investigating claims

of unethical behavior. Our Integrity
and Whistleblower Policy encourages

*https://www.bioconbiologics.com/docs/Global-Policy-on-Interaction-with-HCP-and-HCO.pdf
#https://www.bioconbiologics.com/docs/BBL-Business-Partner-Code-of-Conduct.pdf
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everybody to disclose such claims
without fear of retaliation. The IC's job is to
evaluate the whistleblower’s report and
take necessary corrective action. The IC
receives quarterly updates on the status
of the most important investigations.
Concerns of any nature can be raised at
integritybiologics@biocon.com.

Reporting of Breaches

Corruption, bribery, harassment,
confidentiality, conflicts of interest, money
laundering and insider trading are just a
few of the areas where we actively report
on the overall number of breaches or
incidences.

Aspects related to ethics and compliance
are detailed out in the Corporate
Governance Report.



Risk Management

Risk Management Committee
The Board has constituted a Risk
Management Committee (RMC), which is
composed of experienced personnel from
various functional areas to ensure broader
perspectives, subject matter expertise, and
a comprehensive and holistic assessment
of risks across the Company’s business
operations. Details on RMC and its

Terms of Reference can be found in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The RMC is supported by the Enterprise
Risk Management function for the
following:

= Key business, strategic and operational
risks are identified through structured
interviews/workshops and supporting
Risk Owners in developing appropriate
mitigation actions.

= These mitigation actions are reviewed,
and their progress is discussed with the
Functional Heads, Executive Committee
and the RMC of the Board of Directors.

Risk Management

= Specific risk-related initiatives are
implemented as advised by the RMC.

= Risk management trainings are given
to all key stakeholders to enhance risk
culture.

At Biocon Biologics, risks are classified
into the following themes - Financial,
ESG, Operational, Strategic, Regulatory /
Statutory, Reputational, Geopolitical and
Catastrophic.

Our Risk Governance Structure

Board of Directors

Reviews the risk
management and
internal support
framework

Risk Management

Committee

= Reviews
effectiveness of
risk management
framework

= Recommends
changes to the
risk management
and/or associated
frameworks,
processes, and
practices of the
Company

Executive
Committee

= Provides
direction and
ensures sustainable
implementation of
risk framework

= Reports the
outcome of periodic
review of risk
management to the
RMC and the Board
of Directors

Head of Risk
Management Team

= Coordinates with
Executive Committee
& Functional

Heads and assists

in carrying out

risk identification,
assessment,
prioritization, and
mitigation activities

= Prepares
consolidated

risk reports and
presents to senior
leadership and
Risk Management
Committee

Department and/or

Functional Heads

= Directs and
implements risk
management
initiatives pertaining
to their team and
department

= Conducts review
of risk mitigation
procedure

Risk Management Process at Biocon Biologics

Monitoring &
Review

Risk Identification

. . Risk Prioritization
and Classification

’ Mitigation Actions
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successful mitigation plans using the 5Ts
approach for all identified risks by putting
our risk management framework into
practice and collaborating closely with
internal stakeholders. We have outlined
our key business risks and the mitigating
measures we put in place to address

them. We have defined risk appetite and
tolerance levels based on the potential
impact the risk would have on business
objectives. Each risk is assessed on the
basis of such impact and its likelihood to
ensure that the residual risk falls within the
tolerance levels.

Current Risks

The inherent risks associated with product
quality and safety, IP and data protection,
regulatory compliance, marketing and
financial matters are constant sources of
concern in the global pharmaceuticals
sector. Biocon Biologics has created

_ Risk Prioritization & Description Mitigation Plan

Policy Changes: Adverse = Impact on Revenues and = Arobust assessment of the upcoming policy changes,

Impact of the legislative
changes on the growth of

the business. (e.g., IRA, TAA,
Localization requirements, etc.).

Commercial Risk: Failure to
meet the forecasted business
growth plans in the markets
where the Company is
operating.

Financial Risk: Financial
commitments to banks and
investors.

Infotech & Cybersecurity
Risk: Arising out of inability

to have adequate defense
mechanism to cyber-attacks.
Data Loss through employees/

Profitability.

Non-compliance leading to fines/
penalties.

Potential impact on growth and
business plans.

Adherence to the contractual
commitments made to PE
investors.

Maintaining EBITDA & Net Debt
levels in line with externally agreed
covenants and internal policies.

An event of a breach, data theft

or system downtime can lead to
disruption of operations, penalties,
legal proceedings, reputational
loss, etc.

executing COGS reduction programs & managing
timely launch of products.

Localize manufacturing as per country-specific
requirements where we operate.

Strengthening the commercial teams across the
geographies.

Before entering into any new market, a comprehensive
landscape analysis is performed covering the
competition and other market dynamics.

Continuous evaluation of new product launches in
existing markets & entry into new markets.

Continued focus on paring down acquisition debt and
increasing both revenues and profitability from the core
business.

Pro-active management and tracking of key financial
ratios.

Building a strong cybersecurity-resilient organization
by establishing governance, defensive and monitoring
capabilities.

Strengthening the backup and recovery processes and
developing an Incident Response Plan.

external parties, leading to
a reputational and financial
impact.

Emerging Risks

The global pharmaceuticals business is
vulnerable to a wide range of emerging
risks that have the potential to cause major
disruptions to both our operations and our
entire value chain. We have collaborated
with our stakeholders to get a better
understanding of these risks.

Malicious use of Al

While Al/Generative Al-based tools
promise significant advancements across
industries, they also pose security risks,
such as the possibility of ransomware
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that can adapt quickly to security systems
through polymorphism. Traditional
security systems may fail to detect

such advanced threats. Also, there is an
increasing trend of Al tools being used to
spread misinformation across industries.

Given the adoption of Al-based systems
in various operations, protecting our
digital infrastructure against these threats
is crucial. The organization has invested
in next-generation technologies to
safeguard, detect, and respond to threats.
Networks have been fortified with robust
perimeter defences, including intrusion

detection and protection features.
Advanced anti-virus software using
Machine Learning (ML) for behavioural
analysis is deployed to identify and
respond to previously unknown threats.
Continuous monitoring is enhanced

by applying Al and ML algorithms to
identify new threats. Further, we have
strict access control policies based on
the "need to know” principle. All data,
whether in transit or at rest, is encrypted
according to its importance and risk level.
A comprehensive Data Leak Prevention



(DLP) system is in place to prevent data
breaches.

To prevent misuse of Al, the organization
prohibits the use and upload of data to
Open Al-based tools and restricts users to
enterprise-level systems like Copilot for
Microsoft 365. This ensures productivity
improvements while mitigating risks. For
cases where we engage with third party
research agencies to help us build models
for clinical data analysis, we ensure their
processes undergo thorough assessments
for any vulnerability or misuse.

We also tap into the external expertise to
proactively detect, analyze, and update
our systems against unconventional
threats and address any data leaks that
may occur. We are active members of
industry groups that share best practices
in this area..

Extreme and Erratic Weather Events
Though extreme weather events

have been a global phenomenon for
some time, it is being considered as
an‘emerging risk’due to the observed
increase in the intensity, frequency, and
unpredictability of such events. Recent
examples relevant to our operations
include the somewhat unprecedented
levels of temperature in Bengalury, India,
one of our main manufacturing and
office locations. Occurrence of extreme
events could impact our day-to-day

operations, especially in the absence of
risk assessment and mitigation strategies.

Initiatives such as adopting sustainability
goals, roadmap for GHG reduction,

water conservation, waste management
through circular economy principles,
increasing share of renewable power,
and introduction of energy-efficient
systems in core operations add to our
mitigation strategy against these events.
We also see this as an opportunity for
resource conservation and for harnessing
efficiencies that are associated with energy
efficiency pathways.

Biocon Biologics is consistently monitoring
the regional policies and statutes in the
different countries where our products are
marketed and sold to ensure compliance.
Our focus is to make healthcare more
accessible to LMICs and developing
countries and reduce the prevalence of
diseases in underserved regions, adhering
to local laws of the land.

Cultivating a Cohesive Risk Culture
By creating a culture of proactive risk
management, acceptance, awareness and
identification, we enable an environment
where risk management is a natural part
of Biocon Biologics'ethos in addition to
assuring the stability and effectiveness

of our risk management systems and
procedures. We believe organizational

risk awareness and the capacity to see

Risk Management

problems early on strengthen the case

for effective risk management. Hence, a
cohesive risk culture is important to us,
and we work to improve it every year.

Below are some of the initiatives Biocon
Biologics has taken to cultivate a robust
risk culture:

We place a strong emphasis on teaching
all our employees, senior management
and Board members about the value

of risk detection, mitigation and
management as part of our risk culture.

Additionally, the employees are made
aware of the tools they need to proactively
spot and report risks across the entire
organization.

In order to ensure ongoing improvement
in risk management systems and
procedures, we have made it possible
for our employees to both provide and
receive feedback.

Finally, to guarantee smooth product
manufacturing and deployment, we
make sure risk management procedures
are put in place throughout the product
development process and operations
value chain.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has laid down certain
guidelines, processes and structures,
which enable implementation of
appropriate internal financial controls
across the organization. These encompass
policies and procedures adopted by

the Company for ensuring orderly and
efficient conduct of business, including
adherence to its policies, safeguarding

of its assets, prevention and detection

of frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of accounting records and
the timely preparation of reliable financial
information.

The control processes cover manual and
IT applications, including ERP applications
wherein transactions are approved and
recorded. Appropriate review and control

mechanisms have been put in place to
ensure the control systems are adequate
and operate effectively.

Inherent limitations of internal financial
controls, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management
override of controls, might lead to material
misstatements in financial reporting due
to error or fraud, and go undetected. The
Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system
operating effectively. It is based on the
internal control criteria established by

the Company that includes the essential
components stated in the guidance note
on audit of internal control on financial
reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Internal Audits

The Corporate Internal Audit team is an
independent assurance and advisory
function, responsible for evaluating

and improving the effectiveness of
controls, risk management practices

and governance processes. The internal
audit team helps to enhance and protect
organizational value by providing
risk-based objective assurance, advice
and insights. The internal audit team
prepares annual audit plans based on risk
assessment, which are approved by the
Audit Committee of the Board. The Head
of Internal Audit presents an update on a
quarterly basis to the Audit Committee.
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Awards and Recognition

Biocon and Biocon Biologics

Sustainability

= |ncluded in the prestigious S&P
Sustainability Yearbook 2024, for the
second consecutive year. Improved Global
ESG Score to 63 from 52 in previous year.

= Named among global sustainability
leaders for the third consecutive year in
the Dow Jones Sustainability Emerging

= CDP scores at 'B'for Climate Change &'C’
for Water Security for 2023.

= Awarded Silver medal by EcoVadis for
commitment to improving sustainability
across business operations. An overall
score of 70 put Biocon in the 92"
percentile, and among top 15% of 1,30,000
+ companies rated globally.

= Enhanced FTSE4GOOD Index score to
3.6 from 3.2, surpassing the healthcare
industry average of 2.3 and biotech sub-
industry average of 2.8.

= Recognized among Top 30 India’s Most
Sustainable Companies in 2023 by BW
Businessworld.

Markets Index.

Overall score

Z:van | Tog 15% 1 .
- Percentile
ecovadis gnd

MAR 2024

70/100

Global Communications
= Won In-House Team of The
Year Award at PRmoment
Health Comms Awards 2023.

= Received the IPRCC Gold
Award, as 'The Best In-House
Communications Team of The
Year, from exchange4media.

e Toam of e Yoor
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Environment

Labor & Human
Rights

Ethics

Sustainable
Procurement

SNCDP

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIES

FTSE4Good

= Received Silver Award for
‘Shelnspires'Brand Campaign
at the 13" India Public
Relations and Corporate
Communications Conference
and Awards 2023.

4 .
=shenspires

= Ranked 4" among

India’s 30 Top Corporate
Communications Teams, 2023,
by Reputation Today.

CERTIFICATE

Patient Support

Bagged a Gold for its
Patient Support Program in
Diabetology (BRIDGE-1) and
a Silver for Patient Support
Program in Kidney Health
(Parichay) at the prestigious
IHW Patient First Awards 2023.

Centre of Excellence - 13

Awards

= (|l National: Gold: 2; Silver: 1;
Bronze: 1

= QCFIBengaluru: Silver: 4;

= QCFIHyderabad: Gold: 4;
Silver: 1

Human Resources

Ranked No. 8 among Science
Magazine Best Employers in
Global Biotech and Pharma
Sector.

(0 ("('

)|

Science 2023
TOP EMPLOYER
&
Certificate

OF ACHIEVEMENT
PRESENTED TO THE TEAM FROM
Biocon Biologics, Bengalury

OR PRESENTING A CASE STUDY UNDER RENOVATIVE
CATEGORY AT THE

46TH CII NATIONAL KAIZEN COMPETITION
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Business Achievement
Won the Acquisition of the
Year Award at the Global
Generics and Biosimilars
Awards, 2023, for the landmark
acquisition of the global
Biosimilars business of our
partner Viatris.

Global Generics
Bl _similars

BIOCON BIOLOGIQS
ACQUISITION OF VIATRIS
BIOSIMILARS BUSINESS

2023 WINNER |

Biopharma Excellence

= Winner of the Prix Galien
India Award for Best Medical

Technology, recognizing

Biocon Biologics' Pichia Pastoris
Platform.

= Honored with the ‘Most
Promising Biologics Drug
Pipeline’award at Biopharma
Excellence Awards (BEA) India
Edition 2024, organized by
IMAPAC.

= Honored with the
‘Bioprocessing Excellence in
South Asia’award at the Asia-
Pacific Biopharma Excellence
Awards (ABEA) 2024.

| INDIATERNT 0N

Sustainability

= Honored with the Best
Sustainability-Linked

Loan - Pharmaceuticals
award at The Asset Triple A
Sustainable Finance Awards
2024 in recognition of Biocon
Biologics'USD 1.2 billion
Sustainability Linked Loan
that funded the Company’s
acquisition of Viatris'Biosimilars
business.

= Awarded for Outstanding
Achievements in the category
of Environmental Excellence
at the 23" Greentech
Environment Award 2023.

Health and Safety
Conferred with the 21
Greentech Safety Award 2023’
at the Safety India Summit
organized by the Greentech
Foundation for outstanding
achievement in the ‘Safety
Excellence’category.

Bhufirentech

The Moot i o
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CSR

= Awarded the prestigious 9"
Dalmia Bharat- CSRBOX CSR
Impact Award 2023 in the
‘Healthcare (Small)’ category
for its Oral Cancer Screening
Program.

= Received the ‘Gold

Green Environment
Stewardship Award'for urban
resilience program aimed

at rejuvenating lakes in
Bengaluru at the 10" edition
of the National CSR Times
Summit and Awards.

= Awarded the Unnatha
Suraksha Puraskara by the
National Safety Council -
Karnataka Chapter in the
Safety category.

= Recognized as Outstanding
Performer for OHSE
(Occupational Health

and Safety Environment)
Excellence by World Safety
Organization.

= International Safety Award
conferred by the British Safety
Council.

Intellectual Property
Recognized as an Asia IP Elite
for 2023 by IAM (Intellectual
Asset Management), the
world’s biggest IP publication.

TR ASIE T

=14

= Conferred“Special
Appreciation IP Award 2023"
by the ClI (Confederation of
Indian Industry) at the 9"
International Conference on
Intellectual Property Rights
(IPR).

= Awarded Best IPR Portfolio
(Lifesciences) in the Large
Enterprise category, at the

31 |P Excellence Awards and
Global IP Conclave, organized
by ASSOCHAM (Associated
Chambers of Commerce and
Industry of India).

Quality Excellence

Won 3 awards in the 4"
National Challenger’s Trophy
event as part of the 46" ClI
National Kaizen Competition
and one award at QCFl's

37" National Convention on
Quality Concept 2023.

Awards and Recognition

Human Resources

Won the ‘Corporate Excellence
Award'at the Making India
Employable Conference &
Awards, 2023.

Diversity, Equity &
Inclusion (DEI)

= Recognized by LIFE AT
WORK Awards (LAWA) as one
of the Top 3 companies for
Sustainability & DEl in Malaysia.

= Listed among the 100 Best
Companies for Women'and
the Top 100 Exemplar of
Inclusion’ category in India at
the Avtar & Seramount Best

of the Best Conference, 2023,
for the sixth time in a row. This
also put us on the Top 100 Hall
of Fame.

= Won DivHersity Award
2024 from JobsForHer in
the category, Top 5 Most
Innovative Practices —
Women L&D Programs.

= Recognized by Times Group
as the Best Organization for
Women 2024 and received
the prestigious DEI Crusader
award.

= Conferred with the PoSH
Trailblazer Award & Safe
Workplace Advocate Award
by the NoMeansNo PoSH
Conclave.
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UNGC Alignment

Human Rights

Principle 1 Businesses should support and respect the Human Capital 72-75
protection of internationally proclaimed
human rights

Principle 2 Make sure that they are not complicit in Human Capital 75
human rights abuses

Labor Rights

Principle 3 Businesses should uphold the freedom of Human Capital 75
association and the effective recognition
of the right to collective bargaining

Principle 4 Eliminate all forms of forced and Human Capital 75
compulsory labor

Principle 5 Abolish child labor Human Capital 75

Principle 6 Eliminate discrimination in respect of Human Capital 72,75
employment and occupation

Environment

Principle 7 Businesses should support a precautionary Natural Capital 78-80
approach to environmental challenges

Principle 8 Undertake initiatives to promote greater Human Capital 78-80
environmental responsibility

Principle 9 Encourage the development and diffusion Human Capital 78-80
of environmentally-friendly technologies

Anti-Corruption

Principle 10 Businesses should work against corruption Governance and Ethics 75,97,98
in all its forms, including extortion and
bribery
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Corporate Governance Report 135
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A Supplementary Data Book is being released with the Integrated Annual Report that includes BRSR,
GRI Index & ESG Data Book.
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Biocon Biologics Limited

Board’s Report

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors hereby present the 8th (Eighth) Annual Report on the business and operations of Biocon Biologics Limited (“the Company”) together
with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
("FY 2023-24")

1.

COMPANY'’S FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Financial highlights - Standalone and Consolidated

Particulars

Revenue from operations

Other income

Total income

Total expenses

Profit before tax and exceptional item
Exceptional item

Profit before tax

Provision for tax

Profit after tax

Earnings per share (EPS) before exceptional item
Earnings per share (EPS) after exceptional item

(Amount in T million except EPS)

Standalone Consolidated
FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
30,933 20,924 88,242 55,838
6,814 969 1,764 120
37,747 21,893 90,006 55,958
33,339 27,106 87,049 51,928
4,408 (5,213) 2,957 4,030
(82) (38) 166 (2,844)
4,326 (5,251) 3,123 1,186
637 (798) 941 (149)
3,689 (4,453) 2,182 1,335
2.41 (3.56) 1.30 3.17
2.36 (3.58) 1.40 1.07

State of Affairs of the Company
Standalone financial performance

The key highlights of the Company’s standalone financial performance
during FY 2023-24 are as under:

a) Revenue for FY24 was at % 30,933 million as against 3 20,924
million in FY23.

b) Profit/ (Loss) after tax at X 3,689 million in FY24 higher compared
to 2(4,453) million in FY23 primarily driven by higher revenues
and higher income from support services to the group
companies.

Consolidated financial performance

The key highlights of the Company’s consolidated financial
performance during FY 2023-24 are as under:

a) During the year, revenue grew by 58% on a consolidated basis
from 2 55,838 million to T 88,242 million. FY24 represents full
year of consolidation of the acquired business from Viatris as
compared to only 4 months of consolidation in FY23.The Group
has witnessed market share growth with all the products over
last four quarters in FY24.

b) EBITDA margin excluding exceptional items was 25% in FY24
largely in line with FY23 where the EBDITA margin was at 24%.
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Q) Profit after tax at % 2,182 million in FY24, higher compared to
21,335 million in FY23 primarily due to higher revenues partly
offset by higher acquisition related intangible amortisation and
finance cost.

MAJOR EVENTS OCCURRED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
2023-24

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company
during the financial year 2023-24.

The major events occurred during the year are as below:

a.  The Board of Directors and Members of the Company, at their
respective meetings held on May 11, 2023 and May 12, 2023,
approved the issuance of 50,75871 Series A Compulsorily
Convertible Debentures (“Series A CCDs"), each having face
value of ¥ 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) at a premium of ¥ 270.74
(Indian Rupees Two Hundred Seventy Paise Seventy Four), for an
aggregate consideration of ¥ 142,50,00,000 (Indian Rupees One
Hundred and Forty Two Crore and Fifty Lakhs), 2,67,151 Series
B Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (“Series B CCDs"), each
having face value of ¥ 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) at a premium of
% 270.74 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Seventy Paise Seventy
Four), for an aggregate consideration of ¥ 7,50,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Seven Crore Fifty Lakhs) to ESOF lIl Investment Fund and
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited (“Investors”).



The Board of Directors and Members of the Company at their
respective meetings held on May 22, 2023 and May 24, 2023,
have approved issuance of 50,75871 Series C Compulsorily
Convertible Debentures (“Series C CCDs") and 2,67,151 Series D
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (“Series D CCDs") to the
Investors each having face value of % 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) and
at a premium of X 270.74 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Seventy
Paise Seventy Four) per CCD, for an aggregate consideration of
T 142,50,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Hundred and Forty Two
Crore and Fifty Lakhs) and ¥ 7,50,00,000 (Indian Rupees Seven
Crore Fifty Lakhs).

Investors have invested R 500,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five
Hundred Crores Only) in Biocon Limited by way of subscription
to the non-convertible debentures (“NCDs") which in turn
was invested by Biocon Limited into the Company by way of
issuance of 1,78,10,073 Optionally Convertible Debentures
("OCDs") amounting to X 500,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five
Hundred Crores Only) to Biocon Limited. The obligations of
Biocon Limited under the NCDs are secured by way of a pledge
over the Company’s shares

Integration of acquired Viatris’ Biosimilars Business

During the year under review, the Company successfully
completed the integration of Viatris' biosimilars business in
over 70 Emerging Markets countries on July 1, 2023, marking a
significant milestone and the start of the transition process. This
allowed the Company to lead commercial operations in these
markets and broaden patient access to a differentiated portfolio
of high-quality biosimilars.

Subsequently, the Company completed the North American
transition ahead of schedule on September 1, 2023, following
the Emerging Markets integration. This enabled the Company
to expand the availability of high-quality biosimilars to patients,
providing more accessible and affordable treatment options
for diabetes, cancer, autoimmune diseases, and introducing
products in new therapeutic areas like ophthalmology.

Further, on November 30, 2023, the integration of Viatris'
biosimilars business in 31 European countries was completed,
enhancing access to life-saving treatments across Europe. The
Company's unique, fully integrated capabilities and robust
portfolio of 20 products allowed for better addressing of patient
needs and becoming a reliable partner to health organizations.

The final wave of integration was completed with over 10
Emerging Markets, Japan, Australia, New Zealand and global
functions successfully transitioning to the Company on
December 15, 2023. The integration spanned more than 120
countriesand 14functions,welcomingover 250+ new colleagues
to the Company across the globe. The integration of Viatris
business was a significant milestone, marking the beginning
of the Company's transformation into a fully integrated global
entity. In addition to employees and capabilities transitioning
from Viatris, we onboarded experienced, global talent from
the market and built new organizational capabilities from the
grounds up in many areas.

Biocon Biologics Limited

For the purpose of increasing the global presence, during the
financial year under review, the Company has incorporated
following step-down subsidiaries:

1. Biocon Biologics France SAS

Biocon Biologics Switzerland AG

Biocon Biologics Belgium BV

Biocon Biologics Finland OY

Biocon Biologics Spain S.L.U

Biocon Biologics Greece SINGLE MEMBER PC.
Biocon Biologics Croatia LLC

Biocon Biologics Italy Sl

O L N o AW N

Biocon Biologics Philippines, Inc,,

©

Biocon Biologics (Thailand) Co. Ltd,

Biocon Biologics Morocco SARLAU
12. Biocon Biologics South Africa (PTY) Ltd

The details of the subsidiaries are set out separately and forms
part of the Board's Report.

Divestment of Two Non-Core Branded Formulations - India
Business Units to Eris Lifesciences Limited

During the year under review, the Board of Directors, in its
meeting on November 7, 2023, approved sale of a business
undertaking and executed a definitive agreement with
Eris Lifesciences Limited (“Eris”) for the divestiture of the
Dermatology and Nephrology branded formulations business
units in India. This primarily involved the transfer of legacy small
molecule brands. The transaction, facilitated a smooth transition
of product brands and the associated employees, ensuring
continuity for both staff and patients. This strategic move to
divest the non-core branded formulations aligns with the
Company's focus on core therapy areas, reinforcing its position
as a fully integrated biosimilars entity.

The consideration for the collaboration was T 3,660 million,
inclusive of working capital. It reflects a favourable multiple of
4x on Revenues and 22x on EBITDA, underscoring the accretive
nature of the transaction.

Strategic collaboration with Eris

During the year under review, the Board of Directors, at its
meeting held on March 13, 2024, approved and entered into
a long-term commercial collaboration with Eris to broaden
patient access to the Company's portfolio of Metabolics,
Oncology, and Critical Care products in India.

The collaboration aligned with the Company’s strategy to
capitalize onits legacy branded formulations business, cultivated
over two decades, and built upon the existing partnership with
Eris regarding the Company's Nephrology and Dermatology
business. Through this partnership, the Company continues
to harness Eris' robust commercial presence to significantly
enhance patient access to its premier biosimilars in India.
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The consideration for the collaboration was % 12,420 million,
reflecting an accretive multiple of 3.4x on Revenues and 18x
on EBITDA. As an integral part of this agreement, employees
associated with the business joined Eris, ensuring continuity
for both the workforce and patients. Additionally, the Company
entered into a decade-long supply contract with Eris as a
component of this deal.

e.  Redemption of NCD

During the year, the Company has prepaid Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCD’) amounting to X 2,000 Million as on
February 23, 2024. The said 2,000 NCD's were issued to HDFC
Bank Limited amounting to ¥ 2,000 Million at a face value
% 10,00,000 each for a tenure of 43 months at a fixed coupon
rate of 6.8949% p.a. and the same were repayable at the end of
the term in April 2024.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING
THE FINANCIAL POSITION

The material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of
the financial year i.e. March 31, 2024 and as on the date of this report
are set out below:

a) The Board of Directors at their meeting held on April 24, 2024 and
members of the Company at their meeting held on April 29, 2024,
have approved the issuance of 1,2500,000 Unlisted, Unrated,
Unsecured, Redeemable, Optionally Convertible Debentures
("OCDs"), having face value of 500 (Indian Rupees Five Hundred
only) each for an aggregate consideration of % 6,250,000,000/-
(Indian Rupees Six Hundred Twenty Five Crores only) to Biocon
Limited.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

During the year under review, no amount was transferred to the
general reserves of the Company.

DIVIDEND

As on the date of this Report, the Board of Directors have not
recommended any dividend for the year under review.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES

1) The Company has 22 wholly owned subsidiaries as on March 31,
2024. A brief about the Subsidiaries is set out below:

a)  Biocon Biologics UK Limited, United Kingdom

Biocon Biologics UK Limited, (formerly known as Biocon
Biologics Limited) (“BBUK") which was incorporated in the
United Kingdom in March, 2016 is a wholly owned subsidiary of
the company.

BBUK reported a total revenue of % 18,157 million and net profit
of % 4,788 million in FY24 against a total revenue of 219,754
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b)

<)

d)

e)

million and profit of T 4,190 million in FY23.
Biosimilars Newco Limited, United Kingdom

Biosimilars Newco Limited (“BNCL") is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, registered in the United Kingdom,
which was acquired from Mylan Inc, a Pennsylvania corporation
and wholly owned subsidiary of Viatris Inc. on November 29,
2022, as part of acquisition of Viatris'Biosimilar business.

BNCL undertakes biosimilar businesses, i.e. w.rt. Trastuzumab,
Bevacizumab, Pegfilgrastim, Glargine U100, Aspart, Pertuzumab
and Glargine U300 across the globe.

BNCL reported the total revenues of % 43,656 million and net
loss of % 2,746 million in FY24 against a total revenue of 314,524
million and net loss of ¥ 3,237 million in FY23.

Biosimilar Collaborations Ireland Limited, Ireland

Biosimilar Collaborations Ireland Limited (“BCIL") is a wholly
owned subsidiary of BBUK, registered in Ireland which was
acquired from Mylan Ireland Limited, an Irish private limited
company and wholly owned subsidiary of Viatris Inc. on
November 29, 2022 as part of acquisition of Viatris' Biosimilar
business.

BCIL undertakes biosimilars businesses w.rt Adalimumab,
Etanercept and Aflibercept.

BCIL reported the revenues of % 25,728 million and net loss of
% 3,546 million in FY24 against a total revenue of 7,835 million
and net profit of * 1,258 million in FY23.

Biocon SDN. BHD., Malaysia

Biocon SDN. BHD, Malaysia (‘BSB"), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK. BSB was established as the group's first
overseas manufacturing facility at Malaysia. BSB is engaged in
the manufacturing of insulin and insulin analogues for global
markets and is located within BioXcell, a biotechnology park
in Iskandar Puteri, Johor. The facility is Asia’s largest integrated
insulins manufacturing facility with approvals from several
global agencies including National Pharmaceutical Regulatory
Authority (‘NPRA)), Malaysia, cGMP certification from HPRA
(EMA) and cGMP certification from the US Food and Drug
Administration (‘US FDA).

With over USD 350 Million investment, about 800 strong
workforce, BSB is the single largest biotech facility in Malaysia
and holds the commercial and development rights of insulin
and insulin analogs.

BSB reported the revenue from operations of X 14,680 million
and net loss of X 1,786 million in FY24 against a revenue from
operations of ¥ 12,686 million and net profit of X 1,905 million in
FY23.

Biocon Biologics Inc., United States of America

Biocon Biologics Inc (“BBI") is a wholly owned subsidiary of



f)

h)

BBUK, registered in the State of Delaware, United States of
America. BBl was established with an objective to undertake all
the activities relating to pharmaceuticals, biopharmaceuticals
and biologics products, i.e. commercialization, distribution etc.
in the USA and other geographies

BBI reported a total revenue of 19,977 million and net profit of
% 623 million in FY24 against the revenues from inter- company
cross charge of ¥ 382 million and net profit of ¥ 14 million in
FY23.

Biocon Biologics Healthcare Malaysia SDN. BHD., Malaysia

Biocon Biologics Healthcare Malaysia SDN BHD, Malaysia
("Biocon Healthcare Malaysia”) is a wholly owned subsidiary
of BBUK, registered in Malaysia. Biocon Healthcare Malaysia was
established with an objective of undertaking operations for
biologics in Malaysia. Biocon Healthcare Malaysia was set up to
carry on the business as importers and distributors of drugs and
devices in the Malaysian market.

Biocon Healthcare Malaysia did not have any operations during
FY24.

Biocon Biologics Do Brasil Ltda., Brazil

Biocon Biologics Do Brasil Ltda, Brazil (“BB-Brazil”) is a wholly
owned subsidiary of BBUK, registered in Brazil. BB-Brazil was
established with an objective to undertake direct marketing
services and representatives’ activities and intermediation in
general.

BB-Brazil reported the revenues from inter-company cross
charge of % 95 million and net profit of X 4 million in FY24
against the revenue of % 48 million and net profit of X 1 million
in FY23.

Biocon Biologics FZ-LLC, United Arab Emirates

Biocon Biologics FZ LLC, UAE ("BB-FZLLC") is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK, registered in Dubai, UAE. BB-FZLLC was
established with an objective to undertake import and export,
marketing and sales promotion, research and development,
storage, support services activities related to therapeutics.

BB-FZLLC reported the revenues from inter-company cross
charge of ¥ 248 million and net profit of ¥ 7 million in FY24
against the revenue of 261 million and net profit of 5 million
in FY23.

Biocon Biologics Canada Inc., Canada

Biocon Biologics Canada Inc. (“BBCI"), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK, incorporated on March 20, 2023 and
registered in Ontario, Canada. BBCl was established with an
objective to undertake activities such as commercialisation,
sale and distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals,
biopharmaceuticals and biologics products.

During the year, BBCl reported the revenues of % 1,252 million

)
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m)

n)
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and net profit of X 29 million. There was no business or any
operations in FY23.

Biocon Biologics Germany GmbH, Germany

Biocon Biologics Germany GmbH ("BBGG”), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK with effect from March 29, 2023, registered
in Frankfurt, Germany. BBGG was set up with an objective
to undertake activities such as commercialisation, sale and
distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals, biopharmaceuticals
and biologics products.

During the year, BBGG reported the revenue from inter-company
cross charge of % 609 million and net profit of X 9 million. There
was no business or any operations in FY23.

Biocon Biologics France S.A.S, France

Biocon Biologics France S.AS (‘BBF’), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK, incorporated on April 14, 2023 and
registered in Paris, France. BBF was established with an objective
to undertake activities such as commercialisation, sale and
distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals, biopharmaceuticals
and biologics products.

During the year, BBF reported the revenues of % 2,115 million
and net profit of ¥ 31 million.

Biocon Biologics Spain S.L.U, Spain

Biocon Biologics Spain S.L.U ("BBS"), is a wholly owned subsidiary
of BBUK, incorporated on April 21, 2023 and registered in
Barcelona, Spain. BBS was established with an objective to
undertake activities such as commercialisation, sale and
distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals, biopharmaceuticals
and biologics products.

During the year, BBS reported the revenues of ¥ 204 million and
net profit of T 4 million.

Biocon Biologics Switzerland AG, Switzerland

Biocon Biologics Switzerland AG ("BBSA”), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK, incorporated on April 25,2023 and registered
in Zurich, Switzerland. BBSA was established with an objective
to undertake activities such as commercialisation, sale and
distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals, biopharmaceuticals
and biologics products.

During the year, BBSA reported the revenues of X 56 million and
net profit of X 1 million.

Biocon Biologics Belgium BV, Belgium

Biocon Biologics Belgium BV (“BBB”"), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK, incorporated on April 28,2023 and registered
in Kraainem, Belgium. BBB was established with an objective
to undertake activities such as commercialisation, sale and
distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals, biopharmaceuticals
and biologics products.
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During the year, BBB reported the revenue from inter-company
cross charge of % 76 million and net profit of X 2 million.

Biocon Biologics Finland OY, Finland

Biocon Biologics Finland OY (“BBFOY”), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK, incorporated on May 10, 2023 and registered
in Helsinki, Finland. BBFOY was established with an objective
to undertake activities such as commercialisation, sale and
distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals, biopharmaceuticals
and biologics products.

During the year, BBFOY reported the revenue from inter-
company cross charge of ¥ 36 million and net profit of % 1
million.

Biocon Biologics Morocco S.A.R.L.A.U, Morocco

Biocon Biologics Morocco S.ARLA.U ("‘BBM"), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK, incorporated on July 24, 2023 and registered
in Casablanca, Morocco. BBM was established with an objective
to undertake activities such as commercialisation, sale and
distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals, biopharmaceuticals
and biologics products.

During the year, BBM reported revenue from the inter-company
cross charge of 332 million and net profit of X 1 million.

Biocon Biologics Greece SINGLE MEMBER P.C., Greece

Biocon Biologics Greece SINGLE MEMBER PC. ("BBG"), is a wholly
owned subsidiary of BBUK, incorporated on July 27, 2023 and
registered in Athens, Greece. BBG was established with an
objective to undertake activities such as commercialisation,
sale and distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals,
biopharmaceuticals and biologics products.

During the year, BBG reported the revenues of 2230 million and
net profit of 3 million.

Biocon Biologics South Africa (PTY) Ltd, South Africa

Biocon Biologics South Africa (Pty) Ltd. (“BBSA”), is a wholly
owned subsidiary of BBUK, incorporated on August 11,2023 and
registered in Gauteng, South Africa. BBSA was established with
an objective to undertake activities such as commercialisation,
sale and distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals,
biopharmaceuticals and biologics products.

During the year, BBSA reported revenue from the inter-company
cross charge of 1 million.

Biocon Biologics (Thailand) Co. Ltd, Thailand

Biocon Biologics (Thailand) Co,, Ltd. ("BBT"), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK, incorporated on September 8, 2023 and
registered in Bangkok, Thailand. BBT was established with an
objective to undertake activities such as commercialisation,
sale and distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals,
biopharmaceuticals and biologics products.
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During the year, BBT reported revenue from the inter-company
cross charge of % 1 million and net loss of % 1 million.

Biocon Biologics Philippines, Inc., Philippines

Biocon Biologics Philippines Inc. (“BBP”), is a wholly owned
subsidiary of BBUK, incorporated on October 25, 2023 and
registered in Manila, Philippines. BBP was established with an
objective to undertake activities such as commercialisation,
sale and distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals,
biopharmaceuticals and biologics products.

During the year, BBP reported revenue from the inter-company
cross charge of ¥ 9 million.

Biocon Biologics Italy S.r.l, Italy

Biocon Biologics Italy Sl ("BBIS"), is a wholly owned subsidiary
of BBUK, incorporated on December 27, 2023 and registered
in Italy. BBIS was established with an objective to undertake
activities such as commercialisation, sale and distribution etc.
related to pharmaceuticals, biopharmaceuticals and biologics
products.

During the year, BBIS did not have any operations during FY24.
Biocon Biologics Croatia LLC, Croatia

Biocon Biologics Croatia LLC (“BBC"), isa wholly owned subsidiary
of BBUK, incorporated on January 18, 2024 and registered
in Zagreb, Croatia. BBC was established with an objective
to undertake activities such as commercialisation, sale and
distribution etc. related to pharmaceuticals, biopharmaceuticals
and biologics products.

During the year, BBC did not have any operations during FY24.

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement
of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures, as may be
applicable, is provided in Form AOC- 1 in Annexure - 1 to this
report. The statement also provides the details of performance
and the financial positions of each of the subsidiaries

Merger of M/s Biocon Research Limited

Pursuant to consolidating biosimilars business under the
Company in India, Biocon Research Limited (‘“Transferor
Company’) merged with the Company vide order passed by
the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bengaluru (“NCLT")
on February 4, 2020. Pursuant to the conditions of the Scheme
of Amalgamation, the merger was effective from February 7,
2020.

During the year under review, the Company has applied for
assessment of stamp duty payable on such merger order under
the provisions of the Karnataka Stamp Act, 1957 with the District
Registrar. Upon completion of such assessment and payment
of stamp duty, the Company will apply for the final decree for
merger of the Transferor Company into the Company with the
NCLT.
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CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there has been no change in the share capital of the Company. The share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024,

is as follows:

Particulars No. of shares Nominal value Amount
per share (in % million)

Authorised Share Capital

Equity 2,50,00,00,000 10 25,000

Preference 1,00,00,00,000 10 10,000

Total 3,50,00,00,000 10 35,000

Paid-up Share Capital

Equity 1,32,17,24,958 10 13,217

Preference

Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares 20,54,20,000 10 2,054

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 23,11,63,944 10 2311

Total 1,75,83,08,902 10 17,583

During the financial year, there was no allotment of equity and preference shares.

The debt structure of the Company as on March 31, 2024, is as follows

Type of Security No.of Nominal Value Amount

instruments (in T million)
Unlisted Unsecured Redeemable Optionally Convertible Debentures 1,125 1,00,00,000 11,250
Unlisted, unrated, unsecured redeemable Optionally Convertible Debentures 1,78,10,073 280.74* 5,000
Series A Unsecured Unrated Unlisted Compulsorily Convertible Debenture 50,75,871 280.74*% 1,425
Series B Unsecured Unrated Unlisted Compulsorily Convertible Debenture 2,67,151 280.74* 75
Series C Unsecured Unrated Unlisted Compulsorily Convertible Debenture 50,75,871 280.74*% 1,425
Series D Unsecured Unrated Unlisted Compulsorily Convertible Debenture 2,67,151 280.74* 75

*This includes premium of ¥ 270.74.

During the year under review, the debt structure of the Company was changed upon the occurrence of following events, the details of which are
provided as below:

i. Allotment of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures on private placement by way of preferential allotment on May 19, 2023

The Board of Directors, on May 19, 2023, approved allotment of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (“CCDs") as follows:

Name of investor Type of No. of Face Value per Premium per Issue Price per Total Amount
Securities Securities Security Security security (in%)
(in%) (in%) (in %)
1 ESOF Ill Investment Fund Series A CCD 47,90,678 10 270.74 280.74 1,34,49,35,000
Series B CCD 2,52,141 10 270.74 280.74 7,07,86,040
2 Edelweiss Alternative Asset  Series A CCD 2,85,193 10 270.74 280.74 8,00,65,000
Advisors Limited Series B CCD 15,010 10 270.74 280.74 42,13,960

ii.  Allotment of Optionally Convertible Debentures on private placement by way of preferential allotment on May 20, 2023

The Board of Directors, on May 20, 2023, approved allotment of 1,78,10,073 optionally convertible debentures of face value X 10 (Indian Rupees
Ten only) each at an issue price of % 280.74/- (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Eighty and Paise Seventy Four only) including at a premium of % 270.74
(Indian Rupees Two Hundred Seventy and Paise Seventy Four only) each aggregating to ¥ 500,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Hundred Crores
Only) to Biocon Limited on private placement by way of preferential allotment.
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iii.  Allotment of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures on private placement by way of preferential allotment on May 29, 2023

The Board of Directors, on May 29, 2023, approved allotment of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (“CCDs") as follows:

Name of investor Type of No. of Face Value per Premium per Issue Price Total Amount
Securities Securities Security Security per security (in%)
(in%) (9] (in%)
1 ESOF Il Investment Fund Series C CCD 47,90,678 10 270.74 280.74 1,34,49,35,000
Series D CCD 252,141 10 270.74 280.74 7,07,86,040
2 Edelweiss Alternative Asset  Series C CCD 2,85,193 10 270.74 280.74 8,00,65,000
Advisors Limited Series D CCD 15,010 10 270.74 280.74 42,13,960

iv. Redemption of NCD

During the year, the Company has prepaid Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCD') amounting to % 2,000 Million on February
23, 2024. The said NCD's were issued to HDFC Bank Limited
amounting to ¥ 2,000 Million at a face value % 10,00,000 each
for a tenure of 43 months at a fixed coupon rate of 6.8949% p.a.
and the same were repayable at the end of the term in April
2024.

CREDIT RATING OF SECURITIES

During the year under review, CRISIL vide its letter dated November
29, 2023, has reaffirmed its ‘CRISIL AA+/ Stable’ (pronounced as CRISIL
double A plus rating with Stable outlook) on X700 crores Bank loan
facilities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company has opted to provide a Corporate Governance Report
and Management Discussion and Analysis Report to its Members for
the financial year 2023- 24.

The Corporate Governance Report is annexed and forms part of this
Report.

A detailed report on Management Discussion and Analysis forms part
of this Report and also covers the consolidated operations reflecting
the global nature of our business.

10. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN (ESOP)

A. Biocon Biologics Limited Restricted Stock Units Long Term
Incentive Plan (“RSU LTI Plan”) FY 2022-24

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors had, at its
meeting held on July 21,2021, introduced the “Biocon Biologics
Limited Restricted Stock Units Long Term Incentive Plan FY
2022-24" (hereinafter referred to as “the Plan”) designed to drive
performance towards achieving the Board approved strategy
plan for the FY 2022-24.

The Plan covers key employees who, by virtue of the roles they
play, influences the accomplishment of the strategy plan.
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The Plan is implemented through Biocon Biologics Employees
Welfare Trust (‘the Trust) wherein the Company would issue
shares to the Trust by way of fresh allotment over a period of
time. The Trust may acquire shares by way of fresh allotment
from the Company or through secondary market acquisition,
once the Company is listed on stock exchanges, such number
of shares of the Company, as may be required, in compliance
with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021, as amended and applicable from time to time
and such subscription or purchase may, inter alia, be financed
by a loan given by the Company, provided the loan is obtained
in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014, as amended.

The Plan is administered by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company and/or through the Trust.

The maximum number of Restricted Stock Units ("RSUs") issued
pursuant to this Plan would not exceed 7,134,885 (Seven Million
One Hundred Thirty Four Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty Five)
which would upon exercise be convertible into 7,134,885 (Seven
Million One Hundred Thirty Four Thousand Eight Hundred
Eighty Five) equity shares of the Company.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors had, at their
meeting held on February 27, 2022, approved amendment
to the Plan to extend the benefits of this Plan to employees
of Holding Company or its Affiliates providing services to any
Group Company. The said alteration was approved by the
Members by Special Resolution in the 6th AGM.

The Board of Directors on December 17, 2022, allotted for
consideration in cash 12,85,714 equity shares of face value
of ¥ 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each aggregating to
31,28,57,140/- (Indian Rupees One Crore Twenty Eight Lakhs
Fifty Seven Thousand One Hundred and Forty only) to the Trust
for subsequent transfer to identified employees. who exercise
the Long Term Incentive Restricted Stock Units that vested in
them on July 31, 2022.

Based on recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors had, at their
meeting held on May 22, 2023, approved to amend the vesting
and exercise conditions in the Plan that are not prejudicial to the
interests of the employees.



Further, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors had, at their
meeting held on November 7, 2023, approved to extend the last
grant date under the Plan from October 31, 2023 to March 31,
2024, and vesting schedule thereto, for granting LTI RSUs to the
employees involved in Strategic Projects.

The applicable disclosures as stipulated under sub rule 9 of Rule
12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014
as on March 31, 2024 are appended herewith as Annexure 2 to
the Board's Report. The details of the RSU LTI Plan forms part of
the notes to accounts of the Financial Statements.

Biocon Biologics RSU Plan 2023 (“the BBL RSU Plan 2023")

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors on February
22, 2023, approved the “Biocon Biologics RSU Plan 2023" (“the
BBL RSU Plan 2023") administered through the Biocon Limited
Employees Welfare Trust (“the Trust”) under the instructions and
direct superintendence of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company for the benefit of eligible permanent
employees (‘Identified employees”) at such price in one or
more tranches as determined by the Board in accordance with
applicable laws, and as per the terms of the BBL RSU Plan 2023
and to provide for grant and subsequent vesting and exercise
of RSUs by Identified Employees in the manner and method as
contained in the BBL RSU Plan 2023.

Based on the recommendation received from Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors have further
extended the benefit of the plan to the Identified Employees
of present and future subsidiary company(ies) / step-down
subsidiaries of the Company on the terms of the BBL RSU Plan
2023.

The BBL RSU Plan 2023, was subsequently approved by the
Members at their 20th Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on
February 24, 2023.

The applicable disclosures as stipulated under sub rule 9 of Rule
12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014
as on March 31, 2024 are appended herewith as Annexure 2 to
the Board's Report. The details of the BBL RSU Plan 2023 forms
part of the notes to accounts of the Financial Statements..

Biocon Biologics Limited Restricted Stock Units (‘RSU’) and
Performance Stock Units (‘PSU’) Long Term Incentive FY
2025-29 Plan (“BBL RSU PSU LTI Plan”)

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on February 05, 2024 and February 06, 2024
respectively, the Members at its meeting held on April 23, 2024,
introduced the “Biocon Biologics Limited Restricted Stock Units
(‘RSU') and Performance Stock Units (PSU’) Long Term Incentive
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FY 2025-29 Plan (“BBL RSU PSU LTI Plan”) (hereinafter referred to
as"the Plan”) designed to drive performance towards achieving
the Board approved strategy plan.

As the Company has transformed into a global organization,
the Plan is designed to drive performance towards achieving
common goals and delivering on key initiatives measured
through revenue & profits, Members value creation and key
milestones. The Plan is designed for critical and leadership roles
pivotal for driving performance. The Plan is linked to the Boards'
approved strategy plan for biosimilars business and to motivate
the identified Employees to drive performance towards
achieving common goals and delivering on key initiatives
in alignment with the approved strategy plan for biosimilars
business.

The Plan is implemented through Biocon Biologics Employees
Welfare Trust (‘the Trust’) wherein the Company would issue
shares to the Trust by way of fresh allotment over a period of
time. The Trust may acquire shares by way of fresh allotment
from the Company or through secondary market acquisition,
once the Company is listed on stock exchanges, such number
of shares of the Company, as may be required, in compliance
with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021, as amended and applicable from time to time
and such subscription or purchase may, inter alia, be financed
by a loan given by the Company, provided the loan is obtained
in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014, as amended.

The Plan is administered by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company or through the Trust.

The maximum number of RSUs and PSUs issued pursuant to
this Plan would not exceed 3,19,28,529 (Three Crore Nineteen
Lakhs Twenty Eight Thousand Five Hundred and Twenty Nine)
which would upon exercise be convertible into 3,19,28,529
(Three Crore Nineteen Lakhs Twenty Eight Thousand Five
Hundred and Twenty Nine) equity shares of the Company.

11. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

There were no amounts required to be deposited into the Investor
Education and Protection Fund during the financial year 2023-24.

12. MANAGEMENT

A.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As on March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors comprised of 11
(Eleven) members including 2 (two) women members. The
Board has an appropriate mix of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Non-Independent Directors and Independent
Directors.
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I Appointment, Re-appointment and Retirement of Directors
during the financial year 2023-24

a)

b)

<)

d)

Peter Baron Piot re-appointed as Independent
Director

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on November 07, 2023, had approved the
re-appointment of Peter Baron Piot (DIN: 09015343) as an
Independent Director of the Company for a second term
comprising of 5 (five) years with effect from January 21,2024,
which was subsequently approved by the Members at the
23rd Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on December 12,
2023.

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw re-appointed as an Executive
Director and Executive Chairperson

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on February 06, 2024, had approved
re-appointment of Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw (DIN: 00347229)
as an Executive Director and Executive Chairperson of the
Company for a period of 5 (five) years with effect from
April 01, 2024, which was subsequently approved by the
Members at the 24th Extra-ordinary General Meeting held
on April 23,2024.

Nicholas Robert Haggar appointed as Independent
Director

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on February 06, 2024, had approved the
appointment of Nicholas Robert Haggar (DIN: 08518863)
as an Additional Director categorised as an Independent
Director of the Company with effect from February 06, 2024.
Further, the Members at the 24th Extra-ordinary General
Meeting held on April 23,2024 approved the appointment
of Nicholas Robert Haggar as an Independent Director of
the Company for a term commencing from February 06,
2024 till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held in the year 2027.

Appointment of Independent Director on the Board
of material subsidiaries

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 24 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors of Biocon
Limited, the listed parent entity of the Company had,
appointed its Independent Directors, Bobby Kanubhai
Parikh and Nicholas Robert Hagger on the Board of its
material subsidiaries as set out below:
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e)

Material Subsidiaries

Independent

Directors of
Biocon Limited

1 Bobby Kanubhai 1. Biocon SDN BHD,
Parikh Malaysia
(DIN: 00019437)

2 Nicholas Robert 1. Biocon Biologics Limited
Hagger (DIN: 2. Biocon Biologics UK
08518863) Limited;

3. Biosimilars Newco
Limited; and

4. Biosimilar Collaborations
Ireland Limited

Retirement of Directors

As per the provisions of Section 152(6) of Companies
Act, 2013, Thomas Jason Roberts (DIN: 09337723), Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director, retires by rotation
at the ensuing 8th Annual General Meeting (AGM) and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, at their
meeting held on May 14, 2024, had recommended his
re-appointment to the Members of the Company and
separate resolution shall be placed before the members
for their approval at the ensuing AGM.

As on the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the
Company are:

Name DIN Designation

Kiran Mazumdar- | 00347229 | Executive Chairperson
Shaw
Shreehas Pradeep | 09796480 | CEO and Managing
Tambe Director

Rajiv Malik 00120557 | Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director
and Nominee of
Mylan Inc.

01596180 | Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director
Thomas Jason 09337723 | Non-Executive Non-
Roberts Independent Director
Bobby Kanubhai | 00019437 | Independent Director
Parikh

Peter Baron Piot

Dr. Arun Suresh
Chandavarkar

09015343 | Independent Director

John Russell 03528496 | Independent Director
Fotheringham

Walls

Daniel Mark 06599933 | Independent Director
Bradbury

Nicholas Robert | 08518863 | Independent Director
Haggar

Nivruti Rai 01353079 | Independent Director




Composition of Board of Directors

m Non-Executive &
Independent

= Non-Executive & Non-
Independent

= Executive

Key Managerial Personnel appointed / resigned during
financial year 2023-24:

a) Change in role of Chinappa MB and his consequent
resignation as Chief Financial Officer of the Company

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Board of Directors, in their respective meetings held on
October 18, 2023, had noted change in role of Chinappa
MB from the position of Chief Financial Officer and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company to a strategic
finance role at Biocon Group and consequent to such
change, he resigned from the position of Chief Financial
Officer and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
with effect from close of business hours on October 30,
2023..

b)  KedarUpadhye, appointed as a Chief Financial Officer
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors
at their meeting held on October 18, 2023, appointed
Kedar Upadhye as the Chief Financial Officer and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company, with effect from the
commencement of business hours on October 31, 2023.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declarations from each of
the Independent Directors of the Company i.e. Bobby Kanubhai
Parikh, John Russell Fotheringham Walls, Peter Baron Piot, Daniel
Mark Bradbury, Nicholas Robert Haggar and Nivruti Rai under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they
meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 that he/she meets the criteria
of independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013. The Independent Directors also confirmed that they
have complied with Schedule IV - Code for Independent Directors
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Group's Code of Conduct.

They have further confirmed that they are not aware of any
circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably
anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge
their duties.
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Further, the independent directors have also submitted their
declaration in compliance with provisions of Rule 6(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, which mandated the inclusion of an independent director’s
name in the data bank of Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs
("CA").

Nivruti Rai and Peter Baron Piot, Independent Directors, have
passed the Online Proficiency Self- Assessment Test conducted
by IICA pursuant to the provisions of sub rule 4 of Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014. Further, Bobby Kanubhai Parikh, John Russell Fotheringham
Walls, Daniel Mark Bradbury and Nicholas Robert Haggar,
Independent Directors, are exempted from the requirement of
taking the online proficiency pursuant to the exemption provided
under proviso (A) to sub- rule 4 of Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and
experience (including the proficiency) of the independent
directors

Based on performance evaluation of the independent directors
of the Company conducted for the FY 2023-24, the Board is of the
view that they have requisite integrity, expertise, proficiency and
experience to carry out their duties with respect to the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified as per
the provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.The
Directors have made necessary disclosures, as required under
various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, the Non-Executive directors of
the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions
with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission and
reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for purposes of
attending Board and Committee meetings of the Company.

Board of Directors and Meetings

The meetings of the Board of Directors were scheduled at
regular intervals to discuss and decide on the matters of business
performance, policies, strategies, compliances, other matters
of significance and strategy apart from other Board business.
The Board exhibits strong operational oversight with regular
presentations in quarterly meetings. The schedule of the meetings
is circulated in advance, to ensure proper planning and effective
participation. In certain exigencies, decisions of the Board are also
accorded through circulation.

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Board meetings
and General Meetings.

During the financial year 2023-24, the Board met 8 (Eight)
times on April 26, 2023; May 11, 2023; May 22, 2023; August 08,
2023; October 18, 2023; November 07, 2023; February 06, 2024
and March 13, 2024. The maximum interval between any two
meetings did not exceed 120 (One Hundred Twenty) days, as
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13.

14.

prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. Details of all the Board
meetings i.e, meetings held during the year under review and
attendance thereto are provided in the Report on Corporate
Governance.

C. Committees of the Board

The Company has 4 (four) Board Committees as on March 31,
2024:

l. Audit Committee
Il. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

. Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental, Social
and Governance Committee

V. Risk Management Committee

Details of all the Committees along with their terms of reference,
composition, meetings held during the year and attendance
thereto under review are provided in the Report on Corporate
Governance.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Company’s current policy on “Appointment and Remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees” is to have
an appropriate mix of Executive, Non-Executive Non-Independent and
Independent Directors, to maintain the independence on the Board and
separate its functions of governance and management.

As on March 31, 2024, the Board consists of 11 Directors, majority of
them are Independent Directors. The Board comprises of a Woman
Executive Chairperson, CEO & Managing Director, 6 (six) Independent
Directors including 1 (One) Woman Independent Director and 3 (three)
Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors. The Board periodically
evaluates the need for change in its composition and size.

The policy of the Company on Appointment and Remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees, including
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence
of a Director and other matters, as required under sub-section (3)
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, is formulated by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The said policy is available
on the website of the Company at https://www.bioconbiologics.com/
docs/BBL-Policy-on-appointment-and-remuneration-of-Directors-and-
Key-Managerial-Personnel(s).pdf

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD,
ITS COMMITTEES AND OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act,
2013, during the year under review, the annual performance evaluation
of the Board, its Committees and individual directors were conducted in
order to ensure that the Board, its Committees and individual directors
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15.

are functioning effectively and demonstrating good governance. For
the financial year 2023-24, the Board had undertaken this exercise
through self-evaluation questionnaires.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their meeting held
on November 7, 2023, approved the criteria for evaluation of i) Board
of Directors as a whole (i) each Committee of the Board and (jii) each
Director individually, and (iv) Chairperson of the Board, for the FY 2023-
24, along with a set of questionnaires.

The questionnaires covered various aspects of the individual directors,
committees and Board of Director’s functioning such as:

Adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees

Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties,
obligations, independence, governance, ethics and values,
adherence to corporate governance norms, interpersonal
relationships, attendance and contribution at meetings etc

Participation and contribution by the Director, commitment,
including guidance provided to the senior management
outside of Board / committee meetings, effective deployment of
knowledge and expertise, effective management of relationship
with various stakeholders, independence of behaviour and
judgment etc

Subsequently, an evaluation process was conducted through an online
survey (through Diligent Board Books) during the month of January
2024.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Board of Directors carried out annual performance
evaluation of (i) Board of Directors as a whole (i) each Committee of
the Board and (iii) each Director individually (iv) Chairperson of the
Board for the FY 2023-24 and a detailed presentation on the outcome
of the aforementioned evaluation exercises was also presented at the
meeting of Board of Directors held on February 6, 2024 and also it was
discussed by Independent Directors at their separate meeting held on
May 14, 2024.

A detailed disclosure on the parameters and the process of Board
evaluation and the Board skill matrix approved by the Board has been
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

REMUNERATION RECEIVED BY EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FROM HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw, Executive Chairperson received X 38.43 million
in FY 2023-24 from Biocon Limited, holding company of the Company in
her capacity as Executive Chairperson at such company as well.

During the year under review, Shreehas Pradeep Tambe, CEO and
Managing Director of the Company, did not receive any commission
or remuneration from its holding company or subsidiary company(ies).



16. AUDITORS

A.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Based on recommendation of the Board of Directors, the
Members of the Company at the 6th Annual General Meeting
held on July 26, 2022 approved re-appointment of BSR and
Co. Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No. 101248W/W-
100022) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the second
and final term of 5 (five) consecutive years, to hold office from
conclusion of the 6th Annual General Meeting till conclusion of
the 11th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027.

The Auditors'Report on the financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is unqualified i, it
does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark
or disclaimer.

Further, there was no fraud reported by the Auditors of the
Company under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 for
the financial year under review.

The Auditors'Report is enclosed with the financial statements for
FY 2023-24.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors at their
meeting held on May 22, 2023 approved the appointment of
M/s V. Sreedharan and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries
as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company to conduct the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year.

In compliance with Section 204(1) of Companies Act, 2013 read
with applicable rules made thereunder, the Secretarial Audit
Reportissued by M/sV. Sreedharan and Associates for the financial
year 2023-24 is annexed in Annexure 3. There were no adverse
comments/ observations or reservations made by the Secretarial
Auditors for the year 2023-24 in the report issued by them.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 14, 2024,
appointed M/s V. Sreedharan & Associates, Company Secretaries,
as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial year
2024-25..

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Our Corporate Internal audit team is an independent assurance
and advisory function, responsible for evaluating and improving
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes. The internal audit team helps to enhance and protect
organizational value by providing risk-based objective assurance,
advice and insight. The internal audit team prepares annual audit
plans covering all the key processes based on risk assessment and
conducts extensive reviews covering financial, operational and
compliance controls.

The Company has adopted a co-source model of Internal Audits
where the audits are shared between internal In- house Corporate
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Audit team and Ernst and Young LLP (EY’) to execute it as per
the approved internal audit plan. In addition, areas requiring
specialized knowledge are reviewed in partnership with external
experts or by recruiting resources with specialized skills.

Based on recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of
Directors, at their meeting held on November 7, 2023, approved
the re-appointment of EY, Chartered Accountants as the Internal
Auditors of the Company for a period of 1 (one) year with effect
from October 1, 2023.

The Internal Auditors present their report to the Audit Committee
on a quarterly basis which is discussed upon and necessary
actions are taken by the management of the Company wherever
required.

Suggested improvements in processes are identified during
reviews and communicated to the management on an
ongoing basis. Internal audit team tracks implementation of
recommendations coming out of internal audit report on
ongoing basis. The Audit Committee of the Board monitors
the performance of the internal audit team on a periodic basis
through review of audit plans, audit findings and speed of issue
resolution through follow ups.

COST AUDITORS

Pursuant to Rule 8(5)(ix) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
the Cost Records of the Company are maintained in accordance
with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
as specified by the Central Government.

The Cost Audit Report for financial year ended 2022-23, was
submitted by M/s Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants
(Firm  Registration  Number 000065), Cost Auditors of the
Company to the Board of Directors which was approved by
the Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 8, 2023.
The Cost Auditors issued an unqualified cost audit report for FY
2022-23 which was filed with the Central Government within the
prescribed time.

M/s Rao, Murthy and Associates were re-appointed as the Cost
Auditors of the Company for FY 2023-24 by the Board of Directors
on May 22, 2023. The remuneration to the Cost Auditors of % 0.33
million per annum for the FY 2023- 24 was approved at the 7th
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on July 28, 2023.

The Cost Auditors would place their report for FY 2023-24 before
the Board of Directors on or before the due date. The Board's
Report for FY 2024-25 shall cover the same.

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 14, 2024, re-
appointed M/s Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration Number 000065), as the Cost Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2024-25.

The Cost Auditors have confirmed that their appointment is
within the limits of Section 141(3) (g) of the Companies Act, 2013
and have also certified that they are free from any disqualifications
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17.

18.

19.

20.

specified under Section 141(3) and proviso to Section 148(3) read
with Section 141(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, since the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be ratified
by the members, the Board recommended the same for approval
by members at the ensuing 8th Annual General Meeting.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, no fraud was reported by the Statutory
Auditors, to the Audit Committee, as required under Section 143(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has laid down certain guidelines, processes and structures,
which enable implementation of appropriate internal financial controls
across the organization. Such internal financial controls encompass
policies and procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring
orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to its
policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information. These include
control processes, both on manual and IT applications, including the
ERP applications wherein the transactions are approved and recorded.
Appropriate review and control mechanisms are built in place to
ensure that such control systems are adequate and are operating
effectively. Effectiveness of Internal financial controls is ensured through
management reviews, controlled self-assessment and independent
testing by the internal audit team.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material mis-statements in financial reporting due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, evaluation of the internal
financial controls are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively based on the internal control criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the guidance note on audit of internal control over financial
reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

DETAILS OF DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public and no amount of principal and interest were
outstanding as on March 31, 2024.

PARTICULARS
INVESTMENTS

OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND

Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the
notes to the Financial Statements.
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS
WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SECTION
188(1)

There were no materially significant related party transactions entered
into between the Company and its related parties, except for those
disclosed in the financial statements.

All the contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company
with the related parties during FY 2023-24 were in the ordinary course
of business, were on arm'’s length basis and were in accordance with the
Policy on Related Party Transactions of the Company.

Accordingly, particulars of contracts or arrangements with related
parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 along
with the justification for entering into such a contract or arrangement in
Form AOC-2 does not form part of this report.

The Company formulated the policy on ‘Materiality of Related Party
transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The details
of related party disclosures forms part of the notes to the Financial
Statements provided in the Annual Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as prescribed under sub-section (3)(m) of Section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, are appended herewith as Annexure 4 to the Board’s Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”)

CSR has been an integral part of our business since its inception. The
Company conducts its CSR efforts through the Biocon Foundation,
the Biocon Academy and collaborations with like-minded private
organizations and the Government. In the year under consideration,
the CSR programs of the Company were focused on providing financial
assistance for sustainable urban public transport system and promoting
healthcare.

CSR has been a core principle at our company since its founding. We
translate this commitment through the Biocon Foundation, the Biocon
Academy, and strategic partnerships with NGOs, private organizations
and the Government. This year, our CSR focus areas included sustainable
urban public transport systems, promoting access to quality healthcare
through initiatives like oral cancer surveillance, and actively participating
in environmental sustainability programs like lake rejuvenation and
resource management. We have also sanctioned grant-in-aid for
specific social welfare initiatives. Through this comprehensive approach,
we aim to contribute to a more equitable and sustainable future.

A.  Environmental Sustainability

Bengaluru's air pollution and traffic woes are a grave concern
for public health and residents’ well-being. In keeping with the
unwavering commitment to ecological balance and sustainability,
the Company has taken a stand for ecological sustainability by
endorsing a people-focused, eco-friendly transportation option.
The mass rail transit system, by reducing individual car use,



promises to cut down harmful emissions significantly.

In this pursuit, Biocon Foundation has signed a memorandum of
understanding with Bengaluru Metro Rail Corporation (BMRCL)
in 2020 to fund the construction of the proposed Metro Station
at Hebbagodi, and the Company continue to support the grant
towards Biocon-Hebbagodi Metro station. The Biocon-Hebbagodi
Metro station will form part of the new line of 18.82 KM from RV
Road to Bommasandra, being constructed under Phase Il of the
Bengaluru Metro Rail Project to provide a sustainable and efficient
mode of transport to residents of Bengaluruand its business
commuters on Hosur Road.

This collaboration involves funding the construction of the
Biocon -Hebbagodi Metro Station, adding a vital stop on the
18.82 km RV Road - Bommasandra line under Phase Il of the
Bengaluru Metro Rail Project. This is expected to significantly
alleviate traffic congestion on Hosur Road and contribute to a
cleaner environment by reducing vehicular pollution.

The Company's commitment to Bengaluru's transformation
extends beyond infrastructure; it encompasses the city's
aesthetic and cultural spirit. The beautification of median gardens
and pier walls between Hebbagodi and Huskur metro stations
infuses the cityscape with life and underscores the value of
community. Designs from Srishti School of Design adorn the pier
walls, celebrating "Pillars of Society" through essential vocations
and integrating Channapatna dolls' motifs, honoring the local
artistry. This comprehensive approach showcases the Company's
dedication to sustainable transport and community pride.

Banguluru, once known as the "City of Lakes," is facing a critical
water crisis. Many of its once-vibrant lakes have become polluted,
neglected and encroached upon. This alarming situation
necessitates a renewed focus on lake rejuvenation programs.
Lakes help regulate temperatures, mitigate the urban heat island
effect, and contribute to a more comfortable living environment.
Restoring them can combat rising temperatures and improve air
quality. The Company undertook rejuvenation of the Hebbagodi
lake, wherein water quality had deteriorated owing to increased
influx of sewage and other pollutants. In close collaboration
with experts and local stakeholders, the Company embarked on
a renewed rejuvenation initiative for Hebbagodi Lake. This new
approach focuses on nature-based solutions, recognizing the
vital role healthy ecosystems play in urban environments.

Promoting Healthcare

The Company is dedicated to preventive healthcare as a
cornerstone for community well-being. A key focus lies in our
oral cancer surveillance program, functioning across several
geographies, emphasizing early detection through screening,
counselling, and referral for treatment. We also actively engage in
groundbreaking research initiatives to further advance the fight
against this disease.

To advance the focus on research and innovation for healthcare,
the Company has contributed to the construction of the Biocon-
Syngene General Medicine wing at the Postgraduate Medical
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School & Hospital (PGMS&H), envisioned by Indian Institute of
Science (lISc). The wing willoe spread over six floors with 147
beds. The 800 bedded hospital is expected to be operational
by early 2025 and will serve as a not-for-profit, multi-specialty
hospital. With the advantage of co-location with the science and
engineering faculty and labs, an integrated dual degree MD-
PhD programme hospital and research centre is also envisioned,
which would enable cross-disciplinary training and research
opportunities for the students.

The Company has proactively tackled healthcare access in
Jammu and Kashmir, particularly in the terrorism-affected and
challenging terrains of Udhampur, Kathua, and Doda. Essential
medical kits, equipped with medications for common diseases
and wound care, were distributed, providing crucial healthcare
support to the residents.

Biocon Academy
Skill Gap

Biocon Academy, a Centre of Excellence for ‘Advanced Learning
in Applied Biosciences' with a vision to transform the raw talent
in India into skilful industry professionals and bridge the gap
between the industry and academia. This skill development
objective is achieved by offering short-term certificate programs
based on imparting industrial trainings. Within a span of 10 years,
it has trained more than 1000+ students in the life sciences sector
and successfully placed them across 87+ Pharma/Biopharma and
related service organisations in the industries pan India.

With an aim to offer the best skill development training and
enable our students to gear up to the industry’s skill requirement,
Biocon Academy, have adapted a unique four-pillar training
model as given below:

Application-Oriented  Industry Training provided by
its educational partners (Keck Graduate Institute (KGI),
California, BITS Pilani, MS Ramaiah, JSS AHER, etc)

Live-Experiential Learning provided by Subject Matter
Experts (SME) of Biocon/Syngene in their state-of-the-art
industrial facilities covering R&D, Manufacturing, QC, QA,
QC Microbiology, and National/International Regulatory
Affairs

Hands-on Experience in lab & pilot scale fermentation,
molecular biotechnology techniques for recombinant
antibody development, characterization, and clinical trial
projects in collaboration with its training partners Thermo
Fisher Scientific, BIOZEEN, JSS Hospital, Merck and Sartorius

Campus-to-Corporate  Professional = Skill  Development
Program provided by corporate and in-house trainers to
make students industry-ready.

Biocon Academy Programs:

Biocon KGlI Certificate Program in Biosciences

BITS Biocon Certificate Program in Applied Industrial
Microbiology
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Biocon Ramaiah Certificate Program in Quality Control
Analytical

Biocon Academy Faculty Development Program

Biocon JSS AHER Certificate Program in Global Regulatory
Affairs

Syngene  Ramaiah  Certificate Sterile

Manufacturing

Program in

Women Participation

Biocon Academy celebrates a remarkable female presence, with
74% of its student body comprising women across all programs.
Among the 1022 graduates, 760 were female, highlighting the
substantial gender diversity within the institution. These female
students are actively engaged in various departments, including
Production, Quality Control, Research & Development (R&D),
Quiality Control Microbiology, Quality Assurance, and Regulatory
Affairs. Impressively, 53% of female graduates find employment in
crucial Manufacturing and Quality departments, showcasing their
proficiency and expertise. Furthermore, our esteemed female
alumni have excelled in securing positions within renowned
biotech firms such as Dr. Reddy’s, Biocon, Biocon Biologics, Intas,
Baxter, and IQVIA, underscoring their invaluable contributions to
the industry's advancement and success.

SME Contribution

In its pursuit of experiential learning, functional visits play a
pivotal role in enabling students to observe theoretical concepts
in action. Biocon Academy is grateful for the participation of
Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) from Biocon, Biocon Biologics,
and Syngene, as they provide invaluable insights and practical
exposure to their students.

DE&I Sessions

Biocon Academy is one of the pioneering institutes in the country
that places a strong emphasis on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion
(DEJ) as integral components of student education.

At Biocon Academy, they prioritize diversity, equity, and inclusion
(DEl) through dedicated initiatives. The Senior leader Chella
Pandian from BBL spearheads engaging sessions aimed at raising
awareness and fostering inclusivity amongst its student body.
Additionally, their Program Dean, Bindu Ajit, offers specialized
coaching sessions tailored to the unique needs of selected
students who may require additional support. Through these
comprehensive efforts, Biocon Academy is committed to ensure
that every student feels empowered and supported on their
academic journey.

Faculty Development Program

Biocon Academy introduces Faculty Development Program
(FDP), a first-of-its-kind initiative to empower Biotech Faculty from
various educational institutes by helping them upgrade their
knowledge of emerging industry-specific technologies.

As of now, Biocon Academy have completed four batches of
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the FDP program and trained nearly 100 faculties, including
participants from Malaysia and Oman. They have also had
participation from faculties representing major states and
colleges across the country.

A detailed report regarding Corporate Social Responsibility is
appended herewith as Annexure 5 to the Boards' Report. The
Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility & Environmental, Social
and Governance and Annual Action Plan have been uploaded on
to the website of the Company and is available at https.//www.
bioconbiologics.com/docs/BBL-CSR-ESG-POLICY.pdf.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND INTERNAL ADEQUACY

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM') process is governed by the
company’s Risk Management Policy.

The Company has a Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the Board,
chaired by one of the Independent Director. Details of the Committee
and its terms of reference are set out in the Corporate Governance
report.

The RMC would primarily assist the Board in:

Monitoring and reviewing the Risk Management framework
and to perform such other functions as may be defined and
delegated by the Board and as may be mandated by applicable
laws and regulations, as in force from time to time.

Timely identification, evaluation, assessment, and mitigation of
various categories of risks encountered by the Company, which
are elaborated in the Risk Classification table below.

Each quarter, the RMC reviews critical risks and effectiveness
of mitigation actions along with its impact on the overall risk
exposure of the Company. All the critical risk areas are re-
evaluated at least once a year.

During the year focus areas of Risk Management Committee included
review of risks and mitigations related to acquired Business Integration,
Regulatory approvals, Commercial, Financial, ESG, Human Resource,
Cyber Security, Ethics and Compliance, Quality, Supply Chain
Management and Environmental.

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules prescribed thereunder is implemented through the Company’s
Whistle Blower Policy of the Company to enable the Directors,
employees and all stakeholders of the Company to report genuine
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the company’s code of conduct, to provide for adequate
safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism
and make provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases.

The Company adheres to uncompromising integrity in conduct of its
business and strictly abides by well-accepted norms of ethical, lawful
and moral conduct. It has zero tolerance for any form of unethical
conduct or behaviour.
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28.
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30.

31.

Based on recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of
Directors had, at their meeting held on February 6, 2024, approved
Whistle Blower and Integrity Policy of the Company. As such the vigil
mechanism established under this policy is applicable to the Company.
The policy can be accessed at: https://www.bioconbiologics.com/docs/
BBL-Whistleblower-and-ntegrity-Policy.pdf

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or
courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and operations
of the Company in the future.

COMPLIANCE OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

Details of cases for the financial year 2023-24 were as below:

SI. Particulars No. of complaints
1 Number of complaints filed during the | 4
financial year
2 Number of complaints disposed of 2

during the financial year

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING
PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY
CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONG
WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

During the year under review, there were no applications made or
proceedings pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF
THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

During the year under review, there was no such valuation done.
COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the provisions of the applicable
secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

FAILURE TO IMPLEMENT ANY CORPORATE ACTION

There has been no failure to implement any corporate action by the
Company for the FY 2023-24.

32.

33.

34.
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ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company as per the provisions of Section
134(3)(@) and 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, is available on the
website of the Company at https://www.bioconbiologics.com/

The Annual Return for the FY 2023-24 shall be filed with the Registrar of
Companies, Karnataka as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement containing particulars in terms of Section 197(12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
forms part of this report and is appended herewith as Annexure 6 to
the Boards'Report.

The statement containing particulars in terms of Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
forms part of this report. The above statement is available on the website
of the Company at www.bioconbiologics.com.

However, considering the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report, excluding the aforesaid
information, is being sent to the members of the Company and others
entitled thereto. The said information is available for inspection at the
registered office of the Company during business hours on working
days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing AGM. Any Members
interested in obtaining a copy thereof, may write to the secretarial team
of the Company in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In compliance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge, hereby confirm the following:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b)  They have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

Q) They took proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)  They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern
basis;

e)  They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed
by the Company and that such internal financial controls were
adequate and were operating effectively; and
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f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.
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Annexure 2
Disclosure with respect to Employees Stock Option Plan of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24
[Pursuant to sub rule 9 of Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014]

A. Details of Biocon Biologics Limited Restricted Stock Units Long Term Incentive Plan FY 2022-24 for the financial year 2023-24

(@) Options granted during the year 18,73,818
(b) Options vested during the year 19,62,258
(©) Options exercised during the year 33,590
(d) The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option 33,590
(e) Options lapsed during the year 6,60,462
(f) The exercise price; 2 10/-
(Face value of the shares
as on date of exercise)
(9) Variation of terms of options; NA
(h) Money realized by exercise of options; 3,35,900
(0] Total number of options in force; 68,16,997
() Employee wise details of options granted during FY24 to:
(i) Key managerial personnel 4,27,857
1 Shreehas Pradeep Tambe CEO and Managing Director 2,33,929
2. Kedar Upadhye Chief Financial Officer 1,07,143
3 Akhilesh Nand General Counsel — Emerging Markets 58,929
4. Deepika Srivastava Company Secretary 10,000
(i) Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option amounting to None
five percent or more of options granted during that year.
(i) Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding None

one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the
company at the time of grant;

B.  Details of Biocon Biologics RSU Plan 2023 for the financial year 2023-24

(a) Options granted during the year 9,550
(b) Options vested during the year Nil
(0 Options exercised during the year Nil
(d) The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option Nil
(e) Options lapsed during the year 4,66,927
(f) The exercise price; 10/-

(Face value of the shares
as on date of exercise)

(9) Variation of terms of options; NA
(h) Money realized by exercise of options; Nil
(i) Total number of options in force; 15,82,620
(j) Employee wise details of options granted during FY23 to;-

(i) Key managerial personnel; Nil

(i) Anyother employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option amounting to Nil

five percent or more of options granted during that year..

(i) Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding Nil
one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the
company at the time of grant;

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Biocon Biologics Limited

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw

Place: Bengaluru Executive Chairperson
Date: May 14, 2024 DIN: 00347229
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Annexure 3
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to Sub Section (1) of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

For the Financial Year Ended 31.03.2024

To,

The Members,

Biocon Biologics Limited

Biocon House, Ground Floor, Tower-3,
Semicon Park, Electronic City, Phase - I,
Hosur Road, Bengaluru - 560100

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by
Biocon Biologics Limited (“the Company”). The Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us with a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the financial year
ended on March 31, 2024 (the audit period) complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed,
and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended
on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder.

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and the rules
made thereunder.

ii. ~ The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed
thereunder.

iv.  Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowing.

V. Other laws specifically applicable to the Company:
a. Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940
b. Drugs and Cosmetics Rules, 1945
C. Bio Medical Waste (Management & Handling) Rules, 1998

d. Drugs & Magical Remedies (Objectionable Advertisements)
Rules, 1954

e. Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic substance Act
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f. Atomic Energy Act, 1962

g.  The Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling and Trans-
boundary movement) Rules 2008, amended in 2016.

h. Hazardous Substances (Classification packaging and labelling)
Rules 2011

The Explosives Act, 1983

j. Manufacture, Storage, and Import of Hazardous Chemicals
Rules, 1989

k. Drug (Price Control) Order (DPCO) 2013 (NPPA)
l. Regulation of Drug Act, 1978
m.  National Biodiversity Act, 2002

n. Uniform Code of Pharmaceuticals Marketing Practices (UCPMP)
Guidelines

0. Livestock Importation Act, 1898
p. Generic Drug User Fee Amendment (GDUFA) 2012
q. Cosmetics, Devices and Drugs Act, 1980

r. Registration Guideline for Registration of the Medicinal Products,
2013

s. The Special Economic Zone Act 2005, Special Economic Zone
Rules 2006

The Company being an unlisted public limited company, the following
Regulations prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company during the audit period:

(@)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Regjistrar to an Issue and



Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client;

(9)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares)
Regulations, 2021;

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018; and

(j)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on
Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meeting.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Standards etc, as
mentioned above.

We have not examined compliance with applicable Financial Laws, like
Direct and Indirect Tax Laws, since the same have been subject to review by
statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent to all the directors for all
the Board Meetings held during the period under review. A system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the
Chairperson, the decisions of the Board were unanimous, and no dissenting
views have been recorded.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company in line with Biocon’s group level practices, commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines which are listed under
point no. v of 3rd para of this report.

The following events/actions were having a major bearing on the Company’s
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines
etc, during the audit period:

a. Due to delay in receiving approval from the National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai, the merger between Biocon Biologics Limited and
Covidshield Technologies Private Limited was withdrawn by Serum
Institute Life Sciences Private Limited.

b. Allotment of 1,06,86,044 Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs)
on private placement basis to ESOF Il Investment Fund and Edelweiss
Asset Advisors Limited on the following instances:

Biocon Biologics Limited

53,43,022 CCDs on May 12, 2023.
53,43,022 CCDs on May 24, 2023.

C Allotment of 1,78,10,073 Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs) to
Biocon Limited on private placement basis on May 12, 2023.

d.  The company had altered the provisions of the Articles of Association
(AOA).

e.  Chinappa MB had resigned from the position of Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the company with
effect from October 31, 2023.

f. Kedar Upadhye had been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) of the company with effect from October 31, 2023 in the Board
meeting dated October 18, 2023.

g.  The company sold its non-core nephrology and dermatology BFI
business to Eris Lifesciences Limited ("Eris") on slump sale basis for
lump sum consideration of ¥ 366 crores.

h.  The company had sold its Branded Formulations India business
consisting of metabolics, oncology, and critical care diagnostic
divisions to Eris on slump sale basis for lump sum consideration of
1,242 crores.

For V. SREEDHARAN & ASSOCIATES

(Pradeep B. Kulkarni)

Partner

FCS: 7260; C.P.No: 7835

UDIN: F007260F000362835

Peer Review Certificate No. 5543/2024

Date: May 14, 2024
Place: Bengaluru

This report (ie, Form No. MR-3) is to be read with our letter of even date
which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure’

To,

The Members,

Biocon Biologics Limited

Biocon House, Ground Floor,
Tower-3, Semicon Park,

Electronic City, Phase - II, Hosur Road
Bengaluru - 560100

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events
etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For V. SREEDHARAN & ASSOCIATES

(Pradeep B. Kulkarni)

Partner

Date: May 14, 2024 FCS: 7260; C.P. No: 7835
Place: Bengaluru UDIN: F007260F000362835

Peer Review Certificate No. 5543/2024
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Annexure 4

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo for the Financial Year 2023-24
[Particulars pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

1. Conservation of Energy

Biocon Biologics Limited

i)

The steps taken or impact on conservation |
of energy

Replacement of CFL lights with LED at buffer area, PHI, and PHI(E) contributed to reduction
in power consumption from 28032 KW to 14016 kW and resulted in saving 1.1 lakh For
RHI and RHI2.

Condensate recovery system (SOPT) installed with Steam operating pumping trap Total
investment of this project % 1.5 lakh and cost saving of % 10 Lakhs per annum.

Audio visual hooter installed in PHI, PHI & PHI(A) for power failure alarm as part of power
failure study as a proactive measure and alert in case of power failure / change over.

Access controllers have been installed at all USP water plant, Nitrogen plant PHI(A) HVAC
area as part of securing the area.

USP RO water plant reject water sump installed with level sensors to utilize reject water for
makeup water.

By installing VFDs as part of energy savings measure for 4 numbers of ventilation units
at SFP facility by investing 2.25las, company achieved power savings of 25442 KWH per
annum in equivalence of approx. 1.9lacs per annum.

The old conventional DOL starter were replaced with VFD for MSAT Ventilation units
resulting in an overall energy saving of 15912 KWH per annum and total savings amounting
to % 1.19 lakhs per annum.

The steps taken by the company for utilizing | Nil
alternate source of energy

iii)

The Capital investment on energy | Nil
conservation equipment’s

B) Technology Absorption

The efforts made towards technology absorption

Thermography test has been implemented for all electrical

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product

development or import substitution

panel’s PM for better improvement.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years

reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)

To improve illumination (LUX level) and to facilitate ease of
operation and maintenance in PHI and PHI(E) water plant,
new light fixtures were installed.

(@)  The details of technology imported

(b)  The year of import

©  Whether the technology been fully absorbed

(d)  If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place,

and the reasons thereof; and

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development (R&D) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development by the

Company is tabled below:
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Expenditure incurred on Research and Development

Particulars

Research and Development expenses

Other Research and Development expenses included in other heads of account:
A Employee Benefit Expenses

B. Lab Consumables

Total

(Amounts in T million)

FY 23-24

950

1,311
818
3,079

C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars
Total earnings in foreign exchange during the year

Total outflow of foreign exchange during the year

(Amounts in T million)

FY 23-24

28,081

9177

Date: May 14, 2024
Place: Bengaluru
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Biocon Biologics Limited

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw
Executive Chairperson
DIN: 00347229
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ANNEXURE 5
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended]

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

The Company’s contributions and initiatives towards social welfare and environment sustainability have been integral to its business. CSR activities of
the Company shall continuously evolve for a long-term sustainability of business, society and environment at large. CSR shall further align and integrate
social wellbeing, economic growth and environmental sustainability with the Company’s core values, operations and growth. The CSR strategy shall
create long-term and scalable values for communities and society. In the process of executing CSR, the Company shall comply with the statutory
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, and the related rules and regulations as may be amended from time to time.

Composition of CSR and ESG Committee:
The Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental, Social and Governance Committee ("CSR and ESG Committee") of our Board provides oversight
of CSR Policy and monitors execution of various activities to meet the set CSR objectives.

S.  Name of Member Designation Designation / Nature of = Number of meetings Number of meetings
No. / Nature of Directorship of CSR and ESG of CSR and ESG
Directorship Committee held Committee attended
during the year during the year
1. Peter Baron Piot Chairperson Independent Director 4 4
2. Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw Member Executive Chairperson 4 4
3. Shreehas Pradeep Tambe  Member CEO and Managing Director 4 4
4. Nivruti Rai Member Independent Director 4 4
5. Thomas Jason Roberts Member Non Executive Non 4 4

Independent Director

Web-link(s) where Composition of CSR and ESG committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed
on the website of the company

i. Composition of the CSR and ESG Committee: https://www.bioconbiologics.com/investors/corporate-governance/board-committees/

ii. CSR Policy: https://www.bioconbiologics.com/docs/BBL-CSR-ESG-POLICY.pdf. The projects as approved by the Board shall be disclosed on the
website at https://www.bioconbiologics.com/investors/corporate-governance/governance-policies/

Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable - Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any)

SI.  Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount required to be set-off for the financial year,

No. preceding financial years (in T mi if any (in X million)

Not Applicable

(a) Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Loss of T 629 million

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Loss of X 13 million

(c)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Not Applicable
(d)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - Not Applicable

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] - Nil

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): 3120.3 million

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Not Applicable

()  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable
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(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] : ¥ 120.3 million

(e) CSRamount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent Amount Unspent

for the Financial Year | Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified under

(in T million) CSR Account as per section 135(6) Schedule Vil as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Date of transfer | Name of the Fund m Date of transfer
120.3 NA NA NA NA NA

(f)  Excess amount for set off, if any :

SI. No. Particulars Amount (in X million)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Nil

(i) Total amount spent for the financial year 120.3

(iif) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 120.3

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial NIL
years, if any

(V) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 120.3

8. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial years:

Preceding Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred to a Fund Amount Deficiency,
Financial transferred Amount in spent specified under Schedule remaining to if any
Year to Unspent Unspent in the VIl as per second proviso to be spentin
CSR Account | CSRAccount | Financial | subsection (5) of section 135, | succeeding
under section under Year if any, if any financial
135 (6) subsection (6) (in% Name of | Amount | Date of years
(in T million) | of section 135 | million) | the Fund (in2 transfer | (in T million)
(in T million) million)

NA

9. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the
Financial Year - No

Number of Capital assets created/ acquired: NA

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Short particulars of the Pincode of Date of Amount Details of entity/ Authority/
property or asset(s) the creation of CSR beneficiary of the registered owner

[including complete property amount CSR Registration Registered
address and location of or asset(s) spent Number, if address
the property] applicable

NA

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to
be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

10. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): NA

Peter Baron Piot Shreehas Pradeep Tambe
Chairperson — CSR and ESG Committee CEO and Managing Director
DIN: 09015343 DIN: 09796480

May 14, 2024

Bengaluru
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Annexure 6 - Particulars of Remuneration
Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
(Read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

No.

12
13
14
15

Name of the Director/Key Managerial Personnel and Percentage increase in Ratio of the remuneration of
Designation remuneration of each Director/ each Director to the median
CFO/ CS in the FY 2023-24 (%) remuneration of the employees

Executive Directors

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw 51.33 58.99
Executive Chairperson
Shreehas Pradeep Tambe NA 11861

CEO and Managing Director

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Arun Suresh Chandavarkart” NA 8.59
Thomas Jason Roberts 12.07 846
Rajiv Malik® NA NA

Independent Directors

Bobby Kanubhai Parikh 845 10.02
John Russell Fotheringham Walls 8.20 8.59
Nivruti Rai 5.08 8.07
Daniel Mark Bradbury 12.12 9.63
Nicholas Robert Haggar® NA NA
Peter Baron Piot 4.55 8.98

Key Managerial Personnel

Chinappa MB® NA NA
Kedar Upadhye® NA NA
Akhilesh Nand 7.81 2561
Deepika Srivastava'" NA 833

" Shreehas Pradeep Tambe was appointed as CEO and Managing Director effective from December 5, 2022, Dr. Arun Suresh Chandavarkar was ceased to be Managing Director and
continued as Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company effective from December 5, 2022 and Deepika Srivastava was appointed as Company Secretary effective
from February 14, 2023, hence the percentage of increase of their remuneration is not comparable with that of the previous year.

) Nicholas Robert Haggar and Kedar Upadhye were in office only for part of the year (appointed w.ef. February 6, 2024, and October 31, 2023, respectively) and hence the

percentage of increase of remuneration in their case is not comparable with that of the previous year.

8 Chinappa MB was in office only for part of the year (ceased to be KMP w.e.f. October 30, 2023) hence the percentage of increase of remuneration in their case is not comparable
with that of the previous year.

" Rajiv Malik, being Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director and a nominee of Mylan Inc. (Viatris), did not withdraw any remuneration including sitting fees or commission

during the year.

Notes:

The remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) includes commission and sitting fees and is based on the position
they occupied in various committees and meetings attended by them during Financial Year 2023-24.

The remuneration does not include perquisite value on account of stock options exercised during the year.

The remuneration to the Executive Director and Key Managerial Personnel does not include provisions made for gratuity and compensated absences,
as they are obtained on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.
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1

Percentage increase / (decrease) in median remuneration of employees
in the financial year

The median remuneration of employees increased from R 6,76,884 as

at March 31, 2023 to as % 7,68,192 at March 31, 2024, representing an
increase of 13.49 %.

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company

There were 4,191 permanent employees as on March 31, 2024.

Average percentile increase in salaries of employees other than managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration

The average increase in employee remuneration other than managerial
personnel was 10%. The increase in managerial remuneration is in line
with the measures to attract and retain the best talent. The Company also
uses a mix of fixed, variable and RSUs based compensation on a mid-to-
long-term basis to align middle and senior management compensation
to enhance Member values.

[tis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid for the Financial Year 2023-24 was as per the Company’s Policy on Director’s Appointment and Remuneration.

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 14, 2024
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of Biocon Biologics Limited

Sd/-

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw
Executive Chairperson
DIN: 00347229
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Corporate Governance Report

Company'’s philosophy on Code of Governance

Biocon Biologics Limited (“the Company”) believes in implementation
of good corporate practices, policies and guidelines and always
ensures adherence to regulatory requirements. Our aim is to develop
a culture of the best management practices and compliance with the
law coupled with the highest standards of integrity, transparency,
accountability and ethics in all business matters.

Commitment to adoption of good and effective corporate
governance practices in all the spheres of business operations, has
always underpinned the Company’s decisions and activities. Abidance
with such governance practices has given the Company immense
value addition and competitive advantage. Our corporate governance
framework comprises of a formal system of control and administration
that helps the management take prudent decisions whilst in the
interest of the stakeholders, and at the same time enables the
company to utilise its resources in a systematic and effective manner.

Composition of the Board

While implementing corporate practices, the Company focuses on
areas such as transparency, accountability and integrity to nurture a
good corporate governance culture that fosters employee morale and
satisfaction, stakeholder acceptance and regulatory recognition.

The Company’s focus is not only to ensure compliance with the
requirements as stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013, (‘the Act)
and other applicable laws regarding corporate governance but is also
committed to sound corporate governance principles and practices,
and constantly strives to adopt emerging best corporate governance
practices being followed worldwide.

We are committed to continuously scaling up our Corporate
Governance standards, hence we are suo-motu presenting a report on
compliance with corporate governance principles.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) are elected by the Members to
oversee the Company's overall functioning. The Board is responsible
for providing strategic guidance and supervision, overseeing the
management, performance and governance of the Company on
behalf of the shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board exercises
independent judgement and plays a vital role in the oversight of the
Company’s affairs. To sum up, the Board’s key purpose is to provide
strategic guidance to the Management Team and ensure the
Company’s success by collectively directing the Company’s affairs and
ensure they are in-line with the appropriate interests of its Members
and relevant stakeholders.

The Board is committed to represent the long-term interests of
the stakeholders and in providing effective governance over the
Company’s affairs and exercising reasonable business judgement on
the affairs of the Company.

Our Board represents an appropriate mix of Executive Directors (‘EDs’), Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors (‘'NEDs') and Independent Directors
(D), which is compliant with the Act and is also aligned with the best practices of Corporate Governance.

The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and size. As on March 31, 2024, the Board comprised of 11 (eleven) members,
consisting of 2 (two) Executive Directors, 2 (two) Non-Executive Non- Independent Directors, 6 (six) Independent Directors and 1 (one) Non-Executive
Non-Independent and Nominee Director. Out of the total members, 2 (two) are women directors comprising of 1 (one) Executive Chairperson and 1

(one) Independent Director.

® Executive Directors
* Non-Executive Independent Directors

® Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors

* Men

® Women
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During the year under review, the following appointment and re-
appointment were made:

1. Mr. Peter Baron Piot (DIN: 09015343) was re-appointed as
an Independent Director of the Company for a second term
comprising of 5 (five) years with effect from January 21, 2024,
by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on November
07, 2023, and the Members at the 23rd Extra-ordinary General
Meeting held on December 12, 2023.

2. Ms. Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw (DIN: 00347229) was re-appointed
as an Executive Director and Executive Chairperson of the
Company for a period of 5 (five) years from April 01, 2024, by the
Board of Directors on February 06, 2024, and the Members at the
24th Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on April 23, 2024.

3. Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar (DIN: 08518863) was appointed
as an Additional Director categorised as Non-Executive and
Independent Director of the Company by the Board of Directors
on February 06, 2024 and the Members at the 24th Extra-
ordinary General Meeting held on April 23, 2024 had regularised
his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company for
a term commencing from February 06, 2024 till the conclusion
of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in
the year 2027.

None of the Directors serve as a director in more than 7 (seven) listed
companies. Further, none of the Director serves as an Independent
Director in more than 7 (seven) listed companies or 3 (three) listed
companies in case he/she serves as an Executive Director in any listed
company. None of the Directors of the Company, are a member of
more than 10 (ten) Committees and Chairperson of more than 5 (five)
Committees, across all Public Companies in which he/she is a Director.

Composition of the Board

Biocon Biologics Limited

Further, none of our Independent Directors serve as Non-Independent
Director of any Company on the Board of which any of our Non-
Independent Director of the Company is an Independent Director.

The details of the directorship(s) of the members on the Board are as
mentioned in the following table titled ‘Composition of the Board"

Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors,
the Board of Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of
independence as mentioned under Section 149(6) of the Act and
that they are independent of the management and also they have
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or
impact their ability to discharge their duties. Further, the Independent
Directors have also submitted their declaration under compliance
with the provision of Rule 6(3) of Companies (Appointment and
Quialification of Directors) Rules, 2014, which mandated the inclusion
of an Independent Director’s name in the data bank of Indian Institute
of Corporate Affairs ("llCA") for a period of 1 (one) year or 5 (five) years
or life time till they continue to hold the office of an Independent
Director. Pursuant to Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, Mr. Bobby Kanubhai Parikh,
Mr. John Russell Fotheringham Walls, Mr. Daniel Mark Bradbury and
Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar are exempted from appearing the Online
Proficiency Self-Assessment Test, and Ms. Nivruti Rai and Mr. Peter
Baron Piot have passed the Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test
conducted by IICA.

The details of the Directors, including the directorships held by
them in other listed Companies and their Committee memberships/
Chairmanships in other public companies, are listed in the table below:

Name of the Directors|Category Director

Total Number of Directorships, Committee
Identification Chairpersonships and Memberships of Indian Public |Listed Entities Directorship
Number Limited Companies as on March 31, 2024

Name of Indian  |Category of

where personisa

Directorships'
Chairpersonships? | Memberships"

Committee Committee | Director

Executive Directors

Ms. Kiran Promoter and 00347229 9
Mazumdar -Shaw | Executive
Chairperson

Biocon Limited | Executive
Chairperson

Syngene Non-Executive
International Chairperson
Limited

Narayana Non-Executive
Hrudayalaya Non-

Limited Independent
United Independent
Breweries Non-Executive
Limited

Trent Limited* | Non-Executive
Independent

Mr. Shreehas Non-Promoter, 09796480 1
Pradeep Tambe CEO and Managing
Director
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Name of the Directors|Category Director Total Number of Directorships, Committee Name of Indian  |Category of
Identification Chairpersonships and Memberships of Indian Public |Listed Entities Directorship
Number Limited Companies as on March 31,2024 where personis a
Directorships’ Committee Committee | Director
Chairpersonships* | Memberships"
Non-Executive, Non-Independent Directors
Dr. Arun Suresh Non-Promoter; 01596180 1 - - -
Chandavarkar Non-Executive and
Non-Independent
Mr.Thomas Jason | Non-Promoter; 09337723 1 - - - -
Roberts Non-Executive and
Non-Independent
Mr. Rajiv Malik Non-Promoter; 00120557 2 1 - -
Non-Executive Non-
Independent and
Nominee of Mylan
Inc.
Independent Directors
Mr. Bobby Non-Promoter; 00019437 4 4 3 Biocon Limited | Non-Executive
Kanubhai Parikh Non-Executive and Independent
Independent Infosys Limited | Non-Executive
Independent
Indostar Capital | Independent,
Finance Limited [ Non-Executive
Mr. John Russell Non-Promoter; 03528496 1 - - - -
Fotheringham Non-Executive and
Walls Independent
Mr. Daniel Mark Non-Promoter; 06599933 1 - - -
Bradbury Non-Executive and
Independent
Ms. Nivruti Rai Non-Promoter; 01353079 1 - - -
Non-Executive and
Independent
Mr. Peter Baron Piot | Non-Promoter; 09015343 1 - - - -
Non-Executive and
Independent
Mr. Nicholas Robert | Non-Promoter; 08518863 2 - 2 Biocon Limited | Non-Executive
Haggar Non-Executive and Independent
Independent

Notes:

1. Includes Directorship in all Indian public limited companies including Biocon Biologics Limited and excludes directorships of private limited companies, foreign companies

and companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act).

2. Committees considered are Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, across all Indian public limited companies including that of Biocon Biologics Limited

and excludes private limited companies, foreign companies and companies registered under Section 8 of the Act.
3. None of the Directors are related to each other as per the provision of the Act.
4. Appointment in Trent Limited is effective from April 1, 2024.

Board Membership Criteria and Selection Process

The responsibility for identifying and evaluating a candidate for the Board is discharged by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC")
formed under Section 178 of the Act. While selecting a candidate, the NRC reviews and evaluates the Board's composition and diversity to ensure that
the Board and its Committees have the appropriate mix of skills, experience, independence and knowledge for continued effectiveness. For the Board,

diversity comprehends plurality in perspective, experience, education, background, ethnicity, nationality, age, gender and other personal attributes.
These attributes may extend to professional experience, functional expertise, educational and professional background.

The Independent Directors annually provide a certificate of Independence, in accordance with the applicable laws, which is taken on record by the
Board. All Board members are encouraged to meet and interact with the management. Board Members are invited to key meetings to provide strategic

guidance and advice.
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The NRC selects suitable
candidates based on

After thorough
screening, the NRC
recommends desired
candidates to the Board.

defined attributes and
expertise.

Biocon Biologics Limited

The Board recommends
the appointment of the
director to the
shareholders.

The proposal is placed
before the shareholders
for their approval.

Board Procedure

The Board and Committee meetings are pre-scheduled based on the
availability of the Director(s), and an annual calendar of the meetings
is circulated to them well in advance to facilitate planning of their
schedule and ensure participation in the meetings. However, in case of
urgent matters, subject to regulatory conditions, the Board's approval
is taken by passing resolutions by circulation. The Board meets at least
once in a quarter to review and approve the quarterly financial results/
statements and other agenda items. However, with the Board being
represented by Independent Directors from various parts of the world,
it may not be possible for all of them to be physically present at all
meetings. Hence, we provide video conferencing/other audio-visual
means facilities to enable their participation. The Committees of the
Board, other than Audit Committee, usually meet the day before the
Board meeting, or whenever the need arises for transacting business.
The recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board
for necessary approval/noting. There was no situation / matter where
the Board has not accepted recommendation of the Committee.

With a view to leverage technology, the Company has adopted a
digital meeting(s) platform for its Board and Committee meetings,
which can be accessed through web version, iOS and Android based
applications. The Board/ Committee Agenda and related notes are
made available to the Directors, at least 7 (seven) days in advance of
the meetings, through this application which meets high standards of
security and integrity that is required for storage and transmission of
Board/ Committee related documents in electronic form. Every Board
member can suggest the inclusion of additional items in the agenda.
All material information is incorporated in the agenda along with
supporting documents and relevant presentations. Where it is not
practicable to attach any document to the agenda, the same is tabled
at the meeting with specific reference to this effect in the agenda. In
special and exceptional circumstances, additional or supplementary
item(s) on the agenda are permitted.

The Board reviews strategy and business plans, annual operating plans
and capital expenditure budgets, investment and exposure limits,
compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company, as well as
steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances,
if any.

To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively, the
CEO and Managing Director provides an overview of the overall
performance of the Company at the meeting of the Board of Directors.
The Board inter-alia reviews minutes of meetings of various committees
of the Board and subsidiary companies, approval of financial results
and statements, transactions pertaining to purchase or disposal of
properties, major accounting provisions and write-offs, corporate
restructuring details of any joint ventures or collaboration agreements,
material defaults, if any, fatal or serious accidents, any material effluent
or pollution problems, transactions that involve substantial payment
towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual property, any issue that
involves possible public product liability, claims of substantial nature,
etc.

At the Board and Committee Meetings, apart from Board Members
and the Company Secretary, members of the management team are
invited to present the Company'’s performance in key areas such as
the major business segments and their operations, subsidiaries and
key functions.

The Company Secretary records the Minutes of the proceedings
of each Board and Committee meeting. In compliance with the
Secretarial Standard on Board Meetings, the draft Minutes are
circulated to Board / Committee Members within 15 (fifteen) days
from the date of conclusion of their respective meetings for their
comments. Directors communicate their comments (if any) in writing
on the draft minutes within 7 (seven) days from the date of circulation.
The Minutes are entered in the Minute Books within 30 (thirty) days
from the date of conclusion of the Meeting.

The guidelinesfor Board and Committee Meetings facilitate an effective
post meeting follow-up, review and reporting process for decisions
taken by the Board and Committees thereof. Important decisions
taken at Board/ Committee Meetings are promptly communicated
to the concerned departments/ divisions. Action Taken Report (ATRs)
on decisions/Minutes of the previous meeting(s) is placed at the
succeeding meeting of the Board/Committee for noting.
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C. Number of Board meetings, attendance of the Directors at meetings of the Board and the Annual General Meeting (“"AGM”)

During the year under review, the Board met 8 (Eight) times on April 26,2023; May 11,2023, May 22, 2023, August 08, 2023, October 18, 2023, November
07,2023, February 06, 2024 and March 13, 2024. The composition of the Board and attendance details of the Board members for the year ended March
31,2024 are given below:

Name of Directors Designation Board Meetings | Attended % of Attendance
held during attendance | atthe 7th
tenure AGM
Ms. Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw Executive Chairperson 8 8 100% Yes
Mr. Shreehas Pradeep Tambe CEO and Managing Director 8 8 100% Yes
Mr. Rajiv Malik Non-Executive Non- 8 5 62.5% No
Independent Director and
Nominee of Mylan Inc.
Dr. Arun Suresh Chandavarkar Non-Executive Non- 8 7 88% Yes
Independent Director
Mr. Thomas Jason Roberts Non-Executive Non- 8 7 88% No
Independent Director
Mr. Bobby Kanubhai Parikh Independent Director 8 7 88% No
Mr. John Russell Fotheringham Walls | Independent Director 8 7 88% No
Mr. Peter Baron Piot Independent Director 8 8 100% No
Mr. Daniel Mark Bradbury Independent Director 8 8 100% No
Ms. Nivruti Rai Independent Director 8 8 100% No
Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar* Independent Director 1 1 100% NA

*Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of Independent Director w.e.f. February 06, 2024.

The Board met at least once in every calendar quarter and the gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 (one hundred and twenty) days.

D. Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors the presence of Executive Directors, Non- Independent Directors and

Members of the Management.

N fthe Non-E tive Directors, including Ind dent Direct
oneorne ,On xecutive LITectors, Including Independent LIrectors, They had inter-alia considered and discussed the following

hold any equity shares of the Company except the below:

The performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board

Meeting of the Independent Directors

Pursuant to Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013, the Independent
Directors met twice on August 08, 2023 and May 14, 2024 without
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Name of Category No. of % asawhole;

Director Shares | holding

Dr. Arun Suresh | Non-Executive 6,00,000 0.05% The performance of the Chairperson of the Company after

Chandavarkar Non-Independent taking into account the views of the Executive and Non-
Director Executive Directors;

Mr. Bobby Non-Executive 50,000 | 0.004%

Kanubhai Parikh | Independent The quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
Director between the Company management and the Board, that is

Mr Jonn Russell | Non-Executive 50,000 0.004% ?eeacsiss;agyfor the Board to perform their duties effectively and

Fotheringham | Independent ‘

Walls Director The evaluation of Independent Directors is done by the entire Board of

Directors of the Company which includes:
Performance of such directors; and

Fulfilment of the Independence criteria and their Independence
from the management.



F. Board evaluation, Key expertise and attributes of the Board of
Directors

(U]

Board Evaluation

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the
Board evaluation framework. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee in consultation with the Board, had designed the
evaluation criteria for the performance of the Chairperson,
Board, Committees of the Board, and Executive/ Non-Executive/
Independent Directors through peer evaluation, excluding
the Director being evaluated. Further, the Board had agreed to
undertake the Board Evaluation by an external agency, at least
once in 3 (three) financial years, pursuant to which for FY 2020-21,
Egon Zehnder, had conducted the Board Evaluation.

For the current FY 2023-24, the Board had undertaken this
exercise through self-evaluation questionnaires. The evaluation
process focused on the below aspects —

Board dynamics and other aspects towards Board
effectiveness

Board Composition, Quality and Culture

Board Meeting and Procedures

Execution and performance of specific duties

Board and Management relations

Succession Planning

Committee effectiveness

Evaluation of Chairperson, Executive and Non- Executive
Directors.

A detailed presentation was made to the Board on outcome of
evaluation results. In order to further uphold the effectiveness

(ii)
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of the Board’s governance, an overview of the suggestions
as drawn from the evaluation exercise was deliberated and
recommended for implementation in due course of time, by
the Board.

Key expertise and attributes of the Board of Directors

The Board has identified the following skills/ expertise/
competencies fundamental for the effective functioning of the
Company which are taken into consideration by the Nomination
and  Remuneration Committee  while  recommending
appointment of any candidate to the Board of the Company.

Based on the above-mentioned skill matrix, the skills which are currently available with the Board have been mapped below:

Directors Area of Expertise
Scientific |Researchand|  Global FinanceandRisk [ Compliance | Technology General
Knowledge | Innovation | Healthcare | Management and and Digital | Management

Governance | Perspective | and Leadership

Ms. Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw v v v v v v v

Mr. Shreehas Pradeep Tambe v v v v v v v

Mr. Rajiv Malik v v v v v v v

Dr. Arun Suresh Chandavarkar v v v v v v v

Mr. Thomas Jason Roberts v v v v v

Mr. Bobby Kanubhai Parikh v v v

Mr. John Russell Fotheringham v v v v v

Walls

Mr. Peter Baron Piot v v v v v

Mr. Daniel Mark Bradbury 4 4 v v v v

Ms. Nivruti Rai v v v v

Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar v v v v v v v
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Role of Company Secretary

The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that effective board procedures are followed and reviewed periodically. The Company Secretary
is primarily responsible for ensuring compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of all other laws applicable to the
Company. The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and documents are made available to the Board of Directors for effective
decision-making at the meetings. The Company Secretary is also the interface between the Management and Regulatory Authorities for Governance
matters. All the Directors of the Company have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted various committees to focus on specific areas and to make informed decisions within their authority. Each Committee is
directed by its charter which outlines their scope, roles, responsibilities and powers. All the decisions and recommendations of the Committee are
placed before the Board for its approval. The Company's guidelines relating to Board Meetings are also applicable to Committee meetings as far as
is practicable. Each Committee has the authority to engage outside experts, advisors and counsels to the extent it considers appropriate to assist in
its functions. Senior Executives are invited to present various details called for by the Committees at their meetings. The Company Secretary of the
Company acts as the Secretary to all Committees of the Board as detailed below:

S .| Name of Members Designation AC' NRC? CSR and ESG® RMC*
No. C M C M C M C M
1. Ms. Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw Executive Chairperson .

2. Mr. Shreehas Pradeep Tambe CEO and Managing Director . .
3. M. Rajiv Malik Non-Executive Non-

Independent Director and
Nominee of Mylan Inc.

4. Dr. Arun Suresh Chandavarkar Non-Executive Non- o o
Independent Director
5. | Mr.Thomas Jason Roberts Non-Executive Non- o o o
Independent Director
6. Mr. Bobby Kanubhai Parikh Independent Director ° °
Mr. John Russell Fotheringham Independent Director N .
Walls
8. Mr. Peter Baron Piot Independent Director ° ° °
9. Mr. Daniel Mark Bradbury Independent Director ° ° °
10. | Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar® Independent Director ° °
11. | Ms. Nivruti Rai Independent Director ° °

C: Chairperson; M: Member

AC: Audit Committee;

NRC: Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

CSR and ESG: Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental, Social and Governance Committee; and

RMC: Risk Management Committee

Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar was inducted as member on the following committees with effect from February 06, 2024:
a)  Audit Committee

b) Risk Management Committee

Lk wih =

Audit Committee
(i) Brief description of terms of reference

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee which acts as a link between the Management, External and Internal Auditors and the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Committee’s role flows directly from the Board’s oversight function and delegation to various Committees. It acts as
an oversight body for transparent, effective anti-fraud and risk management mechanisms, and efficient Internal Audit and External Audit functions
financial reporting. The Audit Committee considers the matters which are specifically referred to it by the Board of Directors besides considering
the mandatory requirements of the provisions of Section 177 of the Act. The brief description of the terms of reference of the Committee is given
below:

The terms of reference and responsibilities of the Committee inter-alia include review of the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements
before submission to Board, review of compliance of internal control system, approval or any subsequent modification of transactions with
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related parties, oversight of the financial reporting process to ensure transparency, sufficiency, fairness and credibility of financial statements,
recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company etc. The Committee also reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit function and control systems. The Committee meets at least once in a calendar quarter.

Details of meetings and attendance during the year:

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 8 (eight) times on April 26, 2023; May 22, 2023; August 08, 2023, September 21, 2023,
October 18,2023, November 07, 2023; February 06, 2024 and March 13, 2024. The composition of the Committee and attendance details of the
members for the year ended March 31, 2024 are given below:

1 Mr. Bobby Kanubhai Parikh Chairperson | Independent Director 8 8

2. | Mr. John Russell Fotheringham Walls Member Independent Director 8 7 88%

3. Mr. Daniel Mark Bradbury Member Independent Director 8 8 100%

4 Dr. Arun Suresh Chandavarkar Member Non-Executive 8 7 88%
Non-Independent Director

5. Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar* Member Independent Director 1 1 100%

*Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar was inducted as a member of Audit Committee with effect from February 06, 2024.
The Members of the Committee possess sound knowledge of accounts, finance, audit, governance and legal matters.

Senior Executives from the Finance and Accounts Department and representatives of the Statutory and Internal Auditors are invited to attend the
Audit Committee meetings. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee, as a good governance practice, also meets Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company separately, to understand
their independent opinion on the performance of the Company..

B.  Risk Management Committee

(0]

(ii)

Brief description of terms of reference

The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee, which assist the Board of Directors in timely identification, assessment and
mitigation of risks (i.e. financial, operational, strategic, regulatory, statutory, reputational, and others) faced by the Company. The Committee inter-
alia has overall responsibility for monitoring and approving the enterprise risk management framework and is capable of effectively addressing
and monitoring these risks etc. The Committee also approves and oversees a Company-wide risk management framework which is capable of
effectively addressing these risks.

Details of meetings and attendance during the year:

During the year under review, the Risk Management Committee met 4 (four) times on May 17, 2023; August 07, 2023; November 06, 2023 and
February 07, 2024. The composition of the Committee and attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 31,2024 are given below:

. Mr. Bobby Kanubhai Parikh Chairperson Independent Director 4 4 100%
2. Mr. Shreehas Pradeep Tambe Member CEO  and  Managing 4 4 100%
Director
3 Dr. Arun Suresh Chandavarkar Member Non-Executive Non- 4 4 100%

Independent Director
4. Mr. Thomas Jason Roberts Member Non-Executive Non- 4 4 100%
Independent Director
5. Mr. John Russell Fotheringham Walls Member Independent Director 4 4 100%
6. Mr. Peter Baron Piot Member Independent Director 4 4 100%
7. Mr. Daniel Mark Bradbury Member Independent Director 4 3 75%
8. Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar® Member Independent Director - - NA

*Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar was inducted as a member of Risk Management Committee with effect from February 06, 2024.
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C.

D.

Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

0]

(ii)

Brief description of terms of reference

The Company is driven by a vision to make a difference in global healthcare through improved access to high quality and life-saving bio
therapeutics by making them affordable for patients across the world. The Company’s contributions and initiatives towards social welfare and
environment sustainability have been integral to its business.

The CSR and ESG activities of the Company shall continuously evolve for a long-term sustainability of business, society and environment at large.
The CSR and ESG Committee shall further align and integrate social wellbeing, economic growth and environmental sustainability with the
Company’s core values, operations and growth.

The terms of reference of the CSR and ESG Committee are in line with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, which inter alia includes the
following:

Identifying the areas of CSR activities, its implementation and monitoring;

Formulate and amend the CSR Policy, from time to time;

Adoption of Annual Action Plan or modification thereof;

Oversee Company's ESG program, strategy, initiatives, execution and disclosures; and

Reporting progress of various initiatives with respect to CSR and ESG activities etc.
Details of meetings and attendance during the year:

During the year under review, the CSR and ESG Committee met 4 (four) times on May 17, 2023; August 07, 2023; November 06, 2023 and February 07,
2024.The composition of the Committee and attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 31, 2024 are given below:

Sr. | Members Position Designations No. of Meetings No. of % of
No. whichmember | Meeting | Attendance
was entitledto | attended
attend
1. Mr. Peter Baron Piot Chairperson Independent Director 4 4 100%
2. Ms. Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw Member Executive Chairperson 4 4 100%
3. Mr. Shreehas Pradeep Tambe Member CEO and Managing 4 4 100%
Director
4, Ms. Nivruti Rai Member Independent Director 4 4 100%
Mr. Thomas Jason Roberts Member Non-Executive Non- 4 4 100%
Independent Director

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

0]

Brief description of terms of reference

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act read with applicable rules made thereunder or other applicable provisions or any statutory
modifications thereof, the Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC").

The NRC is inter-alia vested with the authority to:
a) recommend nominations for Board membership and KMP;
b) succession planning for the senior management and the Board;

Q) develop and recommend policies with respect to composition of the Board commensurate with the size, nature of the business and
operations of the Company;

d)  establish criteria for selection of Board Members with respect to competencies; qualifications, experience, track record, integrity, devise
appropriate succession plans; and

e) determine overall compensation policies of the Company, etc.

The scope of the NRC also includes decision on the remuneration of the Executive Director(s) and laying down of performance parameters for the
Chairperson and CEO and Managing Director, the Executive Director(s), Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

144 (O The Integration Effect



Biocon Biologics Limited

In addition to the above, the NRC's role includes identifying persons who may be appointed to a Senior Management position in accordance with
the criteria laid down, recommending to the Board their appointment and removal.

The NRC also formulates the criteria for determining qualifications, capability and independence of a Director. The Committee on a periodical
basis, recommends to the Board, amendments to the policies relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.

The Board has undertaken the exercise to evaluate the performance of individual Directors. Feedback is sought by way of structured questionnaires
covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its committees, Board culture, execution
and performance of specific duties, obligations and governances. Performance evaluation is carried out based on the responses received from
all Directors.

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors is based on various criteria including experience and expertise, independent judgement,
ethics & values, adherence to the corporate governance norms, interpersonal relationships, attendance and contribution at meetings, amongst
others.

(i)  Details of meetings and attendance during the year:

During the year under review, the NRC met 5 (five) times on May 18, 2023; August 07, 2023; October 18, 2023; November 07, 2023 and February
05, 2024. The composition of the Committee and attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 31, 2024 are given below:

S r .| Members Position Designations No. of meetings No. of % of
No. which member | meetings | Attendance
was entitled to attended
attend
1. Ms. Nivruti Rai Chairperson Independent Director 5 5 100%
2. Mr. Daniel Mark Bradbury Member Independent Director 5 4 80%
3. Mr. Peter Baron Piot Member Independent Director 5 5 100%
4. Mr. Thomas Jason Roberts Member Non-Executive Non- 5 5 100%
Independent Director

Remuneration of Directors
Remuneration Policy

The Company has a well-defined policy for Appointment and Remuneration of Directors, Key Management Personnel and other employees. The policy
of the Company is designed to create a high-performance culture and enables the Company to attract, retain and motivate employees to achieve
results.

The elements of remuneration to the Executive Directors include fixed and variable salary, performance bonus (as per the performance criteria
determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee), contribution to provident fund, superannuation, gratuity, perquisites and allowance,
reimbursement of expenses, stock options etc, as applicable to employees of the Company.

The Executive Directors are employees of the Company and are subject to service conditions as per the Company policy, which is 6 (Six) months'notice
period, or such period as mutually agreed upon. There is no provision for payment of severance fees to Non-Executive Directors. Independent Directors
are paid remuneration in the form of commission, apart from the sitting fees and are not subject to any notice period and severance fees.

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

The Members at their 6th Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM’) held on August 20, 2019, approved the payment of remuneration to Non-Executive
Directors, at an amount not exceeding 1% of the net profit of the Company to be determined as per the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies
Act, 2013. In view of this, based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors in their meeting held
on January 19, 2022, approved remuneration structure for Non-Executive Directors, subject to 1% of net profits of the Company. The payment of such
remuneration would be in addition to the sitting fees for attending Board/Committee meetings.

Subsequently, the Members in their 24th EGM held on April 23, 2024 have approved the payment of remuneration to Non-Executive Directors, which
was in excess of 1% of the net profits of the Company for the financial year 2023-24, due to inadequate profits.

Criteria for Making Payment to Non-Executive Directors

The Company’s Non-Executive Directors are leading professionals with high level of expertise and rich experience in functional areas such as business
strategy, financial governance, corporate governance, research and innovation amongst others. The Company’s Non-Executive Directors have been
shaping and steering the long-term strategy and make invaluable contributions towards Biocon Biologics group level strategy, monitoring of risk
management and compliances.
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee determines and
recommends to the Board the compensation payable to all the
Directors from time to time.

Remuneration to Executive Directors

The Members, at their 24th Extra-Ordinary General Meeting ("EGM”)
held on April 23, 2024, approved the re-appointment of Ms. Kiran
Mazumdar-Shaw as an Executive Director, designated as an Executive
Chairperson for a period of 5 (five) years effective April 1,2024 to March
31,2029, on certain terms and conditions, including her remuneration
subject to prescribed limit under the rules and regulations. The
remuneration includes fixed and variable salary, performance bonus,
contribution to provident fund, superannuation, gratuity, perquisites
and allowances, reimbursement of expenses, etc. as applicable to
employees of the Company.

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Board of Directors, the Members at their 18th Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting (EGM’) held on November 24, 2022,
approved the appointment of Mr. Shreehas Pradeep Tambe as the CEO
and Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years
with effect from commencement of business hours on December 5,
2022 till December 4, 2027. The remuneration comprises of fixed and
variable salary, performance bonus, contribution to provident fund,
superannuation, gratuity, perquisites and allowances, reimbursement
of expenses, rewards under performance acceleration plan, long term
rewards etc. as applicable to employees of the Company.

Remuneration to Directors

Further, based on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors the Members in
their 24th Extra-Ordinary General Meeting ("EGM”") held on April 23,
2024, have approved the payment of remuneration to the Directors
(including Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors),
in situation of absence or inadequacy of profits during Financial
Year 2023-24 on same terms and conditions of appointment and
remuneration as approved by the Members / Board of Directors of the
Company from time to time by considering such remuneration to be
the minimum remuneration payable to the Directors during Financial
Year 2023-24.

Service Contracts, Notice Period and Severance Fees

As on March 31, 2024, the Board comprised of 11 (Eleven) Members,
including 2 (two) Executive Directors and 9 (nine) Non-Executive
Directors, of which 6 (six) are Independent Directors. Ms. Kiran
Mazumdar-Shaw, Executive Chairperson and Mr. Shreehas Pradeep
Tambe, CEO and Managing Director are employees of the Company.
Hence, the provision for payment of severance fees to them shall be as
per the terms mentioned in the Company’s policy and service contract.
However, other Directors are not subject to any notice period and
severance fees.

All Pecuniary Relationship or Transactions of the Non-Executive
Directors

There was no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-
Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company, which has potential conflict
with the interest of the organisation at large.

The details of remuneration paid to Directors for the year ended March 31,2024 are given below:

Amount in X Million

Directors Salary and Perquisites Others

Fixed Pay & Perquisites/ Retirement ~ Commission Sitting Fees Total

Bonus Benefits

Ms. Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw 41.8 13 2.1 - - 453
Mr. Shreehas Pradeep Tambe 874 1.5 2.2 - - 91.1
Mr. Rajiv Malik - - - - - -
Dr. Arun Suresh Chandavarkar - - - 5.1 1.5 6.6
Mr. Thomas Jason Roberts - - - 4.8 1.7 6.5
Mr. Bobby Kanubhai Parikh - - - 6.1 1.6 7.7
Mr. John Russell Fotheringham Walls - - - 5.1 1.5 6.6
Mr. Peter Baron Piot - - - 52 1.7 6.9
Mr. Daniel Mark Bradbury - - - 55 1.9 74
Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar* - - - - 0.2 0.2
Ms. Nivruti Rai - - - 4.8 14 6.2

*Mr. Nicholas Robert Haggar was appointed as an Independent Director w.e.f. February 06, 2024.

Note:

I. Perquisites valued as per Income Tax Act, 1961.

2. During the financial year, Mr. Shreehas Pradeep Tambe, CEO and Managing Director was granted 2,33,929 RSUs, issued and exercisable as per the terms
of Biocon Biologics Limited Restricted Stock Units Long Term Incentive Plan FY 2022-24. No options under the Company's ESOP plan were granted to any
other Executive/Non-Executive Directors of the Company.
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V.

VI

General Meetings

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS

Biocon Biologics Limited

The date, time, location of Annual General Meetings held during the last 3 (three) years and the special resolutions passed thereat are as follows:

Year Date and Time Venue Special Resolution(s) Passed
2022-23 July 28,2023 Biocon House, Ground Floor, Tower-3, NIL
4:30 PM Semicon Park, Electronic City, Phase - I,
Hosur Road, Bengaluru - 560100
2021-22 July 26,2022 Biocon House, Ground Floor, Tower-3, | 1. Reappointment of Ms. Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw as an Executive
02:00 PM Semicon Park, Electronics City, Phase - Il Director (designated as ‘Executive Chairperson’).
Hosur Road, Bengaluru - 560100 2. Reappointment of Mr. Bobby Kanubhai Parikh as an
Independent Director of the Company.
3. Reappointment of Mr. Daniel Mark Bradbury as an
Independent Director of the Company.
4. Reappointment of Ms. Nivruti Rai as an Independent Director
of the Company.
5. Inclusion of grants to employees of the holding company
and alteration of the Biocon Biologics Limited Restricted
Stock Units Long Term Incentive Plan FY 2022-24.
2020-21 July 22,2021 Biocon House, Ground Floor, Tower-3, [ 1. Appointment of Mr. Peter Baron Piot as an Independent
11:30 AM Semicon Park, Electronic City, Phase - I, Director of the Company.
Hosur Road, Bengaluru - 560100 2. Re-appointment of Mr. John Russell Fotheringham Walls as
an Independent Director of the Company.

General Members Information

Company Registration Details

The registered office of the Company is Biocon Biologics Limited, Biocon House, Ground Floor, Tower-3, Semicon Park, Electronic City, Phase - II, Hosur
Road, Bengaluru - 560100 and it is registered in the State of Karnataka, India. The Corporate Identity Number (‘CIN') allotted to the Company by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is U24119KA2016PLC093936.

Annual General Meeting

Day, Date and Time

Friday, July 26,2024 at 4:30 PM

Venue

Biocon House, Ground Floor, Tower-3, Semicon Park, Electronic City, Phase - Il, Hosur Road,
Bengaluru — 560100, Karnataka, India

Financial Year

April 1,2023 - March 31, 2024

Financial Results Calendar for 2024-25 (tentative)

Q1-FY 25

On or before August 14, 2024

Q2-FY 25 On or before November 14, 2024
Q3-FY25 On or before February 14, 2025
Q4 -FY 25 On or before May 30, 2025

International Securities Identification Number
(“ISIN")

Equity Shares : INE597V01013

Share transfer system

On receipt of proper documentation, the Company facilitates transfer of securities in the name of the transferee(s). Transfers of equity shares in electronic
form are effected through the depositories with no involvement of the Company.

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

As on March 31, 2024, all of the equity shares were in Dematerialized form. Transfer of equity shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized

form.

Integrated Annual Report FY 2024 (O 147



Biocon Biologics Limited

E. Distribution of shareholding (category wise) as on March 31, 2024 is as under:

S.No Category No. of Shares % to Equity
1 Promoters 1,17,23,99,798 88.70
2 Institutional Investors 88,30,456 0.67
3 Non-institution 10,31,95,638 787
4 Directors 7,00,000 0.05
5 Indian Public 54,644 0.00
6 Trusts 1,56,85,714 1.19
7 Others (Including NRIs) 2,00,24,306 1.52

Total 1,32,17,24,958 100

Biocon Biologics Shareholder Composition

0.00% 1.19% ~ 1.52%

0.05%

B Promoters

H |nstitutional Investors
B Non-institution
m Directors
m [ndian Public
Trusts

Others (Including NRlIs)

F. Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2024:

S.No | Category (Shares) No. of Holders % To Holders No. of Shares % To Equity
1 1-5000 2 8.70% 51 0.00%
2 5001 - 10000 Nil Nil Nil 0.00%
3 10001 - 20000 Nil Nil Nil 0.00%
4 20001 - 30000 4 17.39% 104,644 0.01%
5 30001 - 40000 Nil Nil Nil 0.00%
6 40001 - 50000 4 17.39% 200,000 0.01%
7 50001 - 100000 1 4.35% 75,000 0.01%
8 100001 - 99999999 12 52.17% 1,321,345,263 99.97%
Total 23 100.00 1,321,724,958 100.00

G.  Outstanding ADRs/GDRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity.
As on March 31, 2024, details of outstanding convertible instruments are as below:

During the year under review, the Company allotted Compulsorily Convertible Debentures to ESOF Il Investment Fund, a scheme set up under
Edelweiss Alternative Investment Trust and Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited, for an aggregate consideration of % 300,00,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Three Hundred Crore), as set out below:
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K.
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Sr.No. | Name and address of Type of No. of Face Value per | Premium per | Issue Price per | Total Subscription
the Investor Securities Securities security (InX) | security (InX) security (in¥) | Amount Payable

(in %)

1. ESOF Il Investment Fund Series A CCD 4790,678 10 270.74 280.74 1,34,49,35,000
Series B CCD 252,141 10 270.74 280.74 7,07,86,040

Series CCCD 4790,678 10 270.74 280.74 1,34,49,35,000

Series D CCD 252,141 10 270.74 280.74 7,07,86,040

2. Edelweiss Alternative | Series A CCD 2,85,193 10 270.74 280.74 8,00,65,000
Asset Advisors Limited Series B CCD 15,010 10 270.74 280.74 42,13,960

Series CCCD 285,193 10 270.74 280.74 8,00,65,000

Series D CCD 15,010 10 270.74 280.74 42,13,960

ii. During the year under review, the Company allotted 1,78,10,073 (One Crore Seventy Eight Lakhs Ten Thousand and Seventy Three) Optionally
Convertible Debentures, each having face value of ¥ 10, at an issue price of ¥ 280.74/- (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Eighty and Paise Seventy
Four) including a premium of ¥ 270.74/- (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Seventy and Paise Seventy Four) for an aggregate consideration of
¥.500,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Five Hundred Crore) to Biocon Limited.

iii. During the year under review, the Company has prepaid Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD’) on February 23, 2024. The said 2,000 NCD's were
issued to HDFC Bank Limited amounting to 22,000 million at a face value % 10,00,000 each for a tenure of 43 months at a fixed coupon rate of
6.8949% p.a. and the same were repayable at the end of the term in April 2024.

iv.  Ason March 31, 2024, Mylan Inc. is holding 23,11,63,944 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares at a face value of 210 (Indian Rupees Ten)
each.

V. As on March 31, 2024, Goldman Sachs India AIF Scheme - 1, holds 78 Optionally Convertible Debentures (‘OCDs’) and Goldman Sachs India

Alternative Investment Trust AlF Scheme - 2 holds 1,047 OCDs at a face value of 1,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Crore) each

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

Part of Company’s payables and receivables in foreign currencies is subject to currency risks, the Company has in place an approved Forex Management
policy to minimise the risks associated with foreign currency rate fluctuations. The Company has in place mechanism of reviewing, monitoring and
mitigation of commodity price and foreign exchange risks. The details of foreign currency exposure and hedging are disclosed in Notes to Standalone
Financial Statements.

Plant locations

1

Biocon Biologics Limited

Biocon Campus, 20th KM, Hosur Road,
Electronic City, Bengaluru, Karnataka
560100

2 3

Biocon Biologics Limited Biocon SDN BHD

Biocon Park, Plot No 2 & 3, Biocon SEZ, Bommasandra
Jigani Link Road, Phase 4, Bommasandra Industrial Area,
Bommasandra, Bengaluru, Karnataka, 560099

No. 1, Jalan Bioteknologi 1, Kawasan Perindustrian
SILC, 79200 Iskandar Puteri,
Johor, Malaysia

Address for correspondence

Corporate Governance

Financial Disclosure & Information and Investor Relations

Ms. Deepika Srivastava

Company Secretary

Tel: 91 80 6775 6775

Email: Co.Secretarybiologics@biocon.com

Mr. Kedar Upadhye

Chief Financial Officer

Tel: 91 80- 67756775

E-mail id: kedar.upadhye@biocon.com

Media & Corporate Communications

Ms. Seema Shah Ahuja

Senior Vice-President & Global Head

Corporate Communications & Corporate Brand
Biocon Group

Tel: 91 80- 2808 2808

E-mail id: Seema.Ahuja@biocon.com

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (‘RTA’)

KFin Technologies Limited (Unit: Biocon Biologics Limited)
Plot 31-32, Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Gachibowli,

Financial District,

Nanakramgud, Hyderabad - 500 032

E-mail id: einward.ris@kfintech.com

Credit Ratings

During the year under review, CRISIL vide its letter dated November 29, 2023, has reaffirmed its ‘CRISIL AA+/ Stable’ (pronounced as CRISIL double A plus

rating with Stable outlook) on %700 crores Bank loan facilities.
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L.

Other Disclosures

Materially significant related party transactions

During the year under review, no materially significant
transactions or arrangements were entered into between the
Company and its promoters, management, Directors or their
relatives, subsidiaries, etc. that may have potential conflict
with the interests of the Company at large. The Company has
formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions,
which specifies the manner of entering into Related Party
Transactions.

Vigil Mechanism

The vigil mechanism as envisaged in the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules prescribed thereunder is implemented through
the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy to adequately safeguard
against victimisation of persons who use such mechanism.
The Audit Committee oversees the functioning of the vigil
mechanism and receives a summary of the Whistle-blowing
incidents on a quarterly basis. During the year, no personnel
was denied access to the Audit Committee of the Company.
The address of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee has
been given in the policy for the Directors, employees and all
stakeholder associated with the Company to report any matter
of concern.

Compliance  with
requirements

mandatory and discretionary

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements
prescribed by the Act and the Company has also complied with
below mentioned discretionary requirements, as under:

Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report: During the
year under review, there is no audit qualification in the
Company’s financial statements. The Company continues
to adopt best practices to ensure regime of unqualified
financial statements.

Reporting of Internal Auditors: Internal Auditors report
functionally to the Audit Committee

Policy for determining Related Party transactions

The Company has formulated a Policy on materiality of Related
Party Transactions and on dealings with such transactions.

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential
allotment

During the year under review, the Company had raised X 300
crores from ESOF Il Investment Fund, a scheme set up under
Edelweiss Alternative Investment Trust and Edelweiss Alternative
Asset Advisors Limited through issuance of Compulsorily
Convertible Debentures (‘CCDs). Further, ESOF Il Investment
Fund and Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited also
invested X 500 crores in Biocon Limited by way of subscription
to the Non-Convertible Debentures which were, in turn, were
invested by Biocon Limited into the Company by subscription
to Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs’) amounting to %
500 crores. The proceeds through issuance of such CCDs and
OCDs, were utilized by the Company for refinancing part of the
Viatris Acquisition Debt.
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XI.

XIl.

Xill.

XIv.

Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its
subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the Statutory
Auditors of the Company

The details of payment made to them on consolidated basis are
available in the Financial Statements of the Company.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013

The disclosure regarding the complaints of sexual harassment
are given in the Board's Report.

Disclosure by the Company and its subsidiaries of Loans
and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in
which directors are interested by name and amount

There were no loans and advances provided to firms/ companies
in which Directors of the Company are interested.

Details of material subsidiaries of the Company; including
the date and place of incorporation and the name and date of
appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries.

The Company being unlisted, details of material subsidiaries are
not applicable.

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/
unclaimed suspense account

The Company does not have any securities in the demat
suspense account/unclaimed suspense account.

Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct (the Code) for Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel as adopted by the Board, is
a comprehensive Code applicable to Directors and senior
management personnel. The Code lays down in detail, the
standards of business conduct, ethics and strict governance
norms for the Board and senior management personnel. A
copy of the Code is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.bioconbiologics.com/docs/Code-of-Conduct.pdf

CEO and CFO certification

In view of the good Corporate Governance, the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, have
placed before the Board, the requisite Certificate for the year
ended March 31, 2024 certifying the authenticity of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Secretarial Audit

The Secretarial Audit Report of the Company for the year ended
March 31,2024, issued by Mr. Pradeep B Kulkarni, Partner of M/s.
V. Sreedharan & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company forms part of the Board's
Report as Annexure - 3.

Agreement on compensation of profit sharing in
connection with dealings in securities of the Company

During the financial year under review, no employee including
Key Managerial Personnel or Director or Promoter of the
Company had entered into any agreement, either for themselves
or on behalf of any other person, with any Members or any other
third party with regard to compensation or profit sharing in
connection with dealings in securities of the Company..
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Overview

Biocon Biologics Limited (BBL) is a unique, fully integrated global biosimilars
player with a demonstrated track record of success across the value chain
from R&D through to manufacturing and commercialization. We are a
subsidiary of Biocon Limited, a publicly listed entity, and the biosimilars arm
of its business. BBL is the largest contributor to parent company’s revenues
and continues to be the fastest-growing business segment within the
organization.

The early 2000s marked our entry into biosimilars when we became the
1st company worldwide to develop and commercialize bHuman Insulin in
2004 using a proprietary Pichia pastoris platform. We subsequently forayed
into developing monoclonal antibodies (mAbs) and therapeutic proteins
targeting Cancer and Autoimmune diseases using mammalian cell culture-
based expression systems. As an early entrant in the biosimilars business, we
have invested more than USD 1 billion till date to build world-class R&D and
global-scale manufacturing capabilities.

The fiscal year 2024 (FY24) was a transformative year for Biocon Biologics
with us crossing the USD 1 billion revenue threshold. The business delivered
a strong performance while simultaneously maintaining business continuity
and integrating a highly complex, geographically diverse business across
120+ countries one year ahead of schedule.

The acquisition brought complementary capabilities including a direct
presence and related infrastructure in several key markets including the USS,,
Europe and key Emerging Markets.

With robust demand for our products and several new launches planned in
the short to medium term, we expect to maintain and then accelerate our
growth momentum as we leverage our end-to-end capabilities to unlock
value for all stakeholders.

Biosimilars Market: Increased Adoption and Growth

Biosimilars are large, complex molecules produced from living organisms,
tissues or cells. A biosimilar is highly similar to another already approved
biological medicine (the reference product’) in terms of structure, biological
activity, efficacy, safety and immunogenicity profile.

Biosimilars have no clinically meaningful difference versus their reference
product and are developed and manufactured with the same scientific rigor
and quality guidelines. However, biosimilars are more affordable alternatives
to their reference product and can address the affordability and access
challenge while ensuring the same treatment outcome.

Like generics, biosimilars offer cost-effective solutions for healthcare
systems to broaden patient access to biologic treatments which are
increasingly becoming the standard of care and can ease the strain on
healthcare budgets. However, given their complexity, biosimilars can
take approximately 5 — 8 years and cost between USD 100 million
— USD 200 million to develop per product. In contrast, a simple small
molecule generic can be developed in approximately 2 years and for as low
as USD 1 million = USD 2 million per product.
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Biosimilars are a relatively new but rapidly growing and high value segment
of the global pharmaceutical industry. Given the increase in incidence of
several non-communicable diseases e.g. Diabetes and Cancer, improved
diagnosis, proven track record of safety and efficacy, and prescriber familiarity
and confidence, biosimilar adoption in most major markets has increased to
to ~80% or more.

Presently, over 50 biosimilars have been approved in the US. spanning
16 molecules while about 90 biosimilars have been approved spanning over

20 molecules in Europe.

Exhibit 1: Biosimilar Adoption in USA and Europe
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McKinsey analysis

As a result of this increase in adoption and an abundant pipeline of over 45
blockbuster biologics set to lose exclusivity (or patent expiry) between now
and 2030, the global biosimilar market is expected to grow 2.5x to about USD
56 billion in 2030.
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Exhibit 2: Global Biosimilars Market Size
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Biosimilars Market: Competitive Landscape

The biosimilars landscape has been evolving rapidly and the players today can be classified into 4 broad cohorts — Originators, Generics, Biosimilars focused,
and Development focused or niche companies.

Several big players like Biocon Biologics are vertically integrated to optimize margins, some originators are de-prioritizing biosimilars and we are seeing several
large generics and niche players entering the space through partnerships in R&D or commercialization.

Exhibit 3: Competitive Landscape
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Doubling down on biosimilars Focusing on R&D and partnerships

Companies are pursuing varying strategies to ‘win’'in the context of increased competition, price erosion and an evolving regulatory landscape. However,
Biocon Biologics' operating model of end-to-end to capabilities, industry leading portfolio, laser focus, on biosimilars and early entry into the space presents
it with a unique, competitive edge.

Biosimilars Market: Pricing Trends

There has been an increase in pricing pressure across geographies as competition intensifies. However, the rate and extent of price erosion varies considerably
based on market archetype and product.
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For example, in the Medical Benefit segment in the U.S., we see a lower initial discount of ~5-10% at launch but a steady increase to ~50% erosion in the first
2-3 years. Even several years after launch, price erosion continues to be significant. With an increasing number of players in high-value molecules, this trend

is likely to persist.

In France, which is largely a retail market, we are seeing a discount of approximately ~60% over a period of 3-5 years but from a significantly lower base than
the U.S. When it comes to Emerging Markets, we are seeing an increase in discounting to similar levels especially in Tender Markets which largely operate as

‘winner takes all”

Exhibit 4: Price Erosion Trends — lllustrative Examples

Medical Benefit in the US: Biosimilars Average Selling Price Price Erosion in France
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Biosimilars Market: Regulatory and Policy Trends

Given the growing disease burden and significant savings potential that
biosimilars offer governments and health systems across the globe, we are
seeing favourable movements in both the regulatory and policy landscape
across markets that are gradually reducing the barriers to entry and making
it a more attractive.

From 2023 to 2027, global cumulative savings from biosimilars could be as
high as USD 383 billion, according to IQVIA's recent Global Use of Medicines
report.In 2026 and 2027, annual savings from biosimilars could be more than
USD 100 billion.

Regulations governing the approval and marketing of biosimilars vary across
regions. The European Union (EU) was a pioneer in the space with EMA
being the first major regulatory agency to establish a framework in 2003 that
outlined an abbreviated pathway to develop and approve biosimilars with
the US FDA following suit in 2010.

However, over the past years we have seen regulators globally adopt
measures to further simplify the approval pathways and reduce both the
cost and time for development e.g. the FDA Modernization Act 2.0.

The MHRA in the UK has removed the need for Phase IlI trials, the US FDA
has removed the need for Phase lIl trials for approving Interchangeable
Insulins and approved Interchangeable biosimilars (i.e. non-insulins
products e.g. bAflibercept) without switching data. There regulators are also
receptive to further reducing trial sizes and focusing more on non-clinical
data to biosimilarity.
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On the policy front, we are seeing governments enacting measures to
manage prices such as the Inflation Reduction Act in the U.S. and incentivize
local manufacturing e.g. Saudi Arabia but the full impact of these legislations

are yet to be seen.

Biosimilars Market: Learnings from bAdalimumab in the U.S.
The launch of biosimilar bAdalimumab in the US. in 2023 was one of the
most awaited events in the biosimilars space given it represented a more
than USD 18 billion opportunity in originator sales and there were ~9
biosimilars players. On the pricing front, we saw players offering up to 85%
discounts on the originator’s Wholesale Acquisition Cost (WAC).

However, the market dynamics played out very differently than what
stakeholders including the originator had predicted. The originator (brand
name Humira) was able to retain a preferred or exclusive status on payor
formularies and offer high rebates, thereby providing no incentive to
prescribers or the pharmacy to switch to biosimilars which translated into
the originator retaining over 98% of the market by volume.

Looking ahead, we expect the market to meaningfully open to biosimilars in
H2 2024 and 2025 as the originator is excluded from formularies.



Exhibit 5: US Adalimumab Market Size by Volume (40mg Equiv Standard
Units), Full Year 2023
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Source: IQVIA; BBL Analysis

Biocon Biologics: Commercial Performance

Advanced Markets - North America

Our business in the US. continues to see strong demand across our
commercial products and we have seen a significant increase in market
shares during and after the integration in September'23.

On the Oncology front, Fulphila, our bPegfigrastim, increased its market
share by 7% to 21% in March’24 while Ogivri, our bTrastuzumab, increased
its share by 8% to ~18% in March'24. On the Diabetes from, Semglee and our
Unbranded Glargine Product increased its share by 3% to 15% in March'24.
However, if you add in closed door networks not captured in IQVIA, our
shared would be ~3% higher.

This growth is a testament to the storing foundation we have built in the U.S.
and was driven by several key formulary wins, increased pull through at the

physician level and a robust pricing strategy.

Exhibit 6: IQVIA Volume Market Shares for Commercial Products in the U.S.

Product Mar-24  Mar-23
Fulphila (bPegfilgrastim) =~ 21% 14%
Ogivri (bTrastuzumab) 18% 10%
Semglee (bGlargine) 15% 12%

Source: IQVIA; BBL Analysis

In Canada, Ogivri, our bTrastuzumab increased its share to 28% in March'24,
Hulio, our bAdalimumab, increased its share to 8% in March'24 and we
onboarded a large customer for our Insulins portfolio. .

Advanced Markets - Europe

On the European front, we have put in place a bespoke country-specific
operating model and strategy taking into account the nature of the market
(e.g. Tender vs. Retail), size of the opportunity and other parameters to ensure
success.

Biocon Biologics Limited

As a result, we have seen our market shares remain stable or increase
depending on the product with Germany and France as the key value and
growth drivers. This is of particular significance since we only completed
the integration of the acquired business in December 2023 and have been
managing the business directly only for one quarter.

Our bAdalimumab franchise remains very strong with a market share of
6% pan Europe and shares of 20% in Belgium, 18% in Germany and 11% in
France. We have seen a significant increase in market share for Abevmy, our
bBevacizumab from 1% to 6% on the back of several tender wins, growth
in the retail segment and new launches in large markets such as France,
Belgium and Greece.

We are also seeing successes in capturing new market opportunities and
expanding reach in the top 5 European countries.

Exhibit 7: IQVIA Volume Market Shares for Commercial Products in Europe

Product Q4 CY’23 Q4 CY’'22
Fulphila (bPegfilgrastim) 8% 6%
Ogivri (bTrastuzumab) 10% 12%
Abvemy (bBevacizumab) 6% 1%
Semglee (bGlargine) 4% 3%
Hulio (bAdalimumab) 6% 6%
Nepexto (bEtanercept) 2% 1%

Source: IQVIA; BBL Analysis

Advanced Markets - Japan, Australia and New Zealand

In the JANZ markets, we successfully transitioned the business and have
integrated partners across the region, laying the groundwork for future
market opportunities and continued growth.

Emerging Markets

On the Emerging Markets front, we have set up direct commercial
infrastructure in several large Emerging Markets such as Brazil and Philippines,
allowing us to get closer to patients and customers while maximizing value
potential from our existing and pipeline products.

During the year we expanded our geographic footprint significantly and
had 18 new launches and 31 new approvals across LATAM, AFMET and APAC
regions including bBevacizumab in Brazil.

Our Insulins franchise remains strong and we have captured dominant
market shares in several key countries e.g. Mexico and Malaysia. We have also
seen a consistent increase in market shares for our mAbs portfolio on the
back of several key tender and customer wins across geographies.
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Exhibit 8: Market Shares by Volume for Commercialized Products in Key
Markets, FY24

Emerging Markets

Region  Country Product Market Share
LATAM Brazil Trastuzumab 43%
Mexico Rh-Insulin 95%
Insulin Glargine | 95%
APAC Malaysia Insulin Glargine | 80%
Rh-Insulin 38%
Trastuzumab 34%
Philippines Trastuzumab 61%
Indonesia Trastuzumab 57%
AFMET  South Africa Bevacizumab 90%
Trastuzumab 88%
Pegfilgrastim 75%
Morocco Trastuzumab 60%
Saudi Arabia Bevacizumab 50%
Pegfilgrastim 50%
Egypt Trastuzumab 50%

Source: IQVIA + Partner & Distributor Sales Reports

Partnership with Eris Lifesciences - India

In November 2023, we divested our non-core Nephrology and Dermatology
branded formulations business units in India to Eris. Building on this
relationship, we also entered into a long-term commercial collaboration with
Eris to expand patient access to our portfolio of Metabolics, Oncology, and
Critical Care products in India for a total transaction value ¥ 1,242 Crores,
effective April 1, 2024, which represented an accretive multiple of 3.4x of
revenues and 18x of EBITDA. As part of the collaboration, a 10-year supply
agreement was signed with Eris.

These collaborations are in-line with Biocon Biologics' strategy to unlock
value from its legacy business of branded formulations built over the past
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two decades and deliver high-quality, lifesaving biosimilars to millions of
patients in India.

Biocon Biologics: Portfolio and Regulatory Milestones

During the year we achieved several key regulatory milestones while our
pipeline continued to progress well which will be a key driver of future
growth.

bUstekinumab

The US FDA has accepted our Biologics License Application (BLA) for
bUstekinumab for review under the 351(k) pathway and we have signed a
settlement and license agreement with Janssen Biotech Inc., and Johnson &
Johnson that clears the way to commercialize the product in the US no later
than February 22, 2025, subject to US FDA approval. This positions us to be
amongst the first wave of entrants in the U.S.

The product has also been filed in several other key geographies. Once
approved, this will expand our Immunology offering complementing our
bAdalimumab and bEtanercept products.

bAflibercept

We received approvals from several key regulators including the US FDA,
MHRA UK, European Medicines Agency (EMA), and provisional approval
from Health Canada. It is important to note that our product was the first
Interchangeable product to be approved in the U.S. and hence qualifies for
exclusivity.

We are currently in litigation with the originator in the U.S. but have signed a
settlement agreement with Bayer Inc. and Regeneron Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
that paves the way for the introduction of Yesafili®, our bAflibercept, into the
Canadian market in July'25. Once launched, bAflibercept will mark our entry
into the ophthalmology segment thereby expanding our patient each.

bDenosumab: We are on-track to submit regulatory filings before the end
of 2024.

bPertuzumab: Global Phase Il clinical trial for bPertuzumab has been
initiated.

Other Products: All pipeline products have progressed as planned.



Exhibit 8: Summary of Biocon Biologics' Product Portfolio
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Facility and Audit Updates

Our mAbs Drug Substance (B3) manufacturing facility in Bengaluru, has
been approved by EMA and other regulatory agencies for global supplies
of bTrastuzumab and bBevacizumab. This is the largest facility in India for
manufacturing mAbs and will allow us to meet the significant increase in
demand we are seeing for our robust portfolio of mAbs.

We have made considerable progress on the Phase II expansion of our
Malaysia facility for Insulin and Insulin- Analogs which will double our
capacity for both Drug Substance and Drug Product and will become one
of the largest facilities of its kind in the world. The expanded facility will play
a key role in servicing the increase demand we are seeing for our Insulins
portfolio globally, especially in-light of several players prioritizing GLP-1RA's.

We continue to build out a distributed, global supply chain and an external
manufacturing network to both expand our capacity multi-fold as well as
de-risk dependencies on specific sites of geography.

During the year the US FDA issued a Complete Response Letter (CRL) for our
bBevacizumab filing citing the need to complete a pre-approval inspection
of our India facility. The CRL did not identify any outstanding scientific issues.

We also received a CRL for our bAspart filing from our Malaysia site. The
CRL did not identify any outstanding scientific issues but cites the need
for the completion of a pre-approval inspection. We have completed the
implementation of all Corrective and Preventive Actions (CAPA) as per the
committed timelines and have provided the US FDA with a comprehensive
update.

& Denosumab

@ Pertuzumab

@ Ustekinumab

& Denosumab

@ 2 undisclosed

@ 3 undisclosed

& Glargine U300
@ 1 undisclosed

' @ 1 undisclosed

As a next step, we are awaiting the Agency to visit and inspect both sites
which would pave the way for approval of our bAspart from Malaysia and
our bBevacizumab from India. It is important to note that the same facilities
are already cGMP certified by leading global regulators including EMA and
Health Canada.

The EMA has renewed the Certificates of GMP Compliance of our fully
integrated manufacturing facilities in Bengaluru and Malaysia.

Till date, our facilities have received 80+ cGMP approvals from over 25
agencies, including the US FDA and EMA.

These approvals reflect Biocon Biologics' compliance with the highest
international regulatory standards and unlocks significant additional capacity
to cater to the needs of patients well as our pipeline products.

ESG

ESG is core to our business operations and Biocon Biologics has a robust
governance in place to develop and refine its ESG Strategy and oversee
various initiatives. This is comprised of a dedicated ESG and CSR Board
Committee, an internal ESG Steering Committee of senior leaders including
the CEO, CFO and CHRO as well as a Working Group with representatives
from across all business functions and geographies.

During the year we made significant progress on several key sustainability
parameters including a reduction in carbon emissions, waste generation
and fresh-water consumption which have translated to some rebates on our
sustainability-linked-loan.
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The core of our business is to provide access to life-saving medicine for
patients, and we remain steadfast in our commitment to increase product
approvals and launches in LIC/LMIC countries. This year, we also made
significant strides in our human capital by enhancing employee engagement,
improving gender diversity, and establishing a dedicated culture and values
department.

Our continuous journey toward a more sustainable business is demonstrated
by the significant increase in our scores from leading global sustainability
indexes. For instance, our group company's ESG score improved from 52 to
63 in the Dow Jones Sustainability Index, leading to our induction into S&P
DJSI's prestigious annual “Sustainability Yearbook 2024. Biocon Biologics is
also a signatory to the United Nations Global Compact. Additionally, we were
honored with the Best Sustainability-Linked Loan — Pharmaceuticals at The
Asset Triple A Sustainable Finance Awards 2024.

In FY24, we also kicked-off an ESG ‘Strategic Plan’ exercise to expand the
metrics we use to track ESG performance, design new programs such as a
Net Zero Roadmap (which is a work-in-progress) and make our approach to
ESG more global and in-line with the evolved nature of the business.

Looking ahead, the focus will be on fleshing out this 'Strategic Plan' in more
detail with clear milestones and KPIs to track progress and impact.

Financial Growth

Biocon Biologics crossed the USD 1 billion Revenue mark with revenues from
operations at ¥ 8,824 Crores, representing a strong 58% year-on-year growth
driven by the acquisition and robust growth in the core business.
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The business delivered X 2,190 Crores in EBITDA representing a healthy
margin of 25%. We also continued to invest in our pipeline to drive future
growth with R&D at 10% of Revenue. We ended the year on a strong note
and remain focused on delivering profitable, sustainable growth.

Reducing our acquisition debt remains a key priority and we are evaluating a
range of options. In FY24 we were able to pare down USD 250 million in debt.

Biosimilars - FY25 Outlook:

In summary, this has been a transformative year for Biocon Biologics as we
emerge as a unique, fully integrated, leading global biosimilars player and
crossing the USD 1 billion revenue threshold. The business delivered a strong
performance while simultaneously maintaining business continuity and
integrating a highly complex, geographically diverse business across 120+
countries 1 year ahead of schedule which is one of the fastest in the industry.

Looking ahead, we remain focused on leveraging our vertically integrated
model to accelerate growth for existing products while simultaneously
expanding our geographical footprint and preparing for new product
launches. These new product launches will be key catalysts in the short to
medium term to drive sustainable and profitable growth.
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Financial Performance - An Overview
Consolidated Balance Sheet

The following table highlights the Consolidated Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2023 (FY23) and March 31, 2022 (FY22)

All igures in % million

Particulars FY 24 FY 23 Change
Assets
Non-current assets
Tangible, Intangible and Right-of-use assets 158,905 157,108 1%
Goodwill 163,460 161,098 1%
Financial assets 1,133 9,207 -88%
Income-tax assets (net) 574 818 -30%
Deferred tax assets (net) 2,568 1,807 42%
Other non-current assets 3,529 2,351 50%
330,169 332,389 -1%
Current assets
Inventories 37,092 31,607 17%
Financial assets 59,992 33,974 77%
Other current assets 3,839 3,678 4%
100,923 69,259 46%
Total 431,092 401,648 7%

Equity and Liabilities

Equity share capital 13,217 13,217 -
Other equity 170,192 162,859 5%
183,409 176,076 4%
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 122,163 166,119 -26%
Deferred tax liability (net) 3,950 3,713 6%
Provisions and other non-current liabilities 2,015 2,153 -6%
128,128 171,985 -26%
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 116,652 48,585 1.4x
Income -tax liability (net) 986 853 -16%
Provisions and other current liabilities 1,917 4,149 -54%
119,555 53,587 1.2x
Total 431,092 401,648 7%

Non-current assets
No significant movement in the non-current assets. Impact of additions was offset by depreciation and amortization. Management conducted the impairment
assessment for the carrying values of intangibles and goodwill and concluded that there were no impairment as at March 31, 2024.

Current assets
Increase in the inventory balances in line with increase in the volume of business across regions. Financial assets has increased on account of increase in trade
receivables. Increased trade receivables represents highest quarterly revenue for the Group in FY24 as compared to FY23.

Other equity

Other equity mainly comprises of securities premium, reserves and surplus, equity component of preference shares, equity component of compulsorily
convertible debentures and other reserves. Profits for the year contributed for the increase in the Other equity balance. In addition during the year, the
company issued compulsory convertible debentures (refer note 13(j) of the consolidated financial statements of Biocon Biologics Limited) resulting in
increased Other equity.
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Non-current liabilities
Non-current liabilities decreased in FY24, primarily due to repayment of term loans out of cash generated from operating activities and funds raised during
the year.

Current liabilities

Commensurate to increase in the inventory and the business, there was an increase in the trade payables. Further there is an increase in the current portion
of financial liabilities as the deferred consideration payable to Viatris is due for payment within 12 months from end of financial year (in FY23, classified as
non-current liabilities)

Debt equity
Total debt as at March 31, 2024 stood at % 136,866 million (March 31, 2023: % 142,769 million) (refer note 32 of the consolidated financial statements of Biocon

Biologics Limited) and the debt equity ratio stood at 0.74 (March 31, 2023: 0.80). Improvement in debt equity ratio on account of repayment of term loan.

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
The following table highlights key components of the statement of Profit and Loss for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 (FY24) and March 31, 2023 (FY23)

All figures in % million

Particulars FY 23 FY 22 Change
Revenue from operations ("Revenue") 88,242 55,838 58%
Otherincome 1,764 120 13x
Total income 90,006 55,958 61%
Expenses

Cost of material consumed 27,321 16,028 70%
Employee benefit expense 12,702 8,488 50%
Finance costs 8,637 2,969 1.9x
Depreciation and amortisation expense 10,302 6,382 61%
R&D expenses, net of recovery from co-development partners 9,110 8,890 2%
Other expenses 18,977 9,171 107%
Total expenses 87,049 51,928 68%
Profit before tax and exceptional item 2,957 4,030 -27%
Exceptional item 166 (2,844) -106%
Profit before tax 3,123 1,186 1.6x
Tax expense 941 (149) -7X
Profit attributable to Members of the Company 2,182 1,335 63%
Other comprehensive income attributable to Members 2,610 1,537 70%
Total comprehensive income attributable to Members 4,792 2,872 67%
Revenue

During the year, revenue grew by 58% on a consolidated basis from % 55,838 million to % 88,242 million. FY24 represents full year of consolidation of the
acquired business from Viatris as compared to only 4 months of consolidation in FY23. The Group has witnessed market share growth with all the products
over last four quarters in FY24

Cost of materials consumed
Material costs for the year comprised of raw materials, packing materials, traded goods and change in inventories. Cost of material consumed, as a percentage
of revenue from operations at ~31% and ~ 29% for financial years FY24 and FY23 respectively.

Employee benefit expenses
Our employee benefit expenses comprise the following items:

Salaries, wages, allowances and bonuses
Contributions to Provident Fund

Contributions to gratuity provisions
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Amortisation of employees’ stock compensation expenses, and
welfare expenses (including employee insurance schemes)

These expenses increased 50% in FY24, representing increased headcount
across geography post TSA cut over from Viatris.

Research and development expenses, net of recovery

The net R&D expenditure for FY24 is % 9,110 million representing 10% of
Revenue (X 8,890 million in FY23). We continue to invest significantly in our
pipeline to drive future growth.

Depreciation and amortization

Intangibles acquired as part of acquisition was amortized for full year in FY24
as compared to four months in FY23 (post acquisition), resulting in increase
of 61% in FY24 over FY23.

Finance costs

The finance cost increased by 191% to % 8,637 million from % 2,969 million
in FY23, primarily due to long-term debt raised to fund acquisition of Viatris
biosimilar business in November 2022. Four months costs in FY23 compared
to full year cost in FY24.

Other expenses

Other expenses primarily consists of TSA cross charge, legal and professional
charge, repairs and maintenance, increase is primarily due to full year TSA
cross charge in FY24 as against 4 months in FY23 and increase in legal and
professional charges towards integration related spends.

Exceptional items (net)

The Exceptional items during FY 24 comprised the following:

1. The Group has received X 18,269 (USD 220 million) towards working
capital under the terms of the definitive agreement [refer note 35(d)]
[out of total contingent consideration receivable of % 20,835 (USD
250 million)]. The Group had recorded these receivables at fair value
of 10,219 at the time of settlement having regard to the timing
and probability of recovery. The resulting difference of % 8,050 is
recorded as a gain in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
Consequential tax impact of % 407 is included within tax expense for
year ended March 31, 2024.

2. The Group obtained services of professional experts (like advisory,
legal counsel, valuation experts etc.) for the acquisition completed
during the year, as mentioned in note 35. The Group has recorded
T1,582 (March 31, 2023: % 2,374) as an expense in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. Consequential tax impact of T 80
(March 31, 2023:% 231) is included within tax expense.

Biocon Biologics Limited

3. The Group has recorded Provision for inventory for a product due to
its low demand and consequentially lower probability of liquation
amounting % 2,366 in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
Consequential tax impact of X 296 is included within tax expense for
year ended March 31, 2024.

4. The Group on pursuant to the uncertainty of ability to commercialize
a product for development and commercialization in certain
territories, recorded an impairment of the carrying value of the
intangible asset under development amounting X 3,854 that has been
disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for year
ended March 31, 2024.

Ministry of Chemicals and fertilizers, Department of Pharmaceuticals
issued an Corrigendum on October 20, 2023 vide File No.
31026/99/2020 clarifying the operational guidelines for the
Production Linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme with total capping of 33%
in any of the four years. Accordingly, the Group during the year ended
March 31, 2024, has reversed < 82 as exceptional items. Consequential
tax impact of T 11 is included within tax expense for the year.

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income includes re-measurement gains/losses on
defined benefit plans, gains/losses on hedging instruments designated
as cash flow hedges and exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (FCTR). The increase is primarily due to gain on hedging
instruments designated as cash flow hedges % 896 million in FY24 as against
345 million in FY23.

Key financial ratios

Revenue Growth 58% 61%
Core EBITDA margin 30% 41%
R&D as % of sales 10% 16%
EBITDA margin 25% 24%
Effective tax Rate ' 32% -4%
Debtors'turnover ratio 247 347
Current ratio 0.84 134
Debt equity ratio? 0.74 0.80

! excludes tax impact on exceptional items

2 Equity includes NCRPS issued to Biocon Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Biocon Biologics Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Biocon Biologics Limited
(the “Company”)and its employee welfare trust which comprise the standalone
balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the standalone statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes
in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the standalone financial statements, including material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein referred to as (“the standalone
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under Section 143(10) of the A